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STATEMENT
To contribute to the growth and 0UR CURPUR TE

Aevelopment of the conntres in which OBJECTIVES

we (WMTB % f““(’mfmﬂ fﬁﬂ mogl{mmn) The Jamaica Stock Exchange was incorporated as a
, , private limited company in August 1968, with the
exchange and expansion of capital Stock market commencing operaions i
February 1969.
' o ' ' The Jamaica Stock Exchange is now a Public Limited
Wm{kﬁmmdmﬂ a et on eqmty fﬁﬂf 1§ Company. In June 2013 it became a publicly
listed company having offered and listed its
accgytaﬁ[e 10 our sﬁawﬁo(‘dm. ordinary shares on its own exchange.

Its principal objectives are:

To promote the orderly and transparent development
of the stock market and the stock exchange in Jamaica,

To ensure that the stock market and its broker members
operate at the highest standards practicable,

To develop, apply and enforce the rules designed to
ensure public confidence in the stock market and
its broker-members,

To provide facilities for the transaction of stock
market business, and

To conduct research, disseminate relevant
information and maintain local and international
relationships which can enhance the development
of the Jamaican stock market.

Maximizing Shareholders’ value.




(@ Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market” \gpod @b Jam B <3

NOTICE OF

42" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Forty Second (42nd) Annual General Meeting of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (“the Company”) will
be held at the Jamaica Stock Exchange, 40 Harbour Street, Kingston on Thursday, June 20, 2019 commencing at 1:00 p.m. to consider
and if thoughtfit, to pass the following resolutions:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
Ordinary Resolutions

1. Resolution No. 1 - 2018 Audited Financial Statements
THAT the Directors' Report, the Auditors' Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the Company and its
subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended December 31, 2018, circulated with the Notice convening the Meeting,
be and are hereby adopted.

2. Resolution No. 2 - Re-election of Directors
THAT Mr. lan McNaughton, a director retiring by rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for re-election,
be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.

3. Resolution No. 3 - Re-election of Directors
THAT Mr. Gary Peart, a director retiring by rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for re-election,
be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.

4. Resolution No. 4 - Re-election of Directors
THAT Mr. Steven Gooden, a director retiring by rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for re-election,
be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.

5. Resolution No. 5 — Re-election of Directors
THAT Mr. Devon Barrett, a director retiring by rotation and being eligible, has offered himself for re-election,
be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.

6. Resolution No. 6 - Re-election of Directors
THAT Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest, a director retiring by rotation and being eligible, has offered herself for re-election,
be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.

1. Resolution No. 7- Re-election of Directors Pursuant to Article 109
THAT Mr. Kevin Donaldson who was appointed to fill a casual vacancy and being eligible to be re-elected has offered
himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.

8. Resolution No. 8 — To Ratify Dividends
THAT the interim dividend of $0.164 per share paid on August 20, 2018 and the final dividend of $0.25 per share paid on
March 29, 2019 be and is hereby declared as final, and that no further dividend be paid in respect of the year ended
December 31, 2018.

9. Resolution No. 9 - Appointment of and the Remuneration of the Auditors
THAT Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants having agreed to continue in office as Auditors, be and are hereby appointed
Auditors for the Company to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at a remuneration to be
fixed by the Directors of the Company.

(Cont’d on next page)
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NOTICE OF

42" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

10.  Resolution No. 10 - Remuneration of the Directors
THAT the Directors be and are hereby authorized to fix their fee for the fiscal period 2019/2020.

11.  To Transact Any Other Ordinary Business of the Company.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Roxanne Hutchinson
Company Secretary
Dated: April 08, 2019

IMPORTANT NOTE FOR MEMBERS WHO ARE NOT ABLE TO ATTEND:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting can appoint a Proxy to vote on his behalf. A proxy need not also be a member. The
person so authorized shall be entitled to exercise the same powers as the member whom he represents. Enclosed is a Proxy Form for
your convenience, which must be lodged at the Company's Registered Office at least forty-eight hours before the time appointed for
holding a meeting. The Proxy Form shall bear the stamp duty of $100.00 before being signed. The stamp duty may be paid by adhesive
stamp(s) to be cancelled by the person executing the Proxy.
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From the Chairman's Desk

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

Mr. lan McNaughton
Chairman
Jamaica Stock Exchange

Exchange (JSE). Revenue grew 40% year-over-year from $991.2 million to

$1.4 billion. Net Profit Margin grew 32.5% year-over-year from 22.3% t0 29.5%,
which translated into net profit growth of 87% year-over-year from $220.7 million to a
record $413 million. Earnings per share grew 90% year-over-year from $0.31 to
$0.59.

By a wide variety of measures, 2018 was a great year for the Jamaica Stock

2018 Global Performance

According to the Financial Times, “Global stock markets closed out their worst year
since the financial crisis”". Despite that, for 2018 Bloomberg ranked the Jamaica
Stock Exchange (JSE) as “the World's Best-Performing Stock Market. The top 3
performing equities markets were all from non-OECD countries. The JSE's Main
Market led the pack with an increase of 31.7%, followed by the Qatar Exchange at

20.8% and the Tunisia Stock Exchange at 15.76%.

The Jamaican Economy

The Government of Jamaica (GOJ) has continued to meet all indicative and
quantitative targets under the 3-year IMF Precautionary Stand-By Arrangement
(PSBA). That has led to continued improvement in Jamaica's macroeconomic
conditions. According to the Statistical Institute of Jamaica (STATIN), the preliminary
estimate for Jamaica's GDP growth in 2018 is 1.9%, with the fourth quarter
registering 2.0% growth quarter-over-quarter. In January 2019, Fitch upgraded the
GOJ Issuer Default Rating (IDR) from 'B'to 'B+'and the country ceiling from 'B'to 'BB-
. Thisis Jamaica's highest rating in over ten years.

Tax Revenues of $388.7 billion outperformed both the IMF PSBA's target of $360
billion and GOJ's 1st Supplementary budget target of $378.1 billion. Expenditure was
also behind budget by $11.6 billion during the same time period (April - December
2018). As aresult, the primary balance produced a larger surplus than programmed
at $107.7 billion as opposed to the IMF's target of $68 billion and GOJ's 1st
Supplementary Budget Target of $89 billion. 12-month point-to-point inflation as at
December 2018 came in at 2.4%, below Bank of Jamaica's (BOJ) target rate of 4.0%
10 6.0%.

(Cont’d on next page)
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As of December 20, 2018, Bank of Jamaica's Overnight CD Rate was
reduced to 1.75%, coming down from 2.75% as of February 20, 2018.
As a result of continued subdued inflation and lower interest rates
throughout the economy, there is a 'search for yield' among investors
resulting in a ‘'flock to equities'. The improved macroeconomic
environment has also boosted business confidence which has led to
both anincrease inthe number of listings and an increase in the amount
of capital raised on the JSE.

The number of JSE accounts for retail investors grew 53.3%, over the
period 2015 to the end of 2018, from 129,932 in 2015 t0 199,145 in
2018 (representing growth of 69,213 new retail accounts during that 4
year period). The amount of capital raised in 2018 increased by 34.6%
year-over-year from $15.6 billion in 2017 to $21 billion in 2018. As a
result of lower than targeted inflation, BOJ's monetary policy is
expected to remain accommodative with continued further easing
expectedin 2019. We expectthis trend to continue.

2019 Outlook

The Board and Management anticipate continued growth in 2019 as
Jamaica's economic reform programme continues to calcify and bear
fruit. GOJ is preparing the divestment of Wigton Windfarms via the JSE.
They have indicated that they would like as many “ordinary Jamaicans”

- b

lan McNaughton
Chairman
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to participate in the listing as possible and as such are expected to
structure the offering accordingly. We expect this to generate a lot of
new interest in local equities markets from first-time investors. If that
listing is successful, we believe it has the potential to create a positive
feedback loop where the retail investors that participate tell their friends
and family which will encourage them to sign up and also participate in
future listings which will continue this positive feedback loop. We also
anticipate that as capital flows into the market and trading volumes and
liquidity increase, it will encourage more retail investors to take a
serious look at equities and more companies o list.

Conclusion

We are proud of the achievements of the Group in 2018 and we look
forward to an eventful year in 2019. As we celebrate our 50th
anniversary in 2019 we are proud to be in a prime position to take
advantage of the many opportunities being created by a low-inflation,
and stable macroeconomic environment. We would like to thank all our
long-standing and new investors, our partners, stakeholders and
business leaders for trusting us with your capital and your assets. As
we look to the next 50 years, we commit to doing our part to cultivate
economic growth and generating wealth.

" https://www.ft.com/content/73d3dd26-0ce0-11e9-acdc-4d9976f1533b

2https://www.bloomberg.com/news/features/2019-01-18/the-jamaican-stock-exchange-is-the-world-s-best-performing-market
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GOVERNANGE

Principles & Practices

PREAMBLE

SH AREHOLDERS The Jamaica Stock Exchange recognizes that as a national self-
regulatory organization with a mission to ensure and promote a fair
and efficient stock market, it must embrace and practice sound
corporate governance. These principles and the attendant structures
should serve the best interest of all stakeholders and emphasize the

BOARD OF highest standards of transparency, oversight and independence.
DIRECTORS The intent is to protect the investing public while advancing the
interests of shareholders and member dealers. Confidence in the
stock market will be enhanced by the clear demarcation of regulatory
z REGULATORY AND and normal operational functions.
g MARKET OVERSIGHT
2 COMMITTEE These practices are consistent with world best practices and adhere
; to the relevant legal and regulatory framework. The corporate
SHAREHOLDERS governance core practices of the JSE are rooted in the acceptance of
AUDITORS — LISTING the following principles:
COMMITTEE
1. Corporate Governance should establish a clear
foundation for Management and Board oversight. The
§ MEMBER DEALERS role and responsibilities of Board and Management
Sl ADMISSIONS should therefore be clearly outlined to facilitate
@ COMMITTEE accountability.
SENIOR
MANAGEMENT 2. The Board of Directors should be structured and
- COMPENSATION selected to ensure effectiveness, independence and
COMMITTEE protection of the public's interests through appropriate
selection and operating processes.
§ I AUDIT 3. Ethical standards and responsible decision-making
S COMMITTEE should be promoted.
4, Governance should ensure that there is accurate,
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE timely and full financial and governance reporting with
I— & NOMINATION strong internal controls and risk management.
COMMITTEE
5. Material information regarding the company's
EXECUTIVE operatiqns should be disclo_s_ed in a timely manner to
COMMITTEE the public and regulatory entities.
6. There should be regular reviews of Board and
RULES Management performance to enhance effectiveness.
COMMITTEE Such review should include the performance of the

alternates.
(Cont’d on next page)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Remuneration should be fair to attract and retain
competent skills, and reward consistent with
performance objectives.

8. The interests of stakeholders should be carefully
balanced, protected and promoted.

BOARD ISSUES
Accountability to
shareholders/stakeholders

The JSE is a public company with public responsibility. It must
balance the interest of all stakeholders to foster a fair, efficient and
transparent market.

Mission and Responsibility

The Board members have the responsibility to attend meetings
and familiarize themselves with, and make decisions on issues
within their purview.

Elections

The provisions for election of directors are set out in the Articles
of Incorporation of the JSE and stipulate election of directors on
an annual basis. Interest groups identified by the Board will
propose independent directors to the Corporate Governance and
Nomination Committee. Where an interest group fails to make a
nomination, the Nominating Committee will propose directors for
election.

Orientation and Training

Training is made available to directors upon appointment to the
Board. The Exchange will organize orientation and training for any
director within three (3) months of appointment to the Board. The
Board will pursue a programme of continuous training and
development, with emphasis placed on members chairing
committees.

Access to Information

The Board considers the provision of good quality, timely and
accurate information as a significant priority in company
procedures. Management has a responsibility to provide the
Board with any information that will allow members to properly
carry outits responsibilities.

4 “‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

Disclosure of Directors'
Biographical Information

Sufficient biographical data with the names of all directors,
nominated or elected, will be presented to shareholders and
directors. This allows for the proper selection of members to
specific committees.

Composition

Board members will be drawn from different interest groups and
from member-dealers. Representation should reflect the diversity
of stakeholders and the needs of the Company. The Board shall be
comprised of member dealers, independent directors and a non
executive chairman.

Multiple Board Seats

Members must declare appointments to other companies. They
must, at the beginning of the year, and as many times as their
positions change, give a written declaration to the board of the
Exchange with pertinent information about the other boards on
whichthey serve.

Chairman & CEO
The JSE will have a separate Chairman and CEO.

Independent Directors
Independent Directors must meet the criteria set out on page 12.

Committees

Composition

There are both mandatory and non-mandatory committees of the
Board. The mandatory committees of the Board are comprised of
the Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee, the Audit and
Finance Committee, the Compensation Committee and the
Listing Committee. These are referred to in the JSE's Rules.

Each Committee has a written charter outlining its purpose and
responsibilities and reporting format. Committees must meet at
leasttwice annually.

Review Process

The board of the JSE conducts regular reviews of the performance
of the Committees. Chairmen of Committees are required to
develop and present their key performance indicators the month
prior to the beginning of each year.

(Cont’d on next page)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board with oversight
responsibilities in regards to the integrity of the company's
financial statements. It also serves as the communication link
between the Board, the management team and the auditors. The
Audit Committee ensures that the Company complies with legal
and regulatory requirements.

Member Dealers Admissions Committee

The Member Dealer Admissions Committee is responsible for
processing and recording applications of Member Dealers for
access of Member Dealers, attorneys/ traders, to conduct
business on the floor of the Exchange and their use of these
facilities.

Regulatory and Market
Oversight Committee (RMOC)

The Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee (hereinafter
called the “RMOC”) is the committee of the Board of Directors of
the Exchange comprising the independent directors who are not
the nominees or connected to any Member Dealer of the
Exchange. The Board of Directors of the Exchange has delegated
responsibility to the RMOC for reviewing and ensuring compliance
with and enforcement of the Laws, any Rules including Business
Rules, contractual obligations and appropriate standards of
conduct governing the Member Dealers, their clients and
participants on the Exchange. The RMOC shall be the disciplinary
committee of the Exchange and may impose any of the penalties
specified in Rule 228 upon a Member Dealer in respect of whom
disciplinary action is taken, which results in a finding of
misconduct.

Corporate Governance and
Nomination Committee

The Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee is
responsible to develop, recommend and review Corporate
Governance Principles applicable to the Board, Management and
listed companies. In addition the Committee has the responsibility
to oversee the evaluation of the Board's other committees and
make recommendations in respect to the structure of and
effectiveness of the Committees.

The Corporate Governance and Nominations Committee is also
responsible for the recommendation of suitable candidates to fill
vacancies onthe Board andthe suitability of Alternate Directors.

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

Compensation
Committee

The Compensation Committee of the JSE is made up exclusively
of non-executive directors who make recommendations on the
company's framework of executive remuneration. The Committee
reviews and approves corporate goals in relation to the CEQ's
compensation, evaluates the CEQ's performance in light of the
company's goals and objectives and makes recommendations to
the Board with respect to executive and non-executive
compensation.

Listing Committee

The Listing Committee ensures the quality and integrity of a listing
on the JSE. It is responsible for processing applications and
making recommendations regarding approval of companies
wishing to list on the JSE and reviewing and making
recommendations of standards to be observed for companies to
remain listed.

Other Committees

These are formed as the directors see fit and includes the
Executive Committee.

Board Meetings

There are formal scheduled meetings of the Board at which
matters are specifically reserved for discussions. Matters must be
addressed within a reasonable time in order to prevent an overrun
of pending items.

Procedure at Board Meetings
In the interest of promoting and ensuring transparency all
directors must:

Excuse themselves from discussions in, and in making
decisions on any matter in which they have a personal or
business interest or companies on whose Board they sit or
are connected. Further, members shall be bound by similar
standards. Please refer to captioned guidelines- (Part K) of
the JSE's Rules which addresses 'Acting in Concert'.

General Meetings

General Meetings of shareholders are held each vyear.
Communication with shareholders on decisions concerning
material, fundamental corporate changes are made on a timely
basis.

(Cont’d on next page)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

Performance

Evaluation of Board Members and Senior Executives

The Board recognizes the importance of each director (including
his or her alternate) working to fulfill the mandate of the company
This evaluation is subject to the review of the Corporate
Governance and Nomination Committee.

The Board recognizes the importance of evaluating the
performance of each director, senior executives and the Board as
awhole.

Term Limits

Board Members are nominated by the Corporate Governance and
Nomination Committee.

Committees

Chairman/Deputy Chairman

The Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Board and Chairmen
of Committees have recommended term limits (from one AGM
to another AGM) as follows:

(@) The Chairman can serve for five (5) consecutive
terms

(b) The Deputy Chairman can serve for three (3)
consecutive terms

(c) The Chairmen of Committees can serve for three (3)
consecutive terms, except for the Chairman of the
Compensation Committee who can serve for a
maximum of five (5) consecutive terms.

Committee Members

Members can sitfora maximum of five consecutive years with an
option to extend the term limit by two years. These members are
eligible to be re-elected one year after the seven-year
consecutive stint. Past Board Chairmen should automatically sit
on the Executive Committee for the year after demitting office as
Chairman.

There is no term limit for members of the Regulatory and Market
Oversight Committee and the Member Dealer Admissions
Committee.

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

Age Limits

The JSE has no maximum age limit for members sitting on the
Board. Howeverthe minimum age limitis 18 years.

Transparency

Directors are required to provide to the Corporate Governance and
Nomination Committee information as it relates to business
dealings, board affiliations and any other information that would
pose a conflict of interest.

Accounting Standards

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Board is governed by the standards
as communicated from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Jamaica.

Ethics

The Jamaica Stock Exchange currently maintains ethics and
confidentiality requirements for Directors and these are posted on
the Website: www.jamstockex.com.

These Principles and Practices were reviewed in 2017 and are available on our
website - www.jamstockex.com

1

2013
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GUIDELINES TO DETERMINING
INDEPENDENCE OF BOARD DIRECTORS

The Board should determine whether the director is independent in character and judgement and whether there are
relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appearto affect, the director's judgement.

The Board should state its reasons if it determines that a director is independent notwithstanding the existence of
relationships or circumstances which may appear relevantto its determination, including if the director:

«  Hasbeenanemployee of the company or group within the last five years

e Has,orhashad withinthe lastthree years, material business relationship with the company either directly, or as
a partner, shareholder, director or senior employee of a body that has such a relationship with the
company

*  Hasreceived or receives additional remuneration from that company apartfrom a director's fee, participates
in that company’s share option plan or a performance-related pay scheme, or is a member of the company’s
pension scheme

e Has closefamily ties withany ofthe company's advisors, directors or senior employees

*  Holds cross-directorship or has significant links with other directors through involvementin other companies
orbodies

*  Represents asignificant shareholder

»  Hasserved onthe board for more than nine years from the date of their first election.

12
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DIREGTORY' REPORT

The Directors submit herewith the Audited Statements for the Jamaica Stock Exchange and its wholly owned subsidiary, the Jamaica Central
Securities Depository for the year ended December 31, 2018 along with the accompanying notes as follows:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss), Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Operating Income for the year was $1.4 billion compared to 2017 of $991.2 million, an increase of 40.4% over 2017. Investment Income was
$19.1 million for 2018 comparedto $16.3 million for 2017.

Total Expenses for the yearincreased by 22.3% to $817.4 million compared to $668.2 millionin 2017.

Total Consolidated Balance Sheet Assets of the Group as at December 31, 2018 were $1.5 billion compared to $1.3 billion in 2017, while
Consolidated Shareholders equity increased from $948.8 millionin 2017 to $1.1 billion, up 18.6%.

7 J‘-*\f“‘
T —

Chairman

13
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Mr. lan McNaughton - Chairman

Mr. McNaughton is the Managing Director
of Barita Investments Limited. With a BSc.
in Management Studies from the
University of the West Indies and a MBA
from Nova Southeastern University, he
possesses over thirty years of experience
in the areas of Finance, Information
Systems and Human Resource
Management, garnered at major
international manufacturing, sales and
distribution entities.

He serves as Company Secretary for Barita
Investments Limited and is the Chairman
of the Jamaica Stock Exchange and a
Director of the Jamaica Central Securities
Depository.

An avid footballer, Mr. McNaughton also
sits on the board of the Harbour View
Football Club.

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”
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Mr. Gary Peart - Deputy Chairman

Mr. Gary Peart joined Mayberry Investments
Limited in May 2005 as Chief Executive Officer after
developing his management techniques
throughout the financial industry over the course of
about 20 years. During this time, he gained
experience in almost every business line, including
Corporate Finance, Equity, Fixed Income and
Treasury Management, all of which prepared him
for his currentrole as CEO.

Mr. Peart was appointed to the Board of Directors of
Mayberry Investments Limited in 2006, and has
served as Director at several other well-known
Jamaican entities. Currently, Peart sits on the Board
of Lasco Financial Services, Lasco Distributors
Limited, IronRock Insurance Company, Supreme
Ventures Limited and is the Deputy Chairman on
the Board of Jamaica Stock Exchange.

Mr. Peart currently serves as an officer of the
Jamaica Securities Dealers Association.

He is a member of the Assets and Liabilities and
Policy Committees of Mayberry Investments
Limited.

Beyond the business world, Mr. Peart a member of

Mr. Lissant Mitchell

Mr. Lissant Mitchell has over 20 years’
experience in the local financial industry.
He joined Scotia Investments in October
2007 as Senior Vice President Treasury
and Capital Markets and was promoted to
Chief Operating Officer in October 2010,
and appointed Senior Vice President
Wealth Management — Scotiabank Group
Jamaica and Chief Executive Officer —
Scotia Investments Jamaica Limited,
November1,2011.

Lissant has served as the President of the
Primary Dealers Associationand Secretary
of the Jamaica Securities Dealers
Association. He sits on the Scotiabank's
and Scotia Investments' Asset and Liability
Committees as well as the Group's
Managed Funds Investment Committee.
He is also a director of Scotia Investments
Jamaica Limited, Scotia Asset
Management Jamaica Limited and Scotia
Caribbean Income Fund.

the Rotary Club of St. Andrew North.

Mr. Devon Barrett

Mr. Barrett has been at the helm of Victoria
Mutual Wealth Management (VMWM) since
2008. His primary areas of focus include
conceptualizing and implementing the
strategic direction of the Company,
managing the Company’s balance sheet,
ensuring compliance with all regulatory
requirements and managing the growth in
profitand shareholders’ value.

Prior to his tenure at VMWM, he served in
senior positions at several financial
institutions including Capital and Credit
Securities Limited and the Union Bank of
Jamaica Limited, formerly Citizen’s Bank. He
has over 20 years of experience in managing
foreign currency investments and deposits
portfolios, negotiating foreign exchange and
money market deals and ensuring consistent
growthin the respective client bases.

Mr. Barrett holds an MBA from the Nova
Southern University and a B.Sc. in
Management Studies from the University of
the West Indies.

15
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DIRECTORS

Mtr. Kevin Donaldson

Kevin's journey at Sagicor started at the acquired Manufacturers Sigma as an investment
analyst in 2003, he rose steadily through the ranks with many achievements along the
way including building the equities unit of Pan Caribbean Financial Services and leading
innovation by creating the first venture and corporate debt funds for the local market.

In 2011, Kevin joined the senior management team at Grace Kennedy Group, where he
worked on mergers/acquisitions and capital allocation. Kevin re-joined Sagicor
Investments in 2016 and was responsible for the Fund Management and Capital Markets
Division where he managed over US$800 million in assets. He was appointed Acting
General Manager in October 2017, with responsibility for the overall operations of
Sagicor Investments Jamaica Limited. In January 2018, Kevin was then appointed CEO of
Sagicor Investments and to the Leadership team of Sagicor Group Jamaica.

Kevin has over 17 years' experience in the financial industry, spanning several areas of the
industry such as Insurance, Investment Banking, Treasury and Research at both the local
andinternational levels.

Kevin has an MBA (distinction) in Banking and Finance from Mona School of Business, a
BSc in Economics from the University of the West Indies. He is a Director of Elite
Diagnostics, Treasurer of the Jamaica Security Dealers Association and the Treasurer for
Wolmer's Old Boys Association.

Dr. Derrick McKoy, C.D., J.P.

Dr. Derrick McKoy is an Attorney-at-Law in Kingston, Jamaica. He is a former Contractor General of
Jamaica and a former Dean of the Faculty of Law, University of the West Indies, Mona Campus. He is a
Member to the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, and a Fellow of the Asian Institute of Alternative
Dispute Resolution.

Derrick holds a doctorate in law from the University of Leicester, a doctorate in Business Administration
from Nova Southeastern University, an LLM in International and Comparative Law from University
College London, the MBA from Barry University, and the LLB from the University of the West Indies. He s
also a graduate of the Norman Manley Law School. He was a Commonwealth Scholar, and in 1999 he
participated in the US International Visitors Program on “The role of Ethics in Business and Government.”
He has been nominated to Sigma Beta Delta International Honour Society.

He has participated in Penn State Management Development Courses, U.S. Coast Guard International
Maritime Law Enforcement Training, and the Commonwealth Association of Corporate Governance’s
course for directors.

Derrick serves on several public and private boards. He chairs the Fair Trading Commission, the Jamaica
Antidumping and Subsidies Commissioner, and the Duke of Edinburg Awards Scheme in Jamaica. He is a
member of the Integrity Commission of Jamaica. In addition to the Jamaica Stock Exchange, he sits on the
boards of M/VL Stockbrokers Ltd and the Jamaica Youth Business Trust. He was a founding member of the
Jamaica Chapter of Transparency International, and from 2006 to 2015 he was a member of the All Island
Electricity Appeals Tribunal, Jamaica.

In 2016, Derrick was awarded the Order of Distinction, in the rank of Command (CD), for Outstanding
Contribution to the Legal Profession and for Public Service in Jamaica.

(Cont’d on next page)
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Julian Mair

With over 20 years of experience in the financial services sector,
Julian currently operates as JMMB’s Group Chief Investment
Strategist. In addition to his position at JMMB, he has played a
significantrole in the development of Jamaica’s capital market.

His work experience includes positions at foremost Jamaican
financial institutions, as Head of Treasury and Investment Services
at Dehring, Bunting and Golding Limited (now Scotia Investments
Jamaica Limited) and Senior Trader and Cambio Manager at JMMB.
In addition, he has partnered and consulted with various
international financial institutions and the Government of Jamaica,
in structuring Global Bond Issues. A former Managing Director of
Lets Investment Limited, his leadership resulted in the boutique
operation becoming a global player in the trading of internationally
issued securities.

A founding member and current Vice-President of the Jamaica
Securities Dealers Association (JSDA), Julian also serves various
institutions as a director, including JMMB Securities Limited, ]IMMB
International Limited, JMMB Puesto deBolsa and Factories
Corporation of Jamaica.

Mr. Steven Whittingham

Mr. Steven Whittingham is the Group Chief Investment Officer for GraceKennedy Limited and is a member
of the company’s Executive Committee. He works closely with the Group CEO to formulate strategy, ensure
effective execution of key strategic initiatives and oversees global Mergers and Acquisitions activities. He is
also the Managing Director of GK Capital Management, the investment and advisory subsidiary of
GraceKennedy.

Steven was previously the President of First Global Financial Services Limited (FGFS), at the time one of
Jamaica’s leading diversified financial institutions.

Before joining the GraceKennedy Group, Steven was the Managing Director of the Shell licensee in Jamaica,
the country’s largest downstream petroleum distribution business. Steven has significant Mergers and
Acquisitions experience, acquiring and operating multiple enterprises in Jamaica as well as working for
Morgan Stanley in their Investment Banking Group in London. Steven began his career at BlackRock in New
York focusing on institutional fixed income asset management.

Steven attended the University of Pennsylvania where he completed a dual degree program, earning a
Bachelor of Science in Systems Engineering from the School of Engineering and Applied Science and a
Bachelor of Arts in Economics from the College of Arts and Sciences. He received his MBA from the Harvard
Business Schoolin 2008 where he was awarded the Morgan Stanley Fellowship.

Steven is currently a director of the Jamaica Stock Exchange and multiple GraceKennedy subsidiaries
including GraceKennedy Foods USA LLC and GK General Insurance Company Limited. He has also served as a
Director on several other private and public sector boards including Jamaica Promotions Corporation Ltd.
(JAMPRO), National Road Operating and Constructing Company Ltd. (NROCC), the Jamaica Manufacturers’
Association, the Fisheries Management and Development Fund and HEART Trust/NTA.

Heis married with three children.
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Mr. Steven Gooden

Mr. Steven Gooden is the Chief Executive Officer of NCB Capital Markets Limited, which under his leadership
has expanded into the southern and eastern Caribbean via the establishment of hubs in the Cayman Islands,
Trinidad and Tobago and Barbados. His strategic focus is to drive product penetration throughout the Group
andto expand the company's reach across the region.

Steven's ascension to executive management was at 26 years old when he was appointed General Manager
for one of Jamaica's leading fund management companies. In 2009, he rejoined NCB Capital Markets as Vice
President, Investments and Trading where he successfully integrated the investment management
functions of the Group's subsidiaries with combined assets exceeding US$2billion.

Stevenis a holder of the Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) designation, has a Master's Degree in Finance and
Economics, a Bachelor's degree in Economics and Accounting, and has received many accolades in the areas
of research and portfolio management. He has also participated in executive development courses at
Chicago Booth and Wharton Business Schools covering Strategy, Change Leadership and Mergers &
Acquisitions.

Steven sits on the Board of Directors of several companies within the NCB Group, the Jamaica Stock
Exchange Limited and the Caribbean Mezzanine Fund. Additionally, he is the Chairman of NCB Global
Finance (T&T) Ltd, NCB Capital Markets (Barbados) Limited and Elite Diagnostics Limited, as well as
President of the Jamaica Securities Dealers Association and Wolmer's Old Boys Association.
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Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest; C.D., J.P.

Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest is the Managing Director of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) and Director
of both its subsidiaries. Her mandate is to continue the process of developing the JSE Group and
particularly the Exchange, in an atmosphere of transparency and fairness while utilizing appropriate
technologyin providing the greatest possible efficiencies to the market.

Mrs. Street Forrest has a wealth of experience having worked in senior management positions at
varying private and public sector organizations here in Jamaica and overseas. It is under her
stewardship that the JSE became demutualized and the US Denominated Market and the Junior Market
were launched. She also spearheaded the Registrar Division of the Jamaica Central Securities
Depository (JCSD) when she served as General Manager for this subsidiary of the JSE. Today, Mrs.
Street-Forrest is a highly in-demand speaker, having given presentations at many local, regional and
international conferences and seminars for the securities markets and financial services industry.

Mrs. Street Forrest attended the University of the West Indies, Mona, where she read for the Bachelors
Degree in Management Studies and later gained her Masters in Business Administration at the Barry
University in Florida.

In 2016 Mrs. Street Forrest was conferred with the honour of the Order of Distinction in the Rank of
Commander (CD) in recognition of her outstanding leadership in the growth of the Jamaica Stock
Exchange. In that same year she also received the Afroglobal Excellence Award for Global Impact from
Canada for exhibiting great leadership, vision, integrity and commitment to excellence.

Sheis a Justice of the Peace and serves as a Director for the Good Samaritan Inn, a Christian outreach
aimed at uplifting the poor and marginalized.
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Miss Dian Black

Ms. Dian Black is the Principal
Director of the Debt Management
Branch (DMB) in the Ministry of
Finance & the Public Service and
has over 15 years' experience
dealing with public debt-related
affairs.

She is responsible for leading the
strategic and operational
activities of the DMB in raising
adequate levels of funding to
satisfy the Government's
budgetary needs, while balancing
the trade-offs in costs and risks. In
her capacity as PD, she gives policy
advice on debt management
matters to senior officials in the
Ministry and provides the
necessary interface between the
JSE and the Government.
Similarly, Ms. Black represents the
Government of Jamaica on
matters relating to publicdebt.

Mr. Livingstone Morrison - Chairman

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Kiddoe is an Enterprise Consultant, with experience
in Corporate Governance, Accounting, Management,
Accreditation Systems and procedures and Electrical
Engineering. He is also a trained Family Business
Consultant. He is a part-time lecturer in Management
at the University of Technology, Jamaica and was a
member of the project management team for a
US$42.6 Million project funded jointly by the
Government of Jamaica, the Caribbean Development
Bank and the University of Technology, Jamaica
(UTech).

Mr. Kiddoe is Chairman of the Professional Engineers
Registration Board, a member of the Board of Directors
of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) representing the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica (ICAJ),
Chairman of the Board of the Jamaica Central Securities
Depository Ltd, a subsidiary of the JSE, Chairman of the
Board of Governors of the JSE e-Learning Campus, and
a member of the Public Accountancy Board (PAB). He is
a member of the Practice Monitoring Committee of the
PAB and serves on a number of the sub-Committees of
the Board of the Jamaica Stock Exchange, including the
Regulatory and Market Oversight, Audit and Corporate
Governance Committees

Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee (RMOC)

Mr. Livingstone Morrison is the Deputy Governor of the Bank of
Jamaica with responsibility for Administration and Technical
Services, Finance and Technology and Payment System and

Risk Management.

Mr. Morrison joined the staff of the Bank of Jamaica in 1982
and worked for several years in the Financial Institutions
Supervisory Division. Between 1998 and 2002, Mr. Morrison
served as the Division Chief of the Finance and Technology
Division, with core responsibilities for strategic management

of the accounting, finance,

information and

communication technology functions of the Bank. In 2011, he
assumed responsibility for the Administration and Technical
Services Division in addition to the Finance and Technology and

Payment System and Risk Management Division.

Mr. Morrison chairs the Regulatory and Market Oversight
Committee and is also a Director of the Jamaica Central
Securities Depository. He studied at the University of the West
Indies and University of Oxford and holds a master’s degree in

Accounting.

19

2013



M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Matthew A. Hogarth, LL.B (Hons.)

Mr. Matthew Hogarth is a Partner at MH&CO. specializing in the areas of banking, finance,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate structuring and governance, taxation, trusts, real
estate and business advisory.

Throughout his career, Mr. Hogarth has handled Initial Public Offerings (IPOs), high-value
private equity and debt transactions in addition to corporate bank loan transactions for
numerous international blue chip companies, private business and legal audits and has
acted in numerous cross-border matters including the management and strategy of
insolvency and receivership assignments, including advising the Liquidator or Receiver on
legal issues. Mr. Hogarth also has considerable experience with both residential and
commercial real estate transactions, including real estate investment vehicles and
structures.

Mr. Hogarth has a reputation for being solution-oriented, detailed, thorough and for his
proficiency at creating practical corporate structures that marry business and the law.

Mrs. Janet E. Morrison

Mrs. Janet Morrison is called to the Jamaican Bar. Her practice is primarily in
the areas of Corporate and Commercial Law. A graduate of the University of
the West Indies and the Norman Manley Law School, Janet also holds a
Masters Degree in Commercial and Corporate Law from the University of the
West Indies.

Janetisamember of the board of the Jamaica Stock Exchange and isa member
of the board's Executive Committee, the Regulatory & Market Oversight
Committee and former chair of the Corporate Governance & Nomination
Committee. She is listed in International Financial Law Review 1000 (IFRL
1000) as one of the world's leading lawyers.

Janet is a member of the council of the General Legal Council of Jamaica, the
regulatory body of the legal profession. She was one of the Jamaican Bar
Association's members who appeared before the Joint Select Committee of
Parliament in deliberations on the passage of the new Companies Act, 2004.
She was a member of the Insolvency Law Reform Committee which
deliberated on the reform of the insolvency laws of Jamaica which culminated
in the enactment of the Insolvency Act, and, she is currently a member of a
sub-committee of the Board of the Jamaica International Financial Services
Authority reviewing a suite of draft legislation to form the legal framework for
the establishment of an international financial services centre in Jamaica. She
has presented at several conferences on Corporate Governance, the Pensions
Act and the Companies Act and has contributed legal commentaries and
articles in the Jamaican press. She is a former associate tutor at the Norman
Manley Law School, Mona Campus, in company law and is a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators.
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ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

There are five Alternate Directors \
who have been approved

by the Directors of the Exchange.

These are:

1. Mrs. Rita Humphries-Lewin
alternate to Mr. lan McNaughton
2. Mr. Christopher Berry
alternate to Mr. Gary Peart
3. Mr. Ed McKie
alternate to Dr. Derrick McKoy
4. Mr. Andrew Leo-Rhynie
alternate to Mr. Steven Whittingham
5. Mr. Eric Scott
alternate to Mr. Garth Kiddoe

JSE BOARD COMMITTEES
A\ 2018/2019 N

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Rule Based
Chairman: Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Devon Barrett

Miss Dian Black

Mr. Steven Gooden

Mr. Livingstone Morrison

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Chairman: - Mr. lan McNaughton (Atternate Mrs. Rita Humphries-Lewin)
r. Gary Peart (Alternate Mr. Christopher Berry)

Miss Dian Black

Mr. Matthew Hogarth

Mr. Livingstong Morrison

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Chairman: - Miss Dian Black

Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Julian Mair

Mrs. Janet Morrison

Mr. Steven Whittingham

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

COMPANY SECRETARY

Roxanne R, Hutchinson - Company Secretary

Roxanne was appointed to the post of Company
Secretary of the Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited
(the “Company”) on April 3, 2017 after serving for
over four (4) years as Legal Officer of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In her role as Company
Secretary she has responsibility for dealing with
compliance and regulatory matters relating to the
Company and providing legal and professional
advice to the Board of Directors.

Roxanne holds a Bachelor of Laws (Hons.) from the
University of London, and is a qualified and
practicing Attorney-at-Law who specializes in
Company, Trustand Commercial Law.

2013

2018/2019

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Chairman: Mr. lan McNaughton (Alternate Mrs. Rita Humphries-Lewin)
Mr. Gary Peart

Mr. Steven Gooden

Mr. Julian Mair

Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest

LISTING COMMITTEE (Rule Based

Chairman: - Mr. lan McNaughton (Alternate Mrs. Rita Humphries-Lewin)
Mr. Gary Peart

Mir. Steven Gooden

Mr. Matthew Hogarth

Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Kevin Donaldson

MEMBER DEALER ADMISSION COMMITTEE
Chairman: - Mrs. Janet Morrison

Miss Dian Black

Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Matthew Hogarth

Mr. Livingstone Morrison
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REGULATORY & MARKET OVERSIGHT
COMMITTEE (Rule Based

Chairman:  Mr. Livingstone Morrison
Miss Dian Black

Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Matthew Hogarth

Mrs. Janet Morrison

RULES COMMITTEE

Chairman: - Mr. lan McNaughton

(Atternate Mrs. Rita Humphries-Lewin)

Mr. Matthew Hogarth

Dr. Derrick McKoy (Alternate Mr. Ed McKie)
Mrs. Janet Morrison

Mr. Steven Whittingham

Approved July 18, 2018
Last Upaated: March 18, 2019

NB: Committees subjct to change due to
resignations of Directors
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GROUP MANAGEMENT TEAM

Andrea Kelly
General Manager, JCSD,
JCSD Trustee Services Limited

Michelle Sirdar
Manager, Registrar
Services

Marlene Street Forrest
Managing Director, JSE

(Cont’d on next page)
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GROUP MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mr. Andrae St. P. Tulloch
Acting Chief Regulatory
Officer

Samuel Parkes

Principal JSE e- Campus

Roxanne R. Hutchinson
Company Secretary - JSE

Suzette Whyte Legal Officer - Executive Office

Financial Controller (Cont’d on next page)
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GROUP MANAGEMENT TEAM

Riccalya Robb
Manager, Market
Operations & Trading

Suzette McNaught
Manager, Information
Technology & Systems

Neville Ellis
Marketing &
Communication
Manager

(Cont’d on next page)
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GROUP MANAGEMENT TEAM

Doreen Parsons Smith
Manager, Human Resources

Suzette Pryce
Manager- Retail
Repo Division

Kadyll G. McNaught-Hermitt
Manager, Depository
Service Unit
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2018 Regulatory & Market Oversight Committee (RMOC)

Mr. Livingstone Morrison
Chairman

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

_1The Jamaica Stock Exchange's (JSE) 2018 Annual Report once again presents the

perfect opportunity to engage our stakeholders on the activities pursued by the
L Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee (RMOC) during the year. The RMOC, which
is comprised of independent directors of the JSE, is directly responsible for the oversight of the
Exchange's Regulatory Programme. Oversight responsibility includes:

|-

* Reviewing the Regulatory and Market Qversight Division's (RMOD) operational
engagement as it pertains to the daily surveillance and compliance monitoring of the
market,

¢ Consideration of rule addition and amendment proposals that are necessary to
preserve marketintegrity, and

* Reviewing existing policies and procedures in an effort to strengthen the JSE's

regulatory framework.

The RMOC met on ten (10) occasions during the year, to review the RMOD's performance
including consideration of monthly reports from the Chief Regulatory Officer. The RMOD
identified Four Hundred and Eighty Six (486) market surveillance and compliance issues during
the year, representing an 18% increase in the number of issues handled when compared to the
412 cases that were handled in 2017. Notwithstanding the increase in the number of cases
handled in 2018 the RMOD closed Four Hundred and Eighty (480) issues and had a slightly
improved case closure rate of 99% when compared to 98% in 2017. The RMOD's performance
indicators overthe five (5) year period 2014-2018 are presented in Table 1 below.

Table 1 — Performance Indicators

Activity 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Compliance and Market Surveillance Issues handled 486 | 412 303 205 238
Percentage of Regulatory/compliance Issues Closed 9% | 98% 95% | 95% 98

Total Number of Enforcement Actions 49 62 60 60 31

Member-dealers timely filing of Monthly Statements % [ 9% | 9% | 9% | 97%
Member-dealers timely filing of Quarterly Statements 9B% | %% 94% | 100% | 98%
Member-dealers timely filing of Audited Statements 2% 9% | 75% | 58% | 85%

Main Market Companies timely filing of Unaudited Statements | 93% | 91% 9% | 95% | 96%
Main Market Companies timely filing of Audited Statements 78% | 80% 73% | 78% | 80%
Main Market Companies timely filing of Annual Report 78% | 76% 5% | 86% | 79%
Junior Market Companies timely filing of Unaudited Statements | 90% |  95% %% | 9% | 87%
Junior Market Companies timely filing of Audited Statements 8% | 81% 69% | 87% | 1%

Junior Market Companies timely filing of Annual Report 66% | 77% 74% | 68% | 48%
Main Market Companies timely filing of Trade Notices %% | 97% 89% | 85% | NA
Junior Market Companies timely filing of Trade Notices 86% | 88% 84% | 66% | N/A

Key N/A — data on compliance was not available or being maintained for the period

(Cont’d on next page)
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The increase in surveillance issues handled in 2018 was due to the
continued implementation of the RMOC strategy to strengthen and
monitor the regulatory requirements of the JSE. Based on the more
stringent requirements that were implemented in May 2017, an
increase in the number of issues handled in 2018 relative to 2017 was
expected.

The data provided in Table 1 above, confirms the success of the
compliance programme for Member-Dealers and Main Market
Companies of the JSE as it pertains to the timely filing of financial
statements, with improvements noted for Member-Dealer Quarterly
Financial Statements as well as Main Market Companies Unaudited
Financial Statements and Annual Reports. Notwithstanding the use of
reminder letters to foster compliance to market requirements, there has
been deterioration in the compliance standards for Junior Market
Companies. Consideration is currently being given to the establishment
of additional enforcement tools for the Junior Market in order to
promote improvementin compliance levels.

Rule Development
In addition to the review of operational activities, consideration was
given to fifteen (15) rule amendment proposals that were submitted for
review and adoption. Of the fifteen (15) rules that were reviewed, seven
(7) were considered suitable for adoption and were passed and
incorporated in the rules of the Exchange in 2018. With the integration
of the amendments to the rules of the JSE, the Exchange will be better
ableto:

1. Supportcompliance withimproved Corporate Governance;

2. Ensure higher standards for qualification of member-dealer
representatives and improve customer service delivery to
retailinvestors,
Strengthen the Exchange's market surveillance and
enforcement capabilities to monitor and impose sanctions for
unauthorised access to its trading platform, and
4. Promote continued growth and development of the market.
The seven (7) rules that were passed during the year are as follows

1. JSE Main Market Rule 201 ( E) — Qualification of Member-
Dealers;
JSE Main Market Rule Appendix 15 — JSE Mandatory
Competency Programme for Obtaining Representative

2.

Status;

3. JSE Main Market Rule Appendix 14 — Additional Fines and
Penalties;

4. JSE Main Market Rule 230 — List of Traders;

JSE Junior Market Rule 506 — Corporate Governance
Guidelines;

4 “Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”
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6.
7.

JSE Main Market Rule Definitions — Approved Entities; and
JSE Junior Market Rule 505 (4) — Mentors.

Mention must be made of the work that commenced in 2018 to further
bolster Corporate Governance standards across both the Main and
Junior Market of the JSE, particularly as it relates to the market's
expectation of the composition and functions of listed companies' Audit
and Remuneration Committees. As part of the exercise the RMOD was
charged with the task to engage listed companies on a proposed
amendment to the rules pertaining to the Audit Committee for both the
Main and Junior Market and on Junior Market Companies'
Remuneration Committee. We use this opportunity to thank listed
companies for their valuable input, which we will duly consider in
finalizing an amendment that accords with international best practices.
Other rule reviews that commenced in 2018, which will be finalized in
2019 relates to JSE's Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors and Senior Executives of Listed Companies and JSE Rule
410 - Communication of Amendment to Financial Statements.

Improving the Efficiency of the JSE's Rule Amendment Process

One of the key strategic outlooks of the RMOC is the continued
strengthening of the rules of the JSE to support its operations and the
efficiency of Jamaica's Capital markets. The programme continued
during 2018 with the passing of new rules as mentioned above
supported by keen examination of the overall process for Rule
Amendments. The examination, which involved the Financial Services
Commission (FSC), who is also a key stakeholder in the process,
identified steps that could be taken to improve the efficiency of the
process. Arising from the exercise the JSE and the FSC has
implemented measures that are in keeping with the Securities Act of
Jamaica that will see an improved turnaround rate for the review and
processing of rules. Against this background the RMOC can assure its
stakeholders that we now have in place a more agile process that will
allow us to adequately address changes in the market.

Strengthening the RMOD's Risk Assessment Processes

In ensuring the effectiveness of the JSE's Regulatory Programme, the
RMOC has encouraged the adoption of a risk based approach across
the spectrum of the RMOD's operation. During the year the RMOC
undertook a review of the Division's processes for listed company
compliance, which included the review of listed company's financial
filings to the JSE. From the review, a qualitative risk based assessment
policy was developed, which will support the Division's review of listed
companies filings during high volume periods. The policy, which will be
implemented in 2019, will see the JSE obtaining improved information
on the compliance status of each listed company as it pertains to

(Cont’d on next page)
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financial filing and will aid in the development of targeted measures to
address concerns that are observed.

Conclusion

In anticipation of the JSE's 50" anniversary, which will be celebrated in
2019, itisfitting to mention that since the RMOC's creation in 2007, the
Committee has been in existence for over 10 years and celebrated the
milestone of holding its 100" meeting on February 22, 2018. This is a
testament to the JSE Board's unwavering commitment to the existing
framework that allows for independence of regulatory decisions and the
separation of the JSE's regulatory and commercial functions. It is also
evidence to the commitment of present and past members of the
Committee in working to preserve the integrity and reputation of the
market inthe interest of the Jamaican public.

Finally | would also like to thank the RMOD's team for the exemplary
work done during the year. In being a member of the RMOC since its
inception, | believe that | am qualified to judge that the unit has not
relented from its drive and tenacity to strive for operational excellence in
the performance of its duties. Thanks must also be extended to all
stakeholders who have shown keen interest in the affairs of the market
and who have assisted us in ensuring that the market operates to the
highest principles of fairness and transparency. In the coming year we
will continue to strive for operational excellence in the delivery of our
services to you with the ultimate goal of preserving your confidence in
the market.

Mr. Livingstone Morrison.
Chairman

4 “‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”
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& NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The JSE Corporate Governance and Nominations Committee (the Committee)
infulfilling its oversight responsibilities met six (6) times during the 2018 period
and undertook and in some cases, completed the following tasks, some of
which were started in the previous year:

Board Charter

The crafting of a Board Charter aimed at ensuring that the Board has a frame of
reference to guide its adherence to good corporate governance. This activity,
which commenced in 2017 was completed in 2018 and was recommended to
the Board for approval. The Board accepted the recommendation of the
Committee and the Charter is now in effect.

Communication with Subsidiary Boards and Sub Committee
The Committee recognized that within the JSE Group, effective communication

between the main and the subsidiary boards is essential in ensuring that
information and decisions taken at the main board level are shared in a
seamless and efficient manner. The Committee therefore developed a
framework for communication between the Exchange and the subsidiaries
which was considered for adoption by the Board.

Corporate Governance Index (CGI)

The Committee discussed the CGI, which is a joint initiative between the PSOJ
Corporate Governance Committee and the Jamaica Stock Exchange to assess,
on the basis of a numerical code, the corporate governance performance of
listed companies. The objective of the CGl is to identify areas of deficiencies (if
any) in orderto improve corporate governance standards. Assessments are on
an ongoing basis by a committee established to monitor and evaluate the
participating listed companies and comprise representatives from the Mona
School of Business, the Jamaica Bar Association and the PSOJ Corporate
Governance Committee. This is an ongoing measurement and is subject to
review by the CGNS in 2019.

In keeping with the CGI Standards, we wish to disclose that $12.6m was paid
as feesto ourdirectorsin 2018.

Directors' Evaluation Process

Both Directors' Self-Evaluations and Directors' Peer Evaluations were
completed, the results of which were overall positive and were shared with the
Board. The Directors' attendance report for 2018 to Board and subcommittee
meetings was also completed which aided in the evaluation of the commitment
and performance of Board Members at Board and Committee levels. The
Subcommittee Evaluation Committee was developed and approved by the
Boardin2018.

In order to make the evaluation process more robust, it was agreed that the
evaluation questionnaires would include a question on independence. This tool
which was recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board, is
intended to be used to assess the director’s independence and each director is
now required to complete this questionnaire annually.

Included in the questionnaire are definitions for both “material business
relationship” and “material contractual relationship’’.

External Evaluation

The JSE is committed to an external evaluation of the Board's Performance. The
last such review was done in 2014 for the year 2013. Itis expected that one will
be donein2019.

JSE Corporate Governance Principles

The Corporate Governance Principles and Practice of the Exchange were
reviewed and certain changes were recommended by the Committee. Included
in this review is the “Process to determine the independence of a Director who
has served on the board for more than nine years”. A document was developed
which sets out the steps to be considered to determine the independence of
such director. This was recommended to the Board who approved the
procedure and itis now to be effected for the ensuing year.

Resignation & Nominations of Directors
During the reporting year 2018/2019 Mr.Rohan Miller resigned and was
replaced by Mr. Christopher Zacca, who subsequently resigned and was
replaced by Mr. Kevin Donaldson. Alternate Directors also were recommended
and approved by the Board. These are:

Mr. Andrew Leo-Rhynie, alternate to Mr. Steven Whittingham
e Mr. Eric Scott, alternate to Mr. Garth Kiddoe.

Invitations have been sent out for nominations to fill the vacancy left by Mr.
Mark Croskery of Stocks and Securities Limited. In order to strengthen
governance by improving the ratio of independent to non-independent
directors, the Committee recommended and the Board approved the decision
to invite an independent director with skill-sets in the area of Information
Technology and Marketing to fill this vacancy. Submissions are being reviewed.

| wish to take this opportunity to thank all the members of the Corporate
Governance Committee and especially the previous Chairperson, Mrs. Janet
Morrison who have done a tremendous job in elevating the Corporate
Governance standard within the Group.

The Members of the Corporate Governance and Nominations Committee are:

Miss Dian Black (Chair)

Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Julian Mair

Miss Janet Morrison

Mr. Steven Whittingham (alternate Mr. Andrew Leo-Rhynie)

Dian Black (Chairman)
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The Jamaica Stock Exchange and Its Subsidiaries

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Mandate of the Audit Committee

The mandate of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors
in ensuring the adequacy of the internal procedures of the companies
within the group, the integrity of the financial statements of those
companies, and ensuring compliance with legal and regulatory
reporting requirements. The Committee also serves as a conduit for
communication between the Board, the management team and the
internal and external auditors with respectto these areas.

Role and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee performs an important role in maintaining high
standards of accounting and financial reporting, consistent with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The Committee
ensures that the Board's and Management's fiduciary responsibilities
are conducted in an environment of integrity and transparency.

Meetings and Attendance

The Audit Committee is required to meet at least four (4) times per year.
However, during the year under review, thirteen (13) meetings were
held, with an average members' attendance of eighty (83%) percent.

Internal Controls

The Committee monitored the effectiveness of the organization's risk
management and internal control systems, ensuring that they are in
compliance with company's standards and international best practice,
including:

1. Reviewing the Company's operational policies and
procedures

Monitoring the Internal Auditor's scope of work, findings and
recommendations with a view to ensuring their
effectiveness.

Review management's responses and monitoring
implementation of remedial actions based on the Auditor's
recommendations

Ensuring there are no unjustified restrictions or limitations on
the Auditors' work.

2.

The internal audit function is sub-contracted to
PriceWaterhouseCoopers (PWC), which provides periodic reports in
accordance with the audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. For
the period 2018, the JSE received an overall rating of Excellent for its
audit review of the Group's policies and procedures. In keeping with the
Group's strategic initiatives, in 2019 audit activities will focus on areas
such as projects, general operations, financial operations, compliance
and Information Technology.

Compliance

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Company's system
for ongoing compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
monitored the results of management's investigation and follow-up
where any instances of non-compliance were detected. Considerable
effort was made including the contracting of professional services to
ensure that the Group was compliant with IFRS 9 and 15.

External Audit

The Committee reviewed the audit plan and the performance of the
external auditors in relation to applicable regulatory standards and
related reporting to the Board.. The Committee sought to ensure that
the Auditors received all the access, information and explanations that
they required to complete their course of work.

The Company's external auditors are Ernst & Young and they have
agreed to continue as auditors for the year 2019. In keeping with the
Group's policy to put to tender the contract for the services of an
external auditor every 7 years, this activity will commence in 2020.

Financial Statements

During the year, the Committee reviewed all quarterly reports and the
annual financial statements to ensure compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and regulatory requirements
before recommending them for the approval of the Board.

All activities were completed in good order and the Audit Committee
considers its mandate as having been satisfactorily fulfilled for the year
under review.

Audit Committee Composition

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Rule Based)
Chairman: Mr. Garth Kiddoe

Mr. Devon Barrett

Miss Dian Black

Mr. Kevin Donaldson

Mr. Steven Gooden

Mr. Livingstone Morrison

Independent Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Independent Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Independent Non-Executive

Chairm
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The Jamaica Stock Exchange and Its Subsidiaries

GOMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Gommittee of the JSE is made up exclusively of non-executive directors and is chaired by the Chairman of the
Board, Mr.lan McNaughton. Other members of the Committee are:

Chairman: Mr. lan McNaughton (Alternate Mrs. Rita Humphries-Lewin)
Mr. Gary Peart (Alternate Mr. Christopher Berry)

Miss Dian Black

Mr. Matthew Hogarth

Mr. Livingstone Morrison

The Committee's mandate is to make recommendations on the Company's framework of executive remuneration. The
Committee reviews and approves corporate goals in relation to the CEQ's compensation; evaluates the CEQ's performance in light
of the company's goals and objectives and makes recommendations to the Board with respect to executive and non-executive
compensation.

Directors'fees totaled $12.6 Millionin 2018 and represented a $0.2 Million increase from 2017, which was $12.4 Million.
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lan McNaughton
Chairman
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MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Mrs. Marlene Street Forrest
Managing Director
Jamaica Stock Exchange

was an awesome year for the JSE Group. When many markets globally
were going south, the JSE soared. According to Bloomberg, the
Exchange was ranked as the World’s Best Performing Exchange in
2018, when compared with ninety-one (91) other stock exchanges. We moved from sixth
(6" the previous year and our level of consistency is exceptional. The recognition as being

globally best in performance could not have been better timed as we approach our 50"
Anniversaryin2019.

This demonstrable success was reflected in all markets being active. The indices continued
to advance, recording growth of approximately 30% in the Main Market and 18% in the Junior
Market. Seventeen securities were listed across all markets in 2018.

2018 could be considered the year of active collaboration with the JSE Group actively
engaging our brokers, product developers, software providers and other stakeholders in
moving the group towards efficiency through the adaptation and use of more robust financial
technology, This is in readiness for the introduction of more products and services to the
market which is aimed at heightening customer satisfaction through product diversification
andimproved market confidence.

In 2018 we revisited many of our rules and systems and sharpened our process in order to
respond to the market which has been more responsive to new offerings both in respect to
investment and learning opportunities.

In keeping with our mandate to develop an ecosystem that lends itself to sustainability both
social and financial, much effort was spent in our development of the JSE Social Stock
Exchange aimed at collaborating with current players in the social sector to provide greater
confidence inthe process of harnessing and regulating social capital.

As we are aware that the Exchange Group plays a pivotal role in economic development, we
have been engaging our regional and global counterparts and expanding our footprint
outside of Jamaica in order to facilitate greater global connectivity through our markets.

Review of 2018 Performance

Our results as a Group were excellent. We saw heightened activities relating to business
reorganization and takeovers, coupled with the usual market activities such as stock-splits,
dividend declarations by many companies and rights issues. Companies also raised in
excess of $21.02 billion during the year outpacing our performance in 2017 by more than $5
billion.

While Business and Consumer Index continue to be high and we are still experiencing a
stable environment which have contributed to a positive performance of the Group, we also
give credit to a deliberate and comprehensive approach the JSE has taken in growing the
Group, through intensive and extensive market education programmes and the introduction
of valued added services aimed at market diversification and enrichment of customer
experience, We are continuing to explore other avenues for expansion.

(Cont’d on next page)
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The Group has grown because we have embraced the philosophy that
we must provide the best service to our members and partners even in
the most challenging times. We have received a good report on our
introduction of acompressed settlement cycle for transactions which is
now T+2 and we continue to work with our listed companies on the
Corporate Governance Index that was previously introduced. We have
listened to our shareholders and other market operatives regarding the
cost associated with multiple trades aimed at fulfilling one order and
during the year changed our invoicing methodology moving from a fee
associated with each transaction to a fee based on the value of the
transaction. This move has significantly reduced the cost of trading for
many investors and the elimination of the concerns relating to filling of
an order through multiple trades. Despite this, the Exchange will still
introduce 'All or None' when we move to the NASDQ trading and
surveillance platforms by late 2019.

We continue to pursue global and local initiatives and we are pleased to
announce that we are making inroads into listing Canadian companies
on our Exchange. We believe our successful navigation leading to our
obtaining participant status in the Canadian Depository for Securities
(CDS) will lead to further listings and cross-listings in 2019 and beyond
as we focus on global business development.

On the local market we have been encouraged by the government's
policy to divest some of its assets/companies to Jamaicans and the
announcement of Wigton Windfarms IPO have provided an extra-
special fillip for the Exchange. This energy we believe will be a positive
wind in our sail for 2019 when we look forward to the launch which we
believe will convert the silent majority into active investors.

We are now a Group with broader offerings: from equities to bonds,
US$ markets and an efficient and ever-growing back office and risk
management support for the market via the JCSD and the JCSD Trustee
Services Ltd. We are now focused on local and global business
development not just to expand our activities into new products and
services but also to attract global investments, listings and trading
activities to Jamaica.

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS

Economic Overview

The Economic Programme Oversight Committee (EPOC), in its
February 2019 release, stated that the GOJ has met all eight macro-
fiscal structural benchmarks for the November 2016 to December 2018
period. The GOJ has also met the fourteen structural benchmarks for
public sector transformation, public bodies and public service reform
through end-November 2018.
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For the period fiscal year April to December 2018, Revenues Grants
amounted to $448.8 billion exceeding the budgeted amount of $437.3
billion (+2.6%). Tax Revenues year over year increased by $35.6
billion (10.1%) from $353.1 hillion for the corresponding period in
2017. Expenditure for the April to December 2018 period was $11.6
billion below budget and Capital Expenditure increased by $14.4 billion
to $45.4 billion for the fiscal year.

The calendar year inflation rate for 2018 was 2.4% compared to the
calendar yearinflation rate of 5.2% for 2017

An unemployment rate of 8.7% was recorded for October 2018. This
represents a decline of 1.8% in comparison to the 10.5% recorded for
October 2017. The Employed Labour Force for October 2018 of
1,219,700 increased by 1.2% relative to October 2017. Notably, the
rate at which female employment increased was more than doubled
that of the increase in male employment.

On December 31, 2018, the Jamaican dollar closed at 127.72 to
$US1.00. This represents a decline of JA$2.6264 or 2.10% since the
start of the year. Treasury Bill yields for the month of December 2018
were 2.05% and 2.07% for the 90-day and 180-day instruments
respectively.

At the end of December 2018 the Net International Reserves (NIR)
stood at US$3.01 billion. This reflects a 6.23% decline over the
US$3.21 billionrecorded in2017.

These statistics reflect what has been achieved in the economy and this
has positively impacted the stock market.

Global Review of Stock Markets for 2018

According to CNN, markets around the world were battered by the trade
conflict between the United States and China, fears over rising interest
rates and geopolitical snafus like Brexit, resulting in declines recorded
by several exchanges.

The Dow was down 6.7%, the S&P 500 dropped by 7% and the Nasdaq
shed4.6%in2018.

The market damage in 2018 was most pronounced in China, where the
world's second largest economy felt the effects of a darkening trade
outlook and government attempts to rein in risky lending after a rapid
rise in debt levels. The Shanghai Composite entered a bear market in
June and declined by almost 25% in 2018. The Shenzhen Composite,
whichincludes many of the country's tech firms, dropped by more than
33% overthe same period. In Hong Kong, the Hang Seng Index declined
by 14%in2018.

(Cont’d on next page)
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The FTSE All-World index, which tracks thousands of stocks across a range of markets, plummeted 12% this year. It's the index's worst
performance since the global financial crisis, and a sharp reversal from a gain of nearly 25% in 2017. Frankfurt's DAX declined more than 18% in
2018. The main stock market in Milan, Italy, slumped 16% amid worries over spending plans proposed by the country's populist government.
Spain's IBEX dropped 15% and France's CAC 40 Index declined 11%in 2018. India's Sensex closed out the year with a gain of nearly 3% and Brazil's
Bovespaincreased by 15%

JSE MARKET PERFORMANCE IN 2018

Overallthe indices realized significant gains in comparisonto 2017.
In general, the indices continued to perform robustly in 2018. All of the indices advanced with the exception of one.

Onthe heels of being deemed the Best Performing Stock Exchange in the world in 2015, the Main JSE Index was again recognized by Bloomberg as
the Best Performing Index for 2018 from a pool of 94 national benchmarks.

Stock Market Statistics ‘ Value 2018 Value 2017 Change Change %
Main JSE Index 379,790.86 288,381.97 f 91,408.89 '31.70
All Jamaican Composite 416,842.73 316,516.11 ' 100,326.62 ' 31.70
Index

JSE Select Index 9,725.59 8,516.38 ' 1,209.21 f 14.20
JSE Combined Index 384,556.48 294,986.53 f§ 89,569.95 ' 30.36
Junior Market Index 3,246.84 2,732.06 ' 514.78 i 18.84
JSE USD Equities 159.61 166.17 l 6.56 l 3.95
Market Index

Market Capitalization 1.52 Trillion 1.16 Trillion ' 360.08 Million ' 30.95
(Combined Market)

Looking ahead into 2019, our immediate focus is that of continuing to develop the capital market through social and financial investments. We
believe it is necessary to have a community of investors in new projects and programmes aimed at moving the needle from anemic growth to a
robust economy in which all Jamaicans can enjoy prosperity. Our records speak volumes that the supply and demand side of the market is still very
much under-tapped. Companies want to raise capital as well as investors who need homes in which to invest. The latter is numerically evident as all
securities on the market continue to be over subscribed. The mission is therefore to continue a programme of assisting companies to prepare for
listing. Brokers and other market support organizations are also encouraged to examine an approach to reduce the cost of an IPO.

The energy is palpable and our programme to deliver new products and services, using Blockchain technology and more efficient platforms for an
integrated provider of back-office support remains ontrack for delivery into 2019 and beyond. The enhancement of our trading platformis a critical
component in achieving our goal and we move with determination to have this effected. We will ensure a world-class, that we continue to be bestin
class through our pursuit of engagement and collaboration both at the local and international levels.

Our Managers are proud of our achievements and we will provide further information in our segment dubbed 'Roll Call'.

| thank you once again for being our partners on our journey to serve with excellence.

2l
. ! g Ao
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Marlene J. Street I“'orrest
Managing Director, JSE
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JOE MANAGERS’ ROLL CALL

DEPARTMENTAL HIGHLIGHTS 2018

Information Technology

In keeping with the dynamic profile of the Exchange, the Information
Technology Unit continues to play a pivotal role in ensuring more
proficient and deliberate use of technology to strengthen the products
and service delivery of the organization. Through collaboration, this has
increased the awareness and visibility and has enabled all business
units to produce work of a higher standard and operate more effectively.

Strategically, the Exchange has leveraged more technology in an effort
to secure its long-term goals and objectives. In support of this,
Information Technology has been integral in extending the reach of the
varying systems, giving rise to a more cohesive, secure and robust
ecosystem, which in its simplest form, benefits all stakeholders. By
extension, this facilitates the Exchange in its mandate towards
implementing core business strategies and expansion of the service
portfoliosin2018 and beyond.

In 2018, while there were challenges we continued to maintain a vibrant
market. In order to ensure that the Exchange continues to maintain its
consistent performance, we have sought to introduce a New Trading
Platform, which will resolve the current issues and further strengthen
the Market. We remain committed to ensuring that we continue to
deliver consistent and reliable services while ensuring that the
technology employed is in a state of continuous improvement. This will
allow for the JSE to take advantage of emerging trends and technology
and by extension, the delivery of new products in 2019 and beyond.

We have made significant progress in the following areas and have
achieved several successesin 2018.

Successfulinitiatives during 2018:
1. Sourced anew Trading and Surveillance Platform
2. Started the development of the Jamaica Social Stock
Exchange Platform
Started implementation of a new Fund Management System
Pilot onthe Trading of Digital Currency
Mobile App for Apple devices
Online Trading Phase llI
a. Addition of other member dealers
Upgrade of Financial System—Phase 2

ook w

Projects to be implemented in 2019
1. New Trading Platform
2. Jamaica Social Stock Exchange Platform
3. Digital Currency Platform

4.
5.

Fund Management System
Online Trading Phase IV

b. Addition of other member dealers
a. Integration with new trading platform
b. Newfeatures

Ongoing Initiatives in 2019

1. Business Solutions geared towards achieving the group's
strategy

2. Business Continuity — continuous improvements including
data management solutions

3. IT Governance, Security, and Service Delivery — continuous
improvements

4.  Customer Service and Support - continuous improvements

5. Cyber Crime Security

The JSE Group prides ourselves in having an IT infrastructure that is
managed according to industry standards and best practices.
Consequently, the Group's technology unit will continue to leverage
successful standards and practices and to adopt new frameworks
where applicable. For the year 2019/20 we will continue to build out in
areas such as network and infrastructure, information security, risk
management, quality assurance and management information
systems.

Cyber Crime

Great emphasis will be placed on Cyber Grime Security.

Technology, information and cyber security risks continue to impact
financial institutions and other businesses in Jamaica as the threats
continue to increase in numbers and levels of sophistication. The
technology environment of the JSE is no exception and may be subject
to attacks, breaches or other compromises. Consequently, the JSE
continues to proactively monitor and manage these potential risks and
constantly updates and refine policies, procedures and programs as
threats emerge, in an effort to minimize disruptions and protect
systems. The JSE has also purchased insurance coverage to help
mitigate against certain potential losses associated with cyber
incidents.

We have taken steps to sensitize our employees through security
awareness sessions held twice per year and security tips on an ongoing
basis. As security is an ongoing activity, the JSE will further enhance
the security of the Company by embarking on a program in 2019 to
further strengthen our IT Risk Management practices. Cybersecurity is
asub-discipline of IT Risk Management and as we seek to reduce cyber
security risk and through this program, we will be leveraging successful
standards, best practices and new frameworks where applicable.
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Our team stands ready and remains committed to the initiatives to be
achieved in 2019 and will continue to expand its capacity to ensure that
the Group takes advantage of market opportunities through the
utilization of efficient and effective use of technology.

Marketing Activities

The Stock Exchange continued its strong focus on market education
and assisting companies on how to list on the markets, especially the
Junior Market in 2018. In order to make inroads into having more
Jamaicans investing in the markets, we continue our drive with our
“How to Buy and Sell Shares Series” which was quite successful in
2017 allowing us to leverage on that success. We were rewarded with a
5% increase in Investors in the market, moving from 7% in 2017 to 12%
in 2018. We also had 17 securities listed on the market for 2018. In
order to expand our reach, we intensified our social media presence
and our e-Campus arm has been active in spreading the message
aboutthe market.

We utilized multiple approaches to reach our different target audiences.
The objectives of these programmes as highlighted below are to garner
market engagement:

Regional Investments & Capital Markets Conference

The 2018 Regional Investments & Capital Markets Conference was a
spectacular one from the overall feedback received. The satisfied
participants used expressions such as: well organized, smooth flow,
well attended and very informative. There were 547 persons in
attendance on the Opening Night, up from 515 in 2017, a 6.0%
increase. There were 595 participants in attendance over the other two
full days of the Conference. The opening ceremony was broadcast live
for the first time by Jamaica Public Broadcasting Service. In total there
were eight different media houses represented throughout the three
days. Therefore, the message of the JSE was felt all around the world.

Stock Market Game for High Schools

DeCarteret College and William Knibb Memorial High School were
declared the champions of the 2017-2018 Stock Market Game for High
Schools and the Stock Market Game for Teachers, respectively. Kimani
Francis of DeCarteret College was awarded the 1* Place Winner among
the 52 participating high schools and Mr. Dwight Thompson 1 Place
Winner in the teachers' game, both having gained the highest returns in
their virtual stocks portfolios. The winners were at the Jamaica
Pegasus Hotel, on Wednesday, June 27,2018.

The Stock Market Game is a simulation game for trading stocks on the
Jamaica Stock Exchange platform. Itis designed to promote a better
understanding of the stock market and how it works. It is aimed at high
school students in 4" to 6" forms. Participation in the game strengthens
students' critical thinking skills, build confidence and their self-esteem.
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Most importantly, the Stock Market Game instills an understanding of
the need to save and invest at an early age.

High School Education Programme
The school programme gives students an understanding of:

e The role & functions of the stock market
e Theimportance of savings & investments
e Investment using stocks and

e The importance of financial literacy

Eighty-Six (86) high schools visited the Exchange in 2018, this number
has not changed from 2017. This is due to time and space constraints
which will be rectified in 2019.

JSE's Public Investor Qutreach

The JSE Public Investor Forum outreaches are designed to engage
Jamaicans across the length and breadth of the country on how the
stock market works and how Jamaicans can use this medium to invest
and create wealth.

In 2018, the JSE partnered with the Financial Services Commission
(FSC) to host three Public Investor Outreaches in the parishes of St.
Ann, Westmoreland, Hanover, St. James, St. Elizabeth and Clarendon.
We also partnered with the Jamaica police Corporative Credit Union to
spread the news across the island. The JSE on this initiative went to, St.
Catherine, St. Mary, Manchester and Kingston to spread the
information on the market. There were over 3,000 potential investors in
attendance at these outreaches. The Broker that accompanied us
continued the trend of opening broker accounts for persons at the
Public Outreaches. This initiative is bearing much fruit as persons
appreciate the convenience.

Corporate Qutreach

The JSE uses many avenues to excite persons to invest in the markets.
One of this avenue is the Corporate Outreach Programme. The
Corporate Qutreach is an exciting 40-minute presentation tailored for
employees in the Jamaican workforce to improve their understanding
of the stock market and the different ways they can create wealth using
this channel. The aim of the programme is to present to employees at
their workplace simple and concise information about how the stock
market works to benefit Jamaicans, thereby bringing the market
educationto them.

Throughout the year, the JSE team went on 30 corporate outreaches,
where over 1,500 persons were in attendance. This is a 50% increase
over 2017 and shows that many more persons are interested in
investing inthe markets.

(Cont’d on next page)
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National Investor Education Week-(NIEW)

The Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) hosted its 11th National Investor
Education Week (NIEW) from September 29 — October 4, 2018. The
week of activities are designed to strengthen public awareness about
the products and services of the Stock Market and its stakeholders. The
opportunities and benefits that are available for different participants,
companies, investors and the economic sectors of the country are
also highlighted during the presentations.

The JSE launched NIEW in 2007 with a mandate to educate the
population on the importance of savings and investments as the means
to wealth creation. The Stock Exchange recognizes that investment in
financial knowledge pays the best dividend and that persons who are
financially literate generally make better savings and investments
decisions. Economists worldwide agree that savings and investments
by individuals are important both for personal wealth creation and
economic growth.

The JSE through the NIEW is playing its part to encourage these very
important principles in the decision-making of all possible market
participants.

On September 29, 2018, a Thanksgiving Service was held at the
Portmore Seventh-Day Adventist Church to kick off the week of
activities. The other activities that followed were:

- Qutside Broadcast on Mello FIM, with host Barry G at the JSE

- Tuesday October 2 — Youth Forum and Public Qutreach at the
Jamaica Conference Centre

- Wednesday October 3 — Business Conference to engage
companies on how to list on the Junior Market. This activity
took place at the Jamaica Conference Centre,

- Thursday October 4 — Forum at Vista Print in Montego Bay to
engage the staff on how to buy and sell shares on the market.

There were over 2000 participants in these events and the message
aboutthe JSE is being spread far and wide.

Best Practices Awards

The Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) Best Practices Awards was
gstablished in 2004 by the Jamaica Stock Exchange. There are six (6)
categories of awards. An award is presented to the winners and 1st
and 2nd runners-up for each category.

The objectives of the Awards are to:

1. Provide an avenue to recognize Listed Companies and Member
Dealer in the securities  industry, who uphold best practices
standards.

2. Enhance the relationship between the JSE and its stakeholders.
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3. Create an awareness of the standards for best practices in the
areas to be adjudged. A nineteen-member Committee was
established to act as a Judging Panel for the Awards and this
panel has been increased to twenty-four.

NCB Financial Group Limited (NCBFG) topped the listed companies as
the Overall Winner of the 14" staging Jamaica Stock Exchange's (JSE)
Best Practices Awards and was awarded the Governor-General's
Award for Excellence. In the Junior Market category, Honey Bun
(1982) Limited captured the Governor-General's Award for Excellence,
and in doing so, has won the top trophy for the Junior Market, two
consecutive years; 2017 and 2016.

NGB Financial Group Limited was the winner of the coveted JSE/PSQOJ
Best Practices Award for Corporate Governance. This Award
recognizes companies that demonstrate and practice outstanding
corporate governance. GraceKennedy Limited was 1% Runner Up and
JMMB Group Limited and Scotia Group Jamaica Limited 2" Runners up
for their Corporate Governance practices. The JSE's 14" Best Practices
Awards was held at The Jamaica Pegasus Hotel on December 5, 2018.

Expos

The JSE took the opportunity to further spread the message about the
benefits of the Markets at the following events:

[. JBDC Small Business Expo

[Il. Math Expo

lll. Young Investor Expo — Utech

IV. JMAE Expo

V. MSMB Round Table Conference

Publications

The Exchange publishes a number of Market related publications aimed
at assisting investors, potential investors, academia, researchers and
the investment community to make more informed decisions and
generally to provide market updates. These publications are:

1. The Stock Market Review

2. The Pocket Book

3. The Yearbook

4. A Guide to the Jamaican Securities Markets

Bell Ringing Ceremony

The JSE established its “Bell Ringing Geremony” that offers companies
an opportunity to launch products, do name changes, launch books
and celebrate anniversaries in an effortto increase brand awareness. In
2018 there were seven Bell Ringing Ceremonies:

(Cont’d on next page)
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1. UN Women Belling Ringing Ceremony for Gender
Equality

Sir Henry Morgan Anglin Tournament

Unveiling of Jamaica Social Stock Exchange(JSSE)
Website/Platform

50" Anniversary Logo Launch

2.
3.

4.

Market Research Competition

The JSE Market Research Competition, which was formerly known as
the Broker Analyst Competition, is one where every quarter the JSE
invites analysts from the securities industry, tertiary institutions and the
media to submit analyses of listed companies based on the past
performance and future expectations. Participants conduct research,
perform analysis and prepare submissions on the selected company
using the JSE's required format.

Objectives of the Market Research Competition

To increase the interest and involvement of analysts and
observers in the Jamaican stock market through in-depth
analyses of the performance of listed companies.

To enhance the research, analysis and presentation skills of
the entrants, enabling them to better understand the market,
improve their communication skills and, in the case of broker
representatives, to better advise their clients.

To encourage listed companies to improve the content and
timeliness of the information provided to shareholders, while
encouraging shareholders to become more involved in these
companies.

To emphasize the Jamaica Stock Exchange's commitment to
providing public education onthe stock market.

To benefit the investing public through increased exposure to
market analysis.

To stimulate the interest and involvement of the wider public in
the stock market.

Sagicorand VM Wealth Management representatives reached the finals
of the 2016/17 Market Research Competition with VM Wealth
Management's Leovaughni Dillon emerging the winner and Sagicor's
Sharif Small—1st Runner Up.

THE JSE e-CAMPUS

Since its inception in 2010 the JSE e-Campus offers key training via our
e-learning platform which allows students the flexibility of attending
courses online. However, through our blended learning programme,
students also get the opportunity to interact with lecturers and tutors
during lively face-to-face sessions. Streaming access is also granted to
participants who are unable to physically attend the face-to-face
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sessions. Sessions are also recorded to allow participants the
opportunity to review lecture sessions as needed.

As the Campus continues to grow, so does the range of services
provided. The year 2018 proved to be very positive for the e-Campus
with quite afew noteworthy accomplishments.

The University Council of Jamaica granted accreditation to the e-
Campus' Post-Graduate Diploma in Financial Services Management
and we welcomed our 12" cohort of students to the e-Campus
fraternity.

The e-Campus began offering its newest Professional Certification
Program which s a series of courses providing in-depth study, enabling
participants to obtain the most up-to-date skills and information
needed to excel in their chosen field, or transition to a new career. The
certification programme includes an analysis of the type of work being
performed and the knowledge, skills and abilities (KSAs) required to
perform that work, as well as a 'needs-analysis' to assess gaps
between the required KSAs and current workforce capabilities.

There was increased demand for one of the JSE e-Campus flagship
program, ‘JSE Online Securities Course” which provides participants
with the necessary level of exposure to the relevant products and
services that the Securities Market has to offer . This course helps
participants to develop the knowledge skills and competencies needed
to make informed decisions and to increase their level of financial
literacy. This course has been accepted by the Financial Services
Commission (FSC) as an approved course of study for meeting
academic qualification requirements for registration under the
Securities Act as a dealer/investment advisor representative.

The e-Campus is now an official tuition provider of the ICSA qualifying
program of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators'
(ICSA). The ICSA qualifying program is specifically designed to qualify
participants for work in governance and compliance, and with the
required experience leads to the chartered status. Through the e-
Campus, exam preparation classes will be available in 2019.

The e-Campus continues to offer workshops on key topics such as
'Mergers and Acquisitions', 'Financial Regulations and Laws',
Fundamentals of Analyzing Financial Statements, Operational Risk
Management and Sales Management for Financial Institutions. . These
informative workshops were well-received based on the feedback
received at the end of each workshop. The e-Campus programs are
accredited by the CPD Certification Services out of London, England
and local certifications are also obtained from the Jamaican Bar
Association, the ICAJ and GLC.

(Cont’d on next page)
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The e-Campus has also begun to offer customized training workshops
for executive corporate clients to assist in meeting their employees'
training needs. The core Leadership Executive training program offered
is “The Director's Strategic Guide to Corporate Governance and
Leadership” in collaboration with The Private Sector Organization of
Jamaica (PS0J). The e-Campus has received a significant increase in
the demand for this service. As such, we continue to work with our
existing and new clients to provide the best quality training as we fulfil
the JSE e-Campus' mission of, “Providing High Quality Continuing
Professional Education, training and information in the area of financial
services in Jamaica and the Caribbean, mainly through e-Learning
Facilities and other appropriate technology.”

The e-Campus’ newest program DEAL-Disrupt. Engage. Accelerate.
Learn will be offered in second quarter 2019. D.E.A.L. is a deeply
collaborative, academically rigorous learning model that gives leaders
anew way to experience JSE e-Campus—uwhile working. Participants
will gain the flexibility to both advance their career and maintain job and
family commitments. This series of one day workshops, focuses on
leadership and innovation: enabling participants to gain the skills,
confidence, and support to enact true change to impact real-world
business challenges.

The JSE e-Campus looks forward to a productive and rewarding yearin
2019.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Ourinternal audit functions are outsourced to PricewaterhouseCoopers
(PwC). The JSE Group proactively responds to the recommendations
of the internal auditor for improvement to our operations. This has
enabled us to deliver much better services to our internal and external
customers and enhanced our risk mitigation programmes. In 2019 our
audit takes on an added dimension as PwC looks at the audit of the
Group's strategic initiatives.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

TEAM JSE

OUR MISSION - OUR TEAM

In our mission to align our people, structure, processes, culture and
leadership to our strategic objectives our main goal is to position the HR
functions as a strategic tool to ensure talent acquisition, workforce
planning and retention. One area of focus was the implementation of
Policies and Procedures in Sexual Harassment, Employees Code of
Conduct and Ethics, Grievance Procedure, Whistleblowing, Clean
Desk, and HIV Workplace Policy. Additionally, we continue to provide
the requisite avenues to promote staff development and creativity
through training via JSE's e-Campus, workshops and other advanced
professional development programmes. In 2018 the Group
concentrated on Project Management training which is a key
component of our growth and diversification strategy, and eleven team
members received certification in Project Management and Certified
Associate in Project Management.

We encourage employee engagement through the organization's
climate surveys, interactive team meetings and social activities and
2018 saw the emergence of JSE's Staff Social Committee. This
Committee was entrusted with the responsibility to align our culture
with our strategic objectives through staff engagement and social
activities. This Committee has positively contributed to team building
and has been instrumental in our quest to have a motivated and
prepared workforce in achieving our strategic objectives.

The JSE is cognizant of the importance of Gender Equality in the
Workplace and by extension, the Society, and as such we are now a
member of the Women's Empowerment Principles (WEPS) and part of
the global list of signatories for WEPs. Our vision in respect to Gender
Equality is resonated in our Managing Director's message to WEPs
which states “We are looking forward to embracing the day when
we will achieve gender balance in all spheres of society - businesses,
the workplace, the boardroom, government and of course, gender
balance in wealth”.

(Cont’d on next page)
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LORPORATE SOGIAL RESPONSIBILITY

he Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) in its business approach

ensures that it contributes to sustainable development by

delivering economic, social and environmental benefits for all
stakeholders. With this in mind the JSE shows its true commitment by
putting in place the necessary programmes to ensure that our
community is a part of our development. The Exchange's focus is on
the elderly, young adults and the children in the immediate communities
of downtown Kingston and its environs.

The Jamaica Social Stock Exchange (JSSE)

In the national and international sphere, the JSE will be launching its
Social Stock Exchange to ensure that it impacts the development of the
country in particular, and the region as a whole. The JSSE will be
launched in January 2019 at our Regional and Investments Conference
to be held atthe Jamaica Pegasus Hotel.

The JSSE, is a social program driven by the JSE's own practice of
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), in partnership with companies
listed on the JSE, international development partners, local donors and
donors in the Jamaican Diaspora. The JSSE, through this initiative, will
demonstrate a practical application of the five (5) P's of the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) with a People-
Centered approach of People, Planet, Prosperity, Partnerships and
Peace.

Believing in the Value proposition - “Sustainable Growth in the Social
Sector is good for business”, the JSSE will be implementing this
socially-oriented initiative in Phases.

The Jamaica Social Stock Exchange, JSSE, seeks to engage the entire
Jamaican economy in promoting the Social Capital Market, believing
that true development of any country happens in all areas of life and
facets of society.

The JSSE is a state-of-the-art virtual environment and a venue for the
process where the “socially responsible investor(s)”, people interested
in contributing and improving the quality of life in Jamaica, are enabled
to invest in wholesome projects that require public funding, and by
extension promote the socio-cultural economy and the protection of the
physical environment.

YOUTH OUTREACH

JSE's Youth Development Programme - Focused on Education

For the past six years the JSE has been involved in the Breakfast
programme at St. Michael's Primary School which over the years has
yielded significant results. Most importantly, St. Michael's have seen
significant improvement in their grade 4 literacy test. The JSE is
committed to this programme, especially since St. Michael's is a part
of the Downtown community.

The JSE has been instrumental in the development education and one
of our focus is that of contributing to early childhood education.
Through this initiative, we have been sponsoring the breakfast
programme for St. Michael's Primary School since 2010. In quoting
the Principal Mrs. Juliet Campbell McPherson, “The JSE's efforts has
led to the gradual growth of St. Michaels and through the JSE's
Breakfast Programme, the literacy rate has improved tremendously
coming from a 31% to approximately 72%. We constantly remind our
students of the importance of working hard to make our sponsors
proud. To this end most students have shown significantimprovement
inacademics and overall behavior”

Scholarships

The JSE places great emphasis on education and of such there are two
scholarship programmes that have been established by the JSE. The
Utech Scholarship named after the first General Manager of the
Exchange Mr. Vernon Mendez and the UWI scholarship.

The UWI Scholarship

The JSE continues its quest to assist University students with
scholarships. The Jamaica Stock Exchange Scholarship given to UWI
students was established in 1994 by the Jamaica Stock Exchange to
mark its 25th anniversary. This scholarship is in its twenty-fourth year
in 2018. Also, in 2018 the JSE agreed to offer a Bursary to a student
with very good academic achievement, who needs financial support.
The scholarship and the bursary are awarded to students pursuing
studies in Business. Below are some of the recipients who have
benefitted since the 2004/2005 academic year:

(Cont’d on next page)
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Recipients Year Graduated

Awarded

Sanchia Henry 2004-2006 First Class Honours:
Andre Williams 2006-2008 Upper Second Class Honours:
Oma Coke 2008-2010 First Class Honours:
Latoya Wiliams 2008-2010 Upper Second Class Honours:
Kadine Blake 2010-2012 First Class Honours:
Jerahmeel James 2013-2015 Upper Second Class Honours
Jahnoy Lieth 2015-2017 Upper Second Class Honours
Samoya Smith 2016-2018 Current recipient
Meisha -Marie Webster 2016-2018 Current recipient
Shana-Kay Chisolm 2018-2019 Current recipient JSE Bursary
Tishawn Hibbert 2018-2019 Current recipient Scholarship

Shana-Kay Chencise Chisolm — Recipient of
the JSE's 2018/19 Bursary

Tishawn Leonardo Hibbert — Recipient of
the JSE 2018/19 Scholarship

ELDERLY OUTREACH
The JSE continues to work with the Missionaries of the Poor through its founder Father Richard Ho Lung and
Brothers by supporting their fund raising activities.

We continue to offer assistance to the Golden Age home, remembering those who have contributed to the
development of Jamaica, however, have fallen upon hard times. We should never forget those that serve in
whatever capacity in this country and the JSE is very mindful of this and continue to contribute to this noble
institution.
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JSE GROUP
2018 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Introduction

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Group comprises the Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (JSE), Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited (JCSD)
and JCSD Trustee Services Limited (JCSDTS). This Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the JSE Group's financial condition and
results of its operations are provided to enable stakeholders to assess the financial health, material changes and results of its operations for the year
ended December 31, 2018. It provides information on liquidity and capital resources and gives a comparative examination of the current year under
review against the previous year's performance. The MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Audited Financial Statements and must be
considered as complementary information to that which is provided in the audited statements and the accompanying notes. The information
presented is based on the best judgment of management, taking into consideration all internal systems and controls, plans and current programmes
and policies being pursued.

As a Company whose securities are publicly traded, the Exchange is most conscious not only of its responsibility as a listed company, but as a
regulator of listed companies. It, therefore, operates with the framework of ensuring that its regulatory responsibilities are conducted in an
atmosphere of transparency and thatits commercial operations are discharged in order to ensure market growth and shareholder profitability.

The JSE has 701,250,000 shares now inissue. During the year 2018, the price of the JSE shares advanced from $7.00 to close at $10.26, reflecting
a 46.6% appreciation in the stock price. The volume and value traded amounted to 49.9M units and $382.4M respectively, compared with the
previous year of 209.4M units and $1.45B.

Our policy is that shareholders who have invested in the JSE should participate in the earnings of the Company through dividend distribution.
Consequently, for the calendar year 2018, the Company distributed $210M representing 2017 final and 2018 interim dividend payment. Compared
to previous year $102.1M representing 2016 final and 2017 interim payment.

Business and Consumer Confidence remained very highin 2018 and the overall economic environment remained optimistic, which translated into
continued vibrant market performance. This positively impacted our profitability. We are pleased that external improved market conditions have also
assisted our outstanding performance. However, our internal market activities such as new products and services have also contributed to the
growth in the Group's core revenue streams. We expect that the Group will see continued growth from its diversification efforts and continued
improvementin the macro-economic conditions.

UPDATE ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE GROUP STRATEGIC PLAN

As the Exchange engaged in ensuring that the 2015-2018 strategic plan was realized, there was an imperative to review our targets and key
objectives. We are pleased with the progress made but are convinced that we must continue to push for sustainable growth and development and
take advantage of the changing needs of our marketplace. We are also of the view that we must seek to develop products and services which will
create demand. Many of these initiatives have begun but we must critically prove our concepts and designs, therefore stakeholders should expectto
see gradual and paced rollout of services in the ensuing years.

Most of our targets were achieved in 2018 and we again through another strategic planning session, embarked with the approval of the Board, the
strategic plan forthe period 2018-2020, which is shown on the next page:

(Cont’d on next page)
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STRATEGIC PLAN 2018 — 2020
PURPOSE-DRIVEN INDICATORS AND TARGETS

(A) Jamaica Stock Exchange

PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

2018
TARGET

2018
ACTUAL

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

2013

Value of S56M $71.1B $67.2B $78.6B
Transactions /year

Net Profit S63M $316M $75.6M $90.3M
Net # New Listings 25 10 30 28
Jyear

Amount of Capital $23B $21.0B $27.6B $31.3
Mobilized

Return of Equity T+13% T+15% T+15 % T+15%
relative to T-bill

PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

Net Profit SM

(B) Jamaica Central Securities Depository Group

2018
TARGET

$125M

2018
ACTUAL

$138.6M

$150M

$200M

Return on
equity (relative to
T-Bill)

T+25%

T+48%

T+25%

T+25%

Trustee
Market Share -
Non Govt.
bonds & Unit
Trusts)

70%

85%

75.0%

82.5%

Market
Capital SB

$900B

$1.17

$900B

$1.2T

Registry
market share,
%

70%

69%

70%

80%

Value of
securities in
custody ST

S1.6T

$2.5T

$2.3T

$2.65T

#of Trustee
Clients

82

138

150

200
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The JSE continues to work towards meeting our major strategic
objectives, which are aligned to making the market efficient, satisfying
our customers, creating value for our shareholders and ultimately
creating a sustainable business model which will lend itself to long-
term profitability of the Group.

Over the last fifteen (15) years, the Company has pursued a path of
revenue diversification, through new products and services offered by
the Group. The results of this effort are seen in the Group's reaping the
benefits, notably the profitability of the JCSD Trustee Services and
Registrar Services and from other initiatives that are making a
significant contribution to the operating revenue of the Company. In
2018 Fee Income increased by $196.6m or 32.1% over 2017. Over the
two-year period 2017 and 2018, Fee Income increased by$350.6m or
76.6%.

Cess revenue and Investment Income, which were at one time
considered usually the two major sources of revenue of the Group has
shifted with diversification and have been supplanted by Fee Income.
During the year 2018 Cess income was $494.7m representing an
increase of $208.9m or 73% increase over 2017. Investment Income
marginally increased to $19.1m from $16.3m. The JSE experienced a
few large block transactions in 2018.

The Group's Financial Statements reflect an improvement in revenue
(notincluding interest income) of $399.7m or 40.3%, driven mainly by
ourcess revenue and diversification efforts.

With the exception of advertising and promotion which marginally
decreased all other areas of expenditure increased over the prior year
with the total moving from $668.2m in 2017 to $817.4m in 2018,
which represents $149.2m or 22.3% increase in expenditure. Detailed
explanation is provided further in this analysis.

The profitability of the Group increased significantly when compared to
the prior year. Profit after taxation moved from $220.7m in 2017 to
$413.1min2018; anincrease of 87.2%.

Vision, Strategies and Priorities

The vision, strategies and priorities of the individual companies that
comprise the JSE Group, namely the Jamaica Stock Exchange,
Jamaica Central Securities Depository and JCSD Trustee Services,
are complementary and aligned to the overarching objective of
consistently generating an acceptable return on investment for our
shareholders, facilitated by providing to our customers an
innovative, transparent and customer-oriented world class
Exchange and Securities Depository.

Our 2020 Vision: To be an innovative, transparent and customer-
oriented world-class exchange, operating in over five (5) countries in
the Caribbean Region; has over 100 listings and contributes
significantly to capital expansion while consistently generating
satisfactory returns to our shareholders.

Qur Priorities:

Grow Core Business through Innovation

We continue to pursue a path of growing the Group by our thrust
into market education, the development of new products, the
opening of new markets and the provision of better service to our
customers and stakeholders. In keeping with our vision of being
the premier securities market in the Caribbean, the Exchange will
vigorously target the Region for new listings on the main and
junior markets. The Group has also begun its efforts to work
more closely with the Exchanges within the Caribbean and these
efforts have resulted in significant reduction in expenditure.
Given our commitment to examine and exploit market
opportunities wherever they are, we are now laying the
foundations to have our presence in United States and Canada
through diaspora engagements and other business
relationships which have been formed.

Through market education, the Group aims to retain current
investors and attract new ones, as we recognize that expansion
will not be successful in the long-term without an expanding
pool of financially educated investors. Recognizing that
attracting new products that are driven by customer demand,
the JSE is treating this as an imperative. Through industry
collaboration with organizations such as the PSQJ, the
Securities Dealers Association and the Small Business
Association, we expect to effectively bring about positive

(Cont’d on next page)
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changes to the securities market. While we believe that the
Group's initiatives will result in more vibrant trading of securities
onthe stock market as well as more diversified revenue streams
that will augur well for the long-term growth and profitability of
the Group, we understand that these initiatives cannot be
pursued unless they are driven by external demand, and so we
aimto listento our customers.

Continued Diversification in Related Business Lines

We continue to diversify our activities into current, relevant and
related business lines. We are utilizing a two-pronged approach,
that of nurturing new business lines within the context of
continuous review of those operations, while at the same time
putting in the necessary infrastructure to encourage the
development of other products and services. The decision taken
by the Group to diversify its revenue stream is generally bearing
fruits, measured by the contribution to profit. New product
offerings by the JCSD's Registrar Services Division and the
JCSD Trustee Services have met with success and they
continue to make significant contributions to the bottom line.
These product lines are still in their early stages and have the
ability to grow even further. The provision of superior products
and services compared to that of our competitors are the
avenues that are being pursued to arrive at market penetration
and growth. Driven by a market survey in 2015, we have re-
engineered our offering in the e-Campus Division to allow for
better market product acceptability as well as asset utilization.
We are reaping the benefits of this exercise and the division has
experienced some growth in profitability with expectation of
further growth inthe future.

Summary of Long Term Vision, which remains the same
as previous year and includes new initiatives:

> Offering regionally and globally diversified capital market

products
» Commitmentto high standards of transparency and governance

Continuously improving shareholders' value

Setting a strong foundation in all critical divisions and
subsidiaries to allow for long-term growth and development

Enhanced attractiveness of the equities market to investors and
businesses

Participation inthe development of the Fixed Income Market
Strong internal competences

Being among the top employers of choice in Jamaica

To be considered a partner thatis essential to nation building

YV V V V V

To forge key regional and global partnerships in furtherance of
these goals

> Consistent operational and overall profitability

Summary of Our Performance Measurements
>
>

High customer and employee satisfaction

Financial measurement including growth and profitability
targets, net profit and return on equity

Diversification of products and services — scoring a 50:50 split
with progressively less emphasis on equities contributions in
eachyear

> Increase in listings on the Main, Junior, USD Equities, and Bond

Markets

» Market Performance and Resilience

Overview of the Business

Both the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) and its subsidiary, the Jamaica
Central Securities Depository (JCSD), are licensed to operate by the
Financial Services Commission. The JSE and JCSD operate electronic
trading and settlement platforms respectively through a service
licensing agreement with providers, Securities and Trading Technology
(STT) Limited and Percival Software Limited. The trading and
settlement platforms allow for greater product offerings and enable us
to maintain competitive pricing for the services that we provide to the
market place. In February 2017, we changed to our current electronic
trading platform named Multi-Instrument Trading System (MITS). We
are still currently still experiencing teething pains post implementation,
but it is our commitment that we will provide the market with a system
capable of gaining long-term acceptance and providing efficiency.

(Cont’d on next page)

46



JSE GROUP

2018 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Memberships and Accreditations
Subscribe to the World Federation of Exchanges (WFE)

Member of the Americas Central Securities Depositories
Association (ACSDA)

Partners of Sustainable Stock Exchanges (Global Initiative)
ANNA Partner (Securities Numbering Agency)
Designated Exchange in Canada

Participant in the Canadian Depository for Securities (CDS)
e-Campus has been:

> CPD Certified, UK; approved by the Financial Services
Commission;
> Registered by the University Council of Jamaica
(as a Tertiary Institution) and Diploma in Securities
Management accredited in 2018.
> Approved by the Ministry of Education and also
accredited by the General Legal Counsel
of Jamaica)
Signatory to the UN Global Compact (Endorsing Women
Empowerment Principles)

Market Depth

76 listed companies offering seventy-eight (78) Ordinary
Securities (36 listed on the JSE Main Market, 36 listed on the
JSE Junior Market and 6 listed on the US Dollar Equities Market)
and twenty-five (25) Preference Securities (17 listed on the JSE
Main Market, 2 listed on the JSE Junior Market and 6 listed on
the US Dollar Equities Market). Four corporate bonds are listed
on the Bond Market. Trading activities are concentrated mainly
aroundthe Ordinary Shares.

The JSE is the primary venue for the raising of equity capital in
Jamaica. The total market capitalization (main and junior
markets) as at December 2018 was J$1.52 trillion. The top five
stocks represented 57.29% of overall market capitalization.

The JSE maintained six indices during 2018:
()  The JSE Market Index

(ii)  The JSE All Jamaican Composite Index
(iiiy  The JSE Select Index
(iv) The JSE Cross-Listed Index

(v)  The JSE Junior Market Index
(vi) The JSE US Dollar Equities Index

(@ Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market” \gpod @b Jam B <3

The JSE Main Index is a market-weighted index comprising of
the ordinary shares on the Main Market. The All Jamaican
Composite Index measures the performance of Jamaican
Companies only while the JSE Select Index measures the
performance of the JSE's 15 most liquid securities. The JSE
Junior Market Index measures the performance of the
companies listed on the Junior Market. The JSE Combined
Index measures the performance of all the companies listed on
the Main and Junior Markets. The JSE US Dollar Equities Index
measures the performance of all the companies listed on the
US Dollar Equities Market.

JA$21.02 billion was raised from the companies that listed
securities in 2018 and a total of JA$10.2 billion has been raised
by the companies listed on the Junior Market since inception in
20009.

Market Operations and Trading

Considerable improvement was recorded in the market activity
in2018 in comparisonto 2017. All markets, with the exception
of the US Dollar Equities Market, recorded marked
improvement in their market statistics in 2018.

Main Market
As at the end of 2018: the JSE Index advanced by 91,408.89

points or 31.70% to close at 379,790.86 points, per Chart 1
below. The All Jamaican Composite Index increased by
100,326.62 points or 31.70% to close at 416,842.73 points
and the JSE Select Index increased by 1,209.21 points or
14.20% to close at 9,725.59 points in comparison to the 2017-
year end closing indices.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Chart 1

2013

JSE Index (2018 vs. 2017) - Main Market
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Market capitalization of the Main Market amounted to $1.38 trillion at the end of 2018. This was an increase of

$335.09 billion or 31.95% fromthe start of the year. ~ Please view the chart below for more detail.

Chart 2

Market Capitalisation (2018 vs. 2017) - Main Market
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The Main Market (inclusive of block trades) recorded a total of 60,896 transactions with volume traded of 5.45 billion units valued at $75.47 billion.
This represented an increase of 40.21% in the number of transactions, an increase of 110.40% in the volume traded and an increase of 105.70% in
the value traded in comparison to prior year. For the year under review, the following was recorded in the market statistics (excluding the block
market): the number of transactions, volume traded and value traded increased by 40.09%, 27.51% and 83.40% respectively when compared to
the market activity of 2017.

2013

The charts below reflect the trading activity on the main market (excluding blocks) for 2018 comparedto 2017. Onthe block marketin 2018, block
trades amounted to 84, an increase of 265.22%, volume traded amounted to 2.24 billion units, an increase of 3037.49% and valued traded
amounted to $9.95 billion, anincrease of 929.57%.

Chart 3 Chart 4
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The performance of the market for 2018 was also captured in the advance/decline ratio, which indicated that twenty-one stocks advanced while
eleven declined. The average price appreciation was 47.94% for the ordinary stocks in the Main Market partially as a result of nine companies
reflecting significant price increase of more than 50% for the year; one company increased in price by over 600%. Presented intable 1 are the top
ten advancers and decliners of the Main Market for 2018, while the succeeding charts indicate the recent five years of JSE trading history of the

main market.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Table 1 - Top Advancers and Decliners for 2018

2013

Company % Change Company % Change
Barita Investments Limited 611.78% Ciboney Group Limited (70.73%)
Salada Foods Jamaica Limited 211.11% 138 Student Living Jamaica Limited | (42.43%)
Palace Amusement (1921) Co. 158.93% Portland JSX Limited (25.00%)
Kingston Wharves Limited 137.51% Eppley Limited (23.75%)
Pulse Investments Limited 66.11% Kingston Properties Limited (22.08%)
Jamaica Broilers Group Limited 63.32% Carreras Limited (16.93%)
PanJam Investment Limited 61.49% Radio Jamaica Limited (15.24%)
Mayberry Investments Limited 54.31% Wisynco Group Limited (10.62%)
NCB Financial Group Limited 50.15% 1834 Investments Limited (7.20%)

Supreme Ventures Limited 49.87% Sagicor Real Estate X Fund Limited (6.20%)

Junior Market

The JSE Junior Market Index increased by 514.71 points or 18.84% to close the year at 3,246.84 points.

The Junior Market welcomed the listing of seven new securities during the year, bringing the total listings to thirty-eight securities. Market activity
on the Junior Market recorded an increase of 20.76% in the number of transactions, an increase of 5.04% in the volume traded and a decrease of
14.79% in the value traded. The number of transactions amounted to 26,845 trades, the volume traded amounted to 1.41 billion units and the value
traded amounted to $5.85 billionin 2018. As at December 31, 2018, market capitalization of the Junior Market amounted to $139.77 billion. This
was an increase of $24.97 billion or 21.76% from the start of the year. There were 251 days of trading in 2018 and 250 days of trading in 2017. The
charts below reflect the trading activity in the Junior Market for the year under review compared to the previous year.
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US Dollar Equities Market

Inthe US Dollar Equities Market, the total volume amounted to 43.58 million units valued at US$8.76 millionin 2018. This was a decrease of 0.23%
inthe volume traded and a decrease of 29.86% in the value traded when compared to the market activity in 2017. The number of transactions stood
at 1,187, representing a 15.52% decrease on the 1,405 trades in 2017. The JSE USD Equities Index decreased by 6.56 points or 3.95% to close at
159.61 points. Market capitalization ended the year at US$252.02 million, an increase of 13.23% forthe year. There were three new listings onthe
US Dollar Equities Marketin 2018.

Bond Market
There was one new listing on the Bond Marketin 2018. The trading activity on the Bond Market for the year resulted in four trades with a total value
of $65.06 million.

The JSE Group Financial Performance
(I) (Comparison for Years Ended December 31, 2018 & December 31, 2017)

Revenue
(i) Operating Revenue of $1.4 billion in 2018 reflects an improvement of $399.7m or 40% increase over 2017. There was positive

growth registered in all major revenue areas with the most positive change in Cess, trustee services and annual listing.
The diversification of the group revenue streams is successful as we continue to pursue other growth opportunities.

The following table and charts provide a visual representation of the revenue structure of the JSE Group. which primarily derives income from
trading and settlement, listing fees, pledge fees, trustee services, registrar services, investmentincome and other related activities.

TABLE 4: JSE GROUP REVENUE (INCLUSIVE OF INVESTMENT INCOME)
PERIOD 2014 - 2018

201 2017 201 201 2014

GROUP REVENUE % 8 % ‘; 8 °$ > °$

Cess 494,711,000 285,776,000 | 330,229,000 | 301,882,000 68,632,000
Fee Income

Annual Listing 117,633,333 70,648,048 63,296,524 49,612,390 49,344,448
Initial Listing 22,305,000 15,842,690 6,915,162 4,549,360 3,423,808
Supplementary Listing 1,879,787 1,785,032 2,016,254 497,144 337,682
Members & Attorney 380,000 490,000 430,000 375,000 1,624,175
Transaction 111,808,378 103,061,148 31,766,185 45,009,747 13,902,102
Maintenance 22,245,820 12,850,003 12,238,260 8,972,863 3,733,047
Trade Data 8,586,351 5,233,206 5,479,766 4,945,769 4,027,054

(Cont’d on next page)
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Registrar 91,402,266 82,645,017 | 76,469,482 | 73,975,546 | 51,679,401
Trustee 309,816,569 | 222,192,071 | 158,316,544 | 104,519,850 | 67,850,000
SZZZ ,; e:ﬁ‘;’}f:eas € 80,281,726 69,596,687 | 79,781,069 | 29,209,867 .
Membership Fee 33,808,250 20,556,322 | 18,533,064 | 8155697 | 2,716,833
Other Income

Regional Conference 19,406,000 20,792,000 | 14,532,000 | 11,376,000 | 13,800,060
Other Income 76,583,520 79,681,776 | 65,778,048 | 65,209,697 | 56,178,940
Sub-Total 1,390,848,000 | 991,150,000 | 865,781,358 | 708,290,930 | 337,249,550
Investment Income 19,093,000 16,319,000 | 51,808,000 | 42,424,000 | 42,362,000
Other Gains - - - - 147,000
TOTAL 1,409,941,000 | 1,007,469,000 | 917,589,358 | 750,714,930 | 379,758,550

Table 5:
mome, ISE Group Revenue (2018) oo, el e, Mameae P eV B o
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Expenditure

Expenses of $817.4min 2018 represent an increase of $149m or 22% over the $668.2min 2017. The Group continues to
monitor expenditure by applying tight procurement guidelines and seeking alternative and more effective means of achieving
the same objectives. However, we have experienced some increases in expenditure due to our expansion. Our operating
efficiency however has improved over the previous year. Some areas, which showed significant increase over 2017, are
highlighted below:

Staff Costs

Staff Cost was $289.5min 2017 compared to $353.1min 2018, which represents an increase of $63.6m or 22%. This
net movement was because of an increase in staff complement driven by the introduction of new business lines and
salary increase for 2018. Also the Group's Incentive for 2018 was higher than 2017 and in keeping with the Group
Incentive Policy.

Property Expenses

Property Expenses increased from $119.34min 2017 to $136.3min 2018. The increase of $16.9mor 14.2% is largely
associated with increases in maintenance cost and licences expense that were required based on the upgrades to JSE
ITinfrastructure along with increase in maintenance cost attributed to our new property acquisition during 2018..

Depreciation and Amortization

Anincrease from $37.4min 2017 to $50.4m in 2018 representing $13m or 34.8% is due primarily to the increase in
assets purchased and revaluation of land and building during the year.

Securities Commission fees
Securities Commission Fees increased from $40.4m to $74.4min 2018. This increase of $34m or 84.1% is primarily
associated with increased trading activities.

Net Impairment losses on financial assets

Impairment losses increased from $6.3m to $15.6m in 2018. This increase of $9.3m or 148.6% is due to additional
provisions of outstanding receivables. Which is primarily attributed to the Group's adoption of IFRS 9 and implementation
of anew expected creditloss model.

Net Profit

The parent company's profit for 2018 was $316.2m inclusive of $159m dividend income from subsidiary and the profit
from its subsidiary was $255.9m. Upon consolidation, the Group recorded a Net Profit for 2018 of $413.1m. This
performance surpassed the profit of $220.7m or by 87.2% recorded in 2017 due primarily to increase in Cess and fee
revenue. Expenditure increased by 22.3%.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per stock unit is calculated by dividing the profit by the weighted average number of ordinary stock units.
The weighted average number of stock unitsin 2018 is 701,250,000 and represents the total ordinary stocks onissue at
no par value. The basic earnings per stock unitincreased from $0.31in2017 to $0.59in 2018.

Revenue Reserves
The Group's Revenue Reserves increasedin 2018t0 $651.4m from $501.1m in2017.

(Cont’d on next page)
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Table 5: Five Year Key Financial Highlights and Graphical Presentations

($000)

2018

2017

M\ “Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

2,016 2,015

2013

2014

Revenue 1,409,941 | 1,007,469 917,589 | 750,715 | 379,612
Expenses 817,439 668,222 582,853 | 495,930 | 383,788
Surplus derived
P . 413,063 220,668 223,589 | 174,953 3,128
from Operations
Efficiency Ratio 58% 66% 64% 66% 101%
Return on Equity 36.7% 23.3% 27.7% 28.1% 0.6%
Earnings per share $ 0.59 0.31 0.32 0.25 0.02
Revenue (2014 - 2018) Expenses (2014 to 2018)
1,350800 5985 -
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Market Conditions and Outlook

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) cut its estimate for global growth in 201910 3.5 per cent, from the 3.7 per cent it had predicted in October and
down from 2018's 3.7 per cent. The IMF cited heightened trade tensions and rising interest rates. The World Bank, the Organization for Economic
Cooperation and Development, and other forecasters have also downgraded their world growth estimates. Among the key concerns is the Chinese
economy. The country is slowing just as its leadership tries to turn it into a more modern economy by reducing its reliance on manufacturing and
exports and increasing consumer spending. The IMF trimmed the outlook for the 19 countries that use the euro as their currency to 1.6 per cent
from 1.8 per cent. Emerging-market countries are forecastto slow to 4.5 per centfrom 4.6 per centin 2018.

The latest report released on the consumer and business confidence in Jamaica remain positive, with both indices recording increases for the first
quarter of 2019. The consumer confidence index was 177.5 points compared to the 175.5 points in the fourth quarter of 2018, while the business
confidence indexincreasedto 151 points. Also, preliminary estimates show that the Jamaican economy grew by 1.9 per centin2018. Againstthis
background, the JSE will continue to implement the infrastructure necessary to attract new business and retain the market we currently have.

Partnership/collaborations

We are collaborating with the DBJ to assist SMEs to list on the Junior Market, through the DBJ Voucher System. Under the Voucher for Technical
Assistance (VTA), micro, small and medium-sized businesses which operate in the productive sectors may receive vouchers in various
denominations to be used to access business support services provided by accredited Business Development Organizations (BDOs). The support
includes assistanceto:

1. Write Business Plans

2. Setup proper corporate governance framework and

3. Setup properaccounting system

The JSE is also partnering with Small Business Association of Jamaica (SBAJ) and Caribbean Enterprise Network to prepare and list companies on
the Junior Market.

Throughthese initiatives the JSE is expecting to broaden the listing on the Junior Market and to ensure that companies maximize their full potential.
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2018 YEAR IN REVIEW

he year 2018 was another productive year for the Regulatory and Market Oversight Division (RMOD) of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) as
we continued the discharge of operational functions relating to Listed Company Compliance, Member-Dealer Regulation, Market
Surveillance, Enforcement, Dispute Resolution and Risk Assessment.

Activity Summary

In 2018 the RMQOD identified and processed Four Hundred and Eighty Six (486) compliance and market surveillance issues, which represented an
increase of 18% inthe number of issues handled when compared with 2017. Of the 486 issues handled, the RMOD closed Four Hundred and Eighty
(480) cases, which signified a case closure rate of 99%. Of the 486 cases handled in 2018, 290 or 60% of the issues related to the continuation of
our strategy in 2018 to heighten surveillance of dealings by insiders of listed companies. Against this background the Division saw a 57 % increase
in the detection of dealings by insiders as the strategy was implemented over the full year in 2018 versus a shorter period in 2017 when it was first
introduced. Table 1 provides a summary of the regulatory issues handled by the Divisionin 2018 versus 2017 by type and group.

Table 1 - Regulatory Issues by Type & Group (2018/2017)

Year 2018 2017
Nature of Issues Total
Complaints on Member-dealers 3

Complaints on Listed Companies 4 7
Compliance & Mkt. Surveillance- Member-dealers 33 70
Compliance & Mkt. Surveillance -Listed Company 445 326
Other Compliance & Mkt. Surveillance Issues. 1 9
Total 486 412

Pie Chart — (2018/2017)

Compliance and Market Surveillance for listed company and member dealers

(Cont’d on next page)
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Operational Activities

Further details on the Division's activities during the year across
the six (6) core operational areas are provided below:

1. Listed Company Compliance

Listed Company Compliance involves the review of filings by listed
companies concerning financial statements, trade notices and
corporate actions as well as the monitoring of dealings by insiders of
listed companies. During the year, the RMOD reviewed a total of 1,520
submissions (2017; 1,286) from Listed Companies. Based on the
review the RMOD identified Four Hundred and Forty Five (445) issues
concerning Listed Companies, which represented 92% of the total
number of issues identified and handled by the Division during the year
(See Table 1 and 2018 Pie Chart). Of the four hundred and forty-five
(445) issues, two hundred and thirty (230) related to Main Market
Listed Companies, while two hundred and fifteen (215) related to Junior
Market Listed Companies. The primary regulatory issues handled for
both Main and Junior Market Companies during the year related to JSE's
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Senior
Executives of Listed Companies and financial filing requirements,
which are treated with under JSE Rule 407 — Quarterly Financial
Statements, JSE Rule 408 — Audited Financial Statements, JSE Rule
409 —Annual Report and JSE Junior Market Rule Appendix 2, Part 4.

In keeping with our effort to foster compliance to the rules of the JSE,
the RMOD continued in 2018 with the strategy to circulate reminder
letters to Listed Companies on various conditions of the rules of the
Exchange. During 2018 the RMOD circulated 876 (2017; 537)
reminder notices concerning the filing of financial statements, material
disclosures, adoption of accounting standards, share registers,
dividend notices, corporate governance guideline reviews and trade
notices concerning dealings by insiders. In 2018 the RMOD also
convened 16 orientation sessions with newly appointed Company
Secretaries and Mentors of Listed Companies to sensitize them on their
role and the JSE's requirements. As a consequence of the
abovementioned activities, Listed Companies registered a 100%
compliance rate for the filing of share registers with the Exchange as
well as a compliance rate of 99% for the timely filing of dividend notices
and declarations.

M\ “Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”
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1. Member-Dealer Regulation

During the year the RMOD identified thirty-three (33) compliance and
surveillance issues for Member-Dealers. These issues were identified
through the review of 204 financial returns from Member-Dealers as
well as the monitoring of their trading activities and compliance to the
rules of the JSE.

The RMOD also continued its strategy to engage member-dealers on
their Business Continuity and Contingency Plan (BCCP) Review and
Insurance Renewals through the circulation of reminder letters. Arising
from the exercise Member-Dealers as at the end of the year had a
compliance rate for BCCP review and insurance renewal of 84% and
100% respectively.

3. Market Surveillance

The RMOD's market surveillance activities for 2018 involved the
continuation of heightened monitoring of dealings by insiders as well as
identifying possible breaches of market rules relating to trading as
dictated by the Securities Act of Jamaica. In this regard the RMOD
generates exception report to further investigate possible breaches. For
the period of review the RMOD generated 38 Exception Reports versus
46in2017.

4. Enforcement

The Division's enforcement activities involve levying fines, delisting and
suspension of market constituents. In 2018 the Division administered
Forty-Nine (49) enforcement actions and levied fines amounting to $3.9
million.

5. Dispute Resolution

The Dispute Resolution function of the RMOD involves the receipt
and review of complaints that are filed. In 2018 the RMOD
handled and closed 7 complaints, which was a similar number
for2017.

6. Risk Assessment

The RMOD's Risk Assessment applies to all areas of its operations and
is supported by examinations from the JSE's Internal Auditors. Forthe
year under review, JSE's Internal Auditors conducted one (1)

assessment of the RMOD's operations.
(Cont’d on next page)
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7. Other Operational Activities

During the year the RMOD continued its standard procedures for
educating the public and promoting awareness to the JSE's regulatory
programme by releasing via the JSE's website twelve (12) Monthly
Regulatory Reports and two (2) Newsletters. The Division also
participated in five (5) outreach sessions of the JSE. The RMOD was
also directly involved in the review of twenty-seven (27) Initial Public
Offering prospectuses.

Other significant undertakings by the RMOD in 2018 included the
development of a Risk Based Assessment Policy for the review of
Quarterly Financial Statements, which will be implemented in 2019 and
the processing of fifteen (15) rule amendments of which seven (7) were
approved and incorporatedinthe rules of the JSE.

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”
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Closing Remarks

In closing, | wish to use this opportunity to commend the team
members of the RMOD for the tremendous work done during the year
and to thank the Regulatory and Market Oversight Committee (RMOC)
of the JSE for its unrelenting guidance and support. Recognition must
also be given to all stakeholders, who have contributed greatly to the
growth and development of the JSE through active participation in the
market and interaction with the RMOD on regulatory matters. We invite
your sustained support as we work in a collaborative way to ensure that
the market continues to be recognized as one that is fair, transparent
and efficient.

The Chief Regulatory Officer (Acting) of the Regulatory and Market Oversight Division (RMOD) of the
Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE), Mr. Andrae Tulloch (r), presents a copy of the JSE’s Rules Book to
Mr. Michael McMorris, Chairman of Victoria Mutual Investments Limited (VMIL), at VMIL’s Listing

Ceremony at the JSE on December 29, 2017.
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Top 11 for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2018

Name Joint Holders

JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES LTD - SIGMA EQUITY

Client total ownership

SAGICOR POOLED EQUITY FUND
Client total ownership

M/VL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT

Client total ownership

VMWM (PRINCIPAL TRADING A/C)
Client total ownership

GK CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Client total ownership

MAYBERRY CO A/C 120008
Client total ownership

BARITA INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Client total ownership

JMMB LONG TERM EQUITY PORTFOLIO
Client total ownership

SJIML A/C 3119
Client total ownership

VMWEALTH EQUITY FUND
Client total ownership

NCB CAPITAL MARKETS LTD. A/C 2231

Client total ownership

Volume

68,849,200
19,817,917
31.000.000
119,667,117

73,109,006
73,109,006

25,175,000
26,325,000

763,360
52,263,360

51,000,000
51,000,000

51,000,000
51,000,000

48,182,838
48,182,838

48,000,000
537
48,000,537

44,200,000
44,200,000

35,235,572
35,235,572

16.936.470
16,936,470

15,641,204
15,641,204
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9.81
2.82
4.42
17.06

10.42
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Executives’ Holdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange
As at December 31, 2018

Name Joint Holders Volume Percentage

MARLENE STREET FORREST
Keena Street 75,000.00 0.01
75,000.00 0.01

SUZETTE MCNAUGHT

Minette McLeish 45,000.00 0.00
45,000.00 0.00
SUZETTE WHYTE 30,000.00 0.00
Felix Whyte 30,000.00 0.00
NEVILLE ELLIS 10,000.00 0.00
Judith Vynel Ellis 10,000.00 0.00
SUZETTE PRYCE 5,000.00 0.00
5,000.00 0.00

Directors’ Holdings for Jamaica Stock Exchange

As at December 31, 2018

Name Joint Holders Volume Percentage

DIAN BLACK
Key Members Holdings 2,000.00 0.0003
Connected Party Holdings 0.00 0.0000
Combined Holdings 2,000.00 0.0003

DERRICK MCKQY

Grace McKoy  WIFE 706,170.00 0.1007

Key Members Holdings 5,000.00 0.0007
Connected Party Holdings 706,170.00 0.1007
Combined Holdings 711,170.00 0.1014

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

EDWIN MCKIE
Key Members Holdings 1,189,004.00 0.1696
Connected Party Holding 706,170.00 0.1007
Combined Holdings 1,895,174.00 0.2703
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SUBSIDIARIES REPOR]

OVERVIEW

In 2018 the Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited (JCSD) a
subsidiary of the Jamaica Stock Exchange (‘JSE”) celebrated its
twentieth year of operations and its subsidiary the JCSD Trustee
Services (JCSDTS) celebrated its tenth year. Both entities have
contributed to the diversification of the JSE income stream over the
years. The entities outperformed their annual targets for 2018 and are
well positioned to meet their 2020 strategic objectives.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

There was an increase in all revenue areas year-over-year. The year's
total revenue of $715M represented a 29% improvement over 2017.
The largest revenue increase was in Trustee Fees, which amounted to
39% over prior year and resulted mainly from an increase in trustee
clients. Trustee Fees amounted to 43% of the total income for JCSD for
2018. The combined JCSDTS income lines now comprise
approximately 54% of total JCSD Group revenue for the year.
Membership and user fees increased by 18%.

The JCSD Group's (JCSD & JCSDTS Trustee Services Ltd.) total
expenses of $332M for the year represented a 22% increase over 2017,
largely due to increased personnel costs and increased Net Impairment
on Financial Assets due to the new IFRS 9. Group After-tax Profit of
$256M for 2018 represented a 31% increase over the previous year.
The consolidated year-end balance sheet reflected a strengthened
capital position, with equity increasing by 20%, while Total Assets
increased by 22% to end 2018 at $665M. During the year, an interim
dividend of $159M was also paid to the parent company, the Jamaica
Stock Exchange.

OPERATIONS

The Group's technical and human resources was a major contributor to
the excellent performance of 2018 exemplified through efficiency and
high customer service standards. In response to the call of our
shareholders and investors, the Depository Services Unit changed its
settlement fee structure from tiered to 3bps across the board. This
resulted in savings for the small investors who were mostly affected
with the tiered structure. There were new hires, targeted training and
some cross-training during the year. Internal audits conducted by
PricewaterhouseCoopers supported the process reviews that were
done throughout the year, to facilitate the management of the risks
associated with the increasing size and variety of new business being
undertaken.

CONCLUSION AND VISION

The Group was very instrumental throughout the year in facilitating the
development of the market and participated in several debt structure.
The JCSDTS will be offering a new service to the marketin 2019 in the
form of back Office support to the market for the CIS and trustee
businesses. We are also in discussion with the market on several
initiatives that will further develop the market and provide more
investment options to investors and liquidity to the marketin 2019.

Andrea Kelly
General Manager
JCSD and JCSDTS
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8 Olivier Road Tel: +1 876 925 2501
Kingston 8 Fax: +1 876 755 0413
Jamaica W.I. ey.com

Chartered Accountants

INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Members of The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

We hove oudited the separate finoncial statements of The Jamaica Stock Cxchange Limited (the
Company) and the consolidated financial statermants of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
Group), which comprise the separate and consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2018, the separate and consolidated statements of profit or loss znd other
comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash Tlows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In aur opinien, the accompanying separate and consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as ot December 21, 20182 and of
its separate and consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Jamaican Companies
Act,

Basis for Opinfen

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("15As"). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditfor's Responsibitities for the
Audit of the Financial Staternents section of our report. We are independent of the Company and
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (UIESBA Code™ and we have fulfilled our other othical
responsibilities in accordance with the [ESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we hawve
obtained is sutficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

ey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
irn our audit of the separate and consolidatad financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the separale and consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming aur opinion thereon, and we do not provids a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matteris provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audifor's Responsibifities for the Audit of Hhe
Financial Staternents section of our report, including in relation to these matters, Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessiment of the risks
of material missiatement of the financizl statements, The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Partners: Allison Peart, Winston Robinson, Anura Jayatillake, Kayann Sudlow (Cont’d on next page)
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS' REFORT (CONTIMNUED)

To The Members of The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (Continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for expected credit losses

IFRS @ rchanges the evaluation of credit
lasses from an incurred loss approach Lo an
expected credit loss (“FCL"} maodel which
requires  management's  judgment  and
incorparation of forward-looking
information (Motes 20e), 290d) and 32(0)).
IFRS 9 requires the Group to record an
allowance for ECLs for trade receivables,
corporate and sowvereign bonds and other
financial assets at amortized cost and at
fair value through other comprehensive
income,

This 15 a key audit matter as the estimation
of ECLs is inherently uncertain and reguires
the application of judgment and use of
subjective assumptions by management.
Further models used to determine credit
impairment for corporate and sovereign
bonds are new and could be complex. The
general approach was used to determine
ECL on these financial instruments.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

We evaluated the moedelling techniquess  and
melhodologies developed by the Group in order Lo
astimate FCls, and assessed their compliance with
the requirements of IFRS 9.

We tested the completencess and accuracy of input
data to the maodels used to determine the ECLs. We
assessed the reasonableness of the methodologies
and assumptions applied in  determining: the
simplified approach and the gerneral approach - 12
month and lifetime probabilitias of default (PO, loss
given default (LGD), exposure at default (EAD) and
staging. We assessed external source data and
assumptions, particularly with respect te forward
leoking information (FLIY by testing to independent
sources,

We involved our internal transaction advisory
service specialists to evaluate the methodology for
validating models and analysing modelling accuracy
and consistency of impairment parameters.

We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

(Cont’d on next page)
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INDEPENMDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED}
To The Members of The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (Continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial 3tatements (Continued}

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for credit lozses (continued)

Under the general 2pprocach, judgment was
used  in determining the  criteria for
significant increase in credit risk, techniques
for the probability of default (PO and loss
given default (LGD3).

The Group utilised the simplified approach
for trade receivables. Under the simplified
approach  the  historical  less  rate and
forward-looking factors were considered.

Valuation of financial instruments and fair value hierarchy

As  detailed in Mote 8 investment  fn| Our audit procedures comprised, amongst others, an
SEocuritics, the Group's  investments  arg| assessment of  the methodology and the
classified as fair value through profit and| agppropriatensess of the valuation models and inouts
loss (FWPL)Y), fair wvalue through other| used to value investments classified as FVPL and
comprehensive  income  (FYOCD  and  al| FVOCL

amortised cost and comprises & portfolio of

debit investments. Cur audit procedures included:

» Obtaining an understanding of the design and

\ . ] N
Yaluation technigues may be subjective and implementztion of the Group's controls over the

involve assumptions about pricing factors,

Changes in these assumptions could result measurement and management of valuation risk
in significantly different values. including independent price verification.
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited (Cont'd on next page)
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS' REFORT (CONTIMNUED)

Te The Members of The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (Continued)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)

Key Audit Matters {Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of financial instruments and fair value hierarchy {continued)

&ll assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the  financial
slatements are calegorized within the lair
value hierarchy based on the lowest level
input that is signiticant to the fair wvalue
measurement as a whole: - Level 1
categorized  investment  wvaluations are
based on gquoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive
markets. - Level 2 categorized investment
valuations are based on other than quoted
prices included within Lewvel 1, that are
obsarvable either directly or indirectly, -
Level 2 categorized invesbimenl wvalualions
are based on unobservable inputs for the
asset.

Given  the  inherent  subjectivily  in The
valuation of Level 2 and Level 3 debt
investments, we determined this to be a
significant itern for our audit. The Level 2
investments at FVOCI and FVYTPL as at
December 31, 2018 amounled o $160.28
million. The Group has no Lovel 3 fair value
investments.

+ Testing, for a sclection of pricing Inputs used,
thal they were externally sourced and were
carrectly inputted into pricing models

r Valuing 100% of the Group's securities
independently. We assessed whether the
valuations performed by the Group were within
a pro-defined threshold,

* Further, we ossessed the completeness and
accuracy  of the disclosures relating to
investments o assess compliance with [he
dizclosure requirements of IFRS.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

(Cont’d on next page)
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INDEFPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT (CONTINUED}

To The Members of The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (Continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)
Other information included in the Group's Annual Report

Other infarmation consists of the information included in the Group’s 2018 Annual Report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's repcrt thereon. Managemsnt is
responsible for the other information. The Group's 2018 Annuzl Report is sxpected to be made
availablz to us atter the date of this auditor's report.

Our cpinicn on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connaction wilh our audil of the consolidaled financial sltatements, our responsibility is Lo read
the other information identified abowve when it becomes svailable and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements, or our krnowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Separate and Consofidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS and the Jamaican Companies Act, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of separaie and consclidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate and consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's and the Group's zhility to continue as a gaing concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related te going concerrn and using the going concern basis of accounting
urless management either intends to liguidate the Company or the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's and the Group's financial
reporting process,

(Cont’d on next page)
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENMDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

To The Members of The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited (Continued)

Report on the Audlt of the Consolldated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)

Auditar's Responsibifities for the Audit of the Separate and Consalidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate and consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
errar, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinieon, Eeasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1545 will
always dotoct a material misstatomont whon it oxists, Misstatomonts can arise from fraud or crear
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, thoy could reasonably be cxpeoctod
te influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these separate and consolidated
linancial slalemenls.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545, we exercise professional Jjudgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

= ldontify and asscss thoe risks of matorial misstatemeoent of the scparate and consolidatod
financial statemaonts, whethor duc to fraud or crror, dosign and perform audit procodures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nol detecting a malerial misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intertional omissions, misrepresenrtations, or the override of internal contral.

«  Otain an understanding of internal cantrol relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an cpinion an the cffectivencss of the Company's and the Group's intornal control,

»  Evaluate thoe appropriatoness of accounting policies uscd and the reoasonablonoss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the zpproprialeness of management’s use of the geing concern basis of
accounting and basad on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to evenls or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's and the
Croup's ahility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
gxists, we are required to draw sttention in our auditer’'s report to the related disclosures in
the separate and consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modity ocur apinian, Qur conclusions are hased on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of cur auditor's report. Howower, tuture ovents or conditions may causc the Company
and the Group to coase to continue as a going concoern,

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate and consolidated
linancial statements, including the disclosures, and whelther the separate and consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
presents a true and fair view.

(Cont’d on next page)
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPEMDENT AUCITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED?
Ta The Members of The Jamaica Stoeck Exchange Limited (Continusd)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for Fhe Audit of the Separate and Consofidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

+  Cbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
ontities or business activitios within the Group to oxpross an opinion on the consolidatod
financial statements. We are responsible far the dircetion, supervision and perfarmance of
Lhe group audil, We remain solely responsible Tor cur audil opinian,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Beoard of Directaors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.,

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audil of the separale and consolidaled Mnancial slalementls of the
current period and are therefora the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
repart unless law or regulation preciudes public disclasdre abkout the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not ke commonicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on additional reguirements of the Jamaican Companies Act

W have obtaincd all the information and cxplanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
halief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit. In aur opinion, proper accounting records
have been mainlained, so Tar as appears from our examinalion of [hose records, and The Tinancial
statements which are in agreement therewilh, give lhe information reguired by the Jamaican
Companies Act, in the manner required.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report s Winston
Robinson.

.a‘;w"! {y

Ernst & Young
Kingston, Jamaica
February 26, 2012

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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CONEOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMEER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

2018 2017
MNetes $'000 $000
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 4 491,222 342 820
Intangible assets o 49 162 G0, 252
Employee benefits Fib) 89,812 125,361
Investment in securities Ba) 141,856 205,044
Leng-term receivables o 15,564 11,155
Tatal non-current assets 787,616 745 837
Current assets
Income tax recoverable - 15,1549
Due from related parties 10{b) 2,684 -
Trade and other receivables 1M1 247 FT3 170,433
Investment in securities ik 18,422 13,496
Government securities purchased wunder
resale agreements 12 214,380 166,689
Cash and cash equivalents 13 240 843 143,164
Tatal current assels 7ed4,212 509,141
Tatal assets 1,511,828 1.254 978
Equity
Share capital 14 238,146 238,146
Fair valus resarve 15 11,065 17 487
Property revaluation reserve 4 176,422 143,837
Revenue reserve non-distributable 16 A8 36T 48 3687
Revenue ressrve 17 651,367 501,143
Total equity 1,125 367 Q48 780
Non-currant liakilities
Deferred tax liabilities 18 54,158 a0, 507
Total non-current liabilities h4 158 80,507
Gurrent liabilities
Due to related party 10 {b) - 754
Income tax payable 52,315 -
Contract liabilities 32{a) 20,448 -
Payables and accruals 14 254 540 224 936
Teatal current liabilities 332,303 225,691
Total equity and liabilities 1,511,828 1,254 978

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statemeants were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on February 26, 2019 and sigred
on its behalf by

_.-"'"- i fi g . ] |
= e Chairman ﬁimﬁ}fwwﬁwﬁ& WManaging Director

lan McNaughton 5 Marlere Street Forrest
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/{LOSS)
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2018
{Expressad in Jamaican Dollars)
2018 2017
MNotas £'000 £'000
Revenus
Cess 484 711 285776
Fee income B0&. 148 611,563
E-campus 15,063 15,921
Other operating income 20 72926 77,680
1,390 848 981,150
Expenses
Staff costs 21 353.085 289 435
Froperty expensas 136 285 119,339
Depreciation and amortization 45 50,384 37,387
Adverising and promotion 58 332 651,193
Professional fees 25,483 s2.471
Securities commission feas 74,362 40 386
Met impairment losses on financial assets 15.599 6,274
E-campus 19,407 13,373
Cther operating expenses 53,522 48314
817 439 BEE 222
Investment income 22(a) 18,0893 16,319
Finanoce costs - {1,195}
Profit before taxation 23 282,502 238,002
Taxation 24 (176,439) (117.384)
Profit for the year 25 413,063 220,668
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ltems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss:
Femeasurement of emploves henefits asset Tl (44 402 (14,430}
Deferred income tax on item that will never be
reclassified to profit or loss 18 14 801 4 810
Revaluation surplus on land 4 2.800 15,000
Fevaluation surplus on property, plant & equipment 4 44 278 15,224
Deferred income tax an revaluation surplus 18 {14,993 (2,073}
3.184 15,529
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Changes in the fair value of debt investments at fair value
through other comprehansive income 15 (7,962 -
Met impairment loss 15 (305) -
Fealised gains on sales of availakhle-for-sale investments 13 (642 (1,163)
Unrealised gains on available-for-sale investments 15 - 11.070
Defarred income tax an items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss 18 2,765 (3,301}
(6.144) 6,604
Cther comprehensive (loss)income for the year, net of taxes {2.960) 22,133
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INGOME FOR THE YEAR 410,103 242 601
EBarnings per stock unit 26 30.59 30.31

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

Ravenue
Fair Proparty Reserve
Share Value Revaluation Noh- Revenue
Capltal Reserve Reserve  Distributable Reserve Total
5000 $000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
(Note 14}  (Mote 15) (Mote 4) (Note 16) (Mote 17)
Halance at January 1, 2017 F36, 146 10 BE S 1148, 458 45 3681 392 189§ H08 D81
Profit for the year - - - - 220 668 220 668
Appreciation in fair value of
invesiments, net of taxes - 6.604 - - - & 604
Re-rmeasurement of employess
kensfit assets, net of taxes - - - - (9.620) (9,620)
Revaluation surplus of propery,
plant and equipmert, net of faxes - - 23,142 - - 23,149
Total comprehensive income - &.604 251449 - 211,048 242 3
for the y=ar
Dividend [Mote 307 - - - - (102,102) (102,102)
Balance at December 31, 2017 236,146 17 487 143,637 48,367 o01,143 848 780
Change in aceounting policy (Mot 32)
Met impairment of financizl assets - - - - {25,285) {25,285)
Change in reclassification of
invesiment impact - {278) - - 2,071 1,753
- {278) - - {23,214 {23,492}
Balance at January 1, 2018 236,116 17,208 113,637 48,367 A7T 820 H23 286
Profit for the year - - - - 413,063 413,063
Other comprehensive income:
Appreciation in fair value of
invesiments, net of taxes - 16,144) - - - (6,144)
Re-measurement of employvess benefit
assels, net of taxes - - - - {29.601) {29.601)
Revaluation surplus of property, plant
and equipment, net of taxes - - 32,785 - - 32785
| otal comprehensive Income
for the yaar - 8,144 32,785 - 383,462 410,103
Dividend [Mote 30} - - - - (210,024) (210,024)
Halance at |Jecember 31 2018 F36, 146 11 DD 146 427 45 3681 6ol 36F 1,170 367

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 21, 2018
(Expressad in Jamaican Dallars)
2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating actlvitles
Profit for the year 413,063 220,668
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 4 28 950 20807
Amartisation of intangible assets 5 21,434 18,780
Gain on sale of debt investments/|{available-for-sale) 15 642y (1,377
Met imnpairment on invesiment 15 (22} -
Loss on disposal of property and eguipment 145 80
Loss on investment through profit and loss 22 8549 -
Write-off of intangible assets b - 4,329
Foreign exchange (gains)losses on investments {3,859) £.830
Employees benefits expense i) 4,614 2271
Met impairment on financial assets 290d) 15,389 6.274
Income tax charge 24 178,438 117,284
Interest income 22{a) (15,174} (21,119
QOperating cash flows before moverneants in working capital 643626 372727
Increase in trade and other receivables (92,9284 (B0,734)
Increase contract liabilities 20,448 -
Increase in payables and accruals 34,604 12 5498
Post employment benefit contrinutions i} (12,467} {10,807
Cash provided by operations 593282 323,784
Income tax paid {132,047) (134,255}
Cash provided by operating activities 458 225 169,520
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment securities, net (15,053} (43.047)
Proceeds from disposal of property and egquipment 208 -
Govemment securities purchased under

resale agreements (47,501) (31.885)
(Payments)/Receipts from related parties (3,439 £76
Procesds from sale of debt investment (2017; available-for-
sale investments) 44 200 91,231
Accuisition of property and equipment 4 (129,221} (76,214)
Actuisition of intangible assets 5 (11,0503 (29 645)
Leng-term receivables (4,.409) (2,305)
Imterest received 17,758 22047
Cash used in inwesting activities (151,469) (69,142)
GCash flows from financing activity
Cividends pzid {213,024% (102.102)
Cash used in financing activity {210,024) (102,102}
Met increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 85,742 {1,715)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 143,164 148,210
Effect of foreign 2xchange rate changes 1,037 {1.431)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13 240,943 143,164

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Expressed in Jamaizan Dollars)

2018 2017
Notes $7000 $°000
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 4 460,250 209513
Iralanggibiler sy ] 27,400 43,233
Irveesbmonl in subsidiary 3] 81,000 51,000
Ermplenyeze: boncelils Tl B3,570 91.057
Irvecstmenl in securilics Bia) 06, 437 136.550
Leng-lerm receiviblos 9 10,374 G.926
Total non-ourrent assets T19121 643.288
Current asseats
Indzoarmiey L receyvaraablo - 34.874
Dus from related party 10k 2.G64 19.475
I rade and other receivables 11 128,617 i, G0
Inyestment in securities G {a)] 16,202 7032
Govemment securities purchased under
resale agresments 12 35 916 368,042
Cash and cash eqguivalents 13 81,670 10,293
Total surrent assets 268 297 170,456
Total assets 8487 418 813,744
Equity
Shar: capilal 14 238,146 238.148
Faair walie rressoree 15 8,261 12 554
Property revaluation reserve 4 176,422 143,637
Revenue reserve 17 22 452 249 562
Tatal egquity F45 681 643 895
MNen-current liabilities
Maexlearrewd Lease lizakaililions 18 43 160 A(T.047
Total non-current liabilities 43 1680 GBT.047
Current liabilities
Dl rexlalod parlics 10{t) 79,584 11.589
Irnezoarmiey aa peysable 25,800 -
Contract liabilitias S2(a) 12,403 -
FPayables and accruals 19 a0,6a7 25,295
Total current liakilities 198,377 106, 588
Total squity and liakilities 987 418 518,744

| he accompanying notes form an integral part ot these tinancial statements.
The finaneial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on February 26, 2019 and signed on
its bahalt by:

——
o

d / - P »
/ o Chairman dnleece ﬂf""'-ﬁﬂft}lh\"ﬂ(i Managing Director
laain MoMNaughlon \ Marlene’ Slreal Formas!
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LQSZ3 AND
QOTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/{LOSS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

2013

2018 2017
Revenus Note $'000 $'000
Cons 432,870 250,052
Foo income 158 598 99 309
E-campus 15.063 19,921
Other operating income 20 231,254 177,346
837,785 R42 628
Expenses
Staff costs 21 196,136 161,805
Fropety expenses To.245 ar 617
Depraciation and amartization 4,5 34,447 22,218
Actuerrlising and promedlion 55,054 5&,700
Frofocssional foos 30,857 20 691
Securities commission faes 68,772 35,233
Met impairment {l2s55) gains on financial assets {3452 4. 324
F-rampus axpenEas 18,4007 13,373
Db operaling Cspaenses 11,868 12,925
458,504 387,500
[rvesbmcenl income 22(a) 5 B7O 8,014
Finance costs - (1.185)
Frofit hofors taxation 23 A58 16D 151,848
Taxalion 24 (43,003) 24 154)
Fraofit tor the year 25 316,157 127 664
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
[tems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss;
Roemeasuremoent ol cmployes benolils assol o) (31,082) (7,158)
Delened income lax o ilem thal will neven be
raclassitiad fo protit or loss 18 1103, 3631 2 386
Rovalualion surplus on lind 4 2,800 15,000
Rovalualion surplus on proporly, plant & cgquiprmonl 4 44 G758 165,224
Dexlezrrezed income: lax on revalualion surplos 18 (14,593 (5,075)
12,064 20377
[lerns il may boe joclassified o mohl o loss:
Changes in the fair valuo ol debl invesimaenls of Faie valuo
through other comprohonsive income 15 {4.485) -
Mot impairmont Inss 15 (Z53) -
Reaglised gains on sale of available-tor-sale
financial assets 15 164.2) (1,165)
Urnresalizod loss on available-Tor-sale linancial assols 15 - 7.5493
Delfemraed incorme lax on ilems hal meay be reclassilied
to protit ar 088 15,18 1,713 [, 2T
{3,671) 4,552
C!I_Lllétl_-::}if_?;!grsellmlmue incoire [or the year, 8.203 24,020
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 224,550 152,583

| hez aaccormipeannying nolos lorm an inlegral parl of hoesoe lnancial slalomoenls.
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR EMDED DECEMEER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dallars)
Fair Property
Share Value Revaluation Revenue
Capital Reserve Reserve Reserve Total
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
{Note 14)  [Note 15) (Mote 4} {Mote 17)
Balance at January 1, 2017 238 148 5,002 118,488 228772 583,406
Profit for the year - - - 127 664 127 654
Qther comprehensive income:
Appreciation in fair value of investments,
net of taxes - 4 552 - - 4 552
Remeasurement of employee benefits
assets, net of taxes - - - (4,772) (4 772
Revaluation of land & building, net of
taxes - - 251489 - 25149
Total comprehensive incoms for the year - 4 552 25,149 122 892 152 593
Dividend (Mote 30) - - - {102,102 {(102,102)
Balance at December 31, 2017 238,148 12,554 143,637 245 562 543,899
Changes in accounting policy (Mote 32)
MNet impairment of financial assets - - - (13,936) (13,936)
Change in reclassification of investment
impact - (622) - 1,814 1,182
- (B22) - {12, 122) (12,744
Balances at January 1, 2018 238,146 11,832 143,637 257 440 631,155
Profit for the year - - - 316157 316,157
Other comprehensive income:
Appraciation in fair valug of investments,
net of taxes - (3,671) - - (3,671)
REemsasurement of emplovee benefits
assets, net of taxes - - - {20,721) (20,721)
Revaluation of land & building.
ret of taxes - - 22,785 - 32,785
Total comprehensive income for the year - {3.671) 32,785 295 436 324 550
Dividend (Mote 30) - - - {210,024} {210,024
Balance at December 31, 2015 238, 1486 8,261 VG422 322 852 745,651

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED CECEMBER 21, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dallars)
2018 2017
Motes $'000 $°000
Cash flows from cperating activities
Profit for the year 316,157 127 664
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 4 19478 14,728
Amortisation of intangible assets 5 14,969 11,181
Less on disposal of property and eguipment 156 20
Met impairment on investments 298 -
Write-off of intangible asset A - 1,845
Met loss on investment threugh profit and 1oss 22{a) 989 -
Forzign exchange (gain)loss (2.315) 4,584
Post employment benefit expense o) 4,093 1,047
Impairment [oss on financial as:ets (reversed)recoanised 29{¢) {3,482 4,324
Gain on sale of debt investments/| available-for-sale)
financial assets 15 (B42) (1,16E)
Income tax charge 24 43003 24 184
Interest income 22{a) (8,973) (10,732}
Dividend income 20 {159,000) {102,138)
Cperating cash flows before movements in working capital 224 600 75712
Increasze in trade and other receivables (64,845 (11,1103
Increase in contract liabilities 12406 -
Increaze in trade and other payables 14,802 16,656
Post employment benefit contributions T{c) {7.688) (5,692)
Cash provided by operations 170 275 74 808
Income tax paid (9,344 (51, 780)
Cash provided by operating activities 162,931 22,826
Cash flows from investing activities
Met acquisition of investmants in securitiss (31.874) (21,540}
Proceeds from sale of investments in debts (2017 available-
for-sale) financial assets 20,000 5F 725
Govemment securities purchased under resale agresments (874 (10,935}
Receipts fromf{ Advances to) related parties 84,776 (1,523)
Acguisition of property and equipment 4 {121,746) (54,047
Acquisition of intangible assets =] (4,486) (27.648)
Loeng-tarm receivable {3,442) (413
Dividend received 152,000 102,138
Interest received 10,022 10,632
Cash provided by investing activities 111,370 54,761
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid {210,024) {102,102}
Cash used in financing activitiss {210,024) {102,102}
Met increase/{decrease) in cash and cash egquivalents 71,277 (24.81E)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 10,293 355609
Effect of foreign exchanoe rate changss 108 iT01)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 81673 10,283

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2018
{Expressad in Jamaican Dollars)

1.

ldentification and principal activities

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited {the Company) is incorporated in Jamaica as a public limited
liakility company. The main activities of the Company are the regulation and operation of a stock
exchange and the development of the stock market in Jamaica. The Company performs the twin
rale of regulating participants in the stock market, and operating an efficient platform on which that
market trades. The Company is domiciled in Jamaica with registered office at 40 Harbour Street,
kingston, Jamaicea and is listed on the Main Market of the Jamaica Stock Exchange.,

The Group comprises the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary as detailed below:

Subsidiaries Frincipal Activity
Jamaica Central Securities Depository To establish and maintain a2 Central Securities
Limited (JC3D) and its wholly-ovwned Depository (C30) in Jamaica o facilitate the
subsidiary, JCSD Trustee 3Services transfer of ownership of securities by bocok
Limited {Incorparated July 21, 2008 entry, including shares, stocks, bonds or

debentures of companies and other elgible
securities.  Its  subsidiary JCSD Trustee
Services Limited provides trustee custadianship
and related services.

Both the JCSD and its subsidiary are incorporated and domiciled in Jamaica. The Company and its
subsidiaries are herein referred to as the Group.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

(a)

o3|

Staternent of compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance and comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board and comply with the provisions of the Jamaican Companies Act.

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reperting Standards:

Standards and interpretations adopted during the year

The Group applied for the first-time cerain standards and amendments, which are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. The Group has not early adopted
any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Although these new standards and amendments applied for the first time in 2018, the nature
and the impact of each new standard or amendment is described below:

IFRS 2 Financial Instruments

IFRS 2, Financial Instruments, which is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2018, replaces the existing guidance in 1AS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measuremeant. IFRS 2 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets and liakilities, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impainment of financial assets and new general hedge accounting reguirements. |t
also carries fonward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
from 1AS 38
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{Expressed in Jamaican Daollars)

2. Statement of compliance and basis of praparation

(]  Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Standards and interpretations adopted during the year (continued)

IFRS 2 Financial Instruments (cantinued)

Although the permissible measurement bases for financial assets — amortised cost, fair valus
through other comprehensive incemes (FVOC!) and fair value through profit or loss (FVYPLY —
are similar to 1AS 39, the criteria for classification into the appropriate measurement
categories are significantly different. IFRE @ replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model, which means
that a loss event will ng longer need to occur before an impairment allowance is recognised.

At the date of transition, the Group is permitted to make a one-time irrevocable reassessment
of its fair value through profit or loss designations for its financial assets and liahilities.

The expected credit loss medel is more forward looking and will require the use of reasonable
and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions to determine increases in credit risk
and measurement of expected credit losses. The Group’s trade and other receivables
classified under financial assets are the most affected due to the new expectad eredit loss
model. |t may also result in an increase in the total level of impairment allowance as all
financial assets are assessed for impairment, and the population size is greater than that for
financial assets with objective evidence of impairment under [AS 39,

The Group has adopted the changes in accounting policies using the modified retrospective
approach as at January 1, 20138, but with no restatement of comparative information for prior
years. Consequently, the Group has recognized adjustments to the carnying amounts of
financial assets between IAS 39 and |IFRS 9 in the opening retained earnings or other
components of equity. Refer to Mote 3(h) and 32(b) for details.

IFRS 15 Revenhue from Conlracis with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customears., Under IFRS 15, the model specifizss that revenue is
recoghised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods ar services to a customer.

IFRS 15 effective for accounting pericds beginning on or after January 1. 2018 replaces |AS
11-Construction Contracts, 1AS 1B —Revenue, IFRIC 13 — Customer Layalty Programmes,
IFRIC 15 —Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from
Customears and SI1C-31 Revenue — Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. |t
toss not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease cantracts, which fall in
the scope of other IFRSs. It also does not apply when there are non-monetary exchanges
between entities in the same ling of business to facilitate sales to customers or potential
customenrs.

An implementation team was established 10 assess the impact of the new standard on the
Group. IFRS 153 has been implemented on January 1, 2018 and the modified retrospective
transition method has been adopted. The Group perfarmed an assessment of IFRE 15 and
no material impact has been noted based on the five step model to be applied to all contracts
with customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLICATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2018
{Expressed in Jamaican Dallars)

2. Statement of compliance and basiz of preparation

(b Adaption of new and revised International Financial Reparting Standards (Continued)

IFRS 16 Ravanue from Confracts with Cusfomars (continued)

Instances of variable consideration have been noted for some revenue streams. Howewer, it
is not expected that there will be any significant revenue reversal associated with these
instances of variable consideration. Within the Group, there are instance of contract habilities
and unsatisfied performance obligations (Motes 32{a)). These unsatisfied peformancs
obligations and other required disclosures have been reportad in Mote 32 (a).

Amentdmant to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Cantracts

The amendments address concerns arising from implemeanting the new financial instruments
Standard, IFRS 8, before implementing the new insurance coniracts standard that the Board
has developed to replace IFRS 4 (see IFRZ 17 below). The amendments introduce two
options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9
and an overlay approach. Thease amendmeants had no impact on the financial staterments of
the Group.

IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Sharo-based Payment Transactions —
Amendments to [FRS 2

The IASE issused amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Papment that address three main
aregs: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and accounting where a medification to
the terms and ceonditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash settled to equity settled.

On adoption, entitizs are required to apply the amendments without restating prier periods,
but retraspective application is permitted if elected for all three amendmeants and ather eriteria
are met. The amendments are effective for annual perinds beginning on or after January 1,
213G, with early application permitted. The Group does not have share-based transactions
theraefore the ameandments did not have an impact on its financial statements.

1AS 40, Investmeant Property — Transfers of investment Properfy {Amendments o [AS
40}

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or developrment into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property mests, or cegses to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mers change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in
wse, These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Group.

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initizl
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a
nan-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of
the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognise the nan-monetary asset or
nen-moanstary liakility arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each
payment or receipt of advance consideration. This interpretation does not hawve any impact on
the Group's financial statements.

81



@\ Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market” \gpod @b Jam B <3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

2 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

(kb Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards {Continued)

Standards and interpretations adopted during the vear {cantinued)
Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle (issued December 2016)

» |FRS 1 First-ime Adogtion of IMfernational Financial Reporiing Standards
Under this amendment, the short-term exemptions for first time adopters in paragraphs
E2-ET of IFR3 1 were deleted because they have now served their intended purpose.
Thase amendments do not have any impact on the Group's financial statements.

o |AS 28 Investments in Associafes and Joint Venfuras

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other
gualifying entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to
measure its investments in associates and jeint ventures at fair value through profit or
loss, If an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or
joint venture that is an investment cntity, they may, when apolying the cquity mcthod,
elect to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or
joint wenture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture's interests in
subsidiarias. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate or joint
venture, at the later of the date on which {a) the investment entity associate or joint
venture is initially recognised; () the associate or joint venture becomes an investment
entity; and {c) the investment entity assaciate or jeint venture first becomes a parent,
These amendments do not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

New revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

IAS 1 and |AS 8 - Definition of Material - Amendmentis to I1AS 1 and IAS B

The I1ASE issved amencments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and 1AS 8
Ancounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of
‘matarial’ across the standards and to clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new
definition states that, 'Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonakly be expected to influence cdecisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financizl
information about & specific reporting entity.’

The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. An entity will need to assess whether the information, either individually
or in cambination with other information, is matenal in the context of the financial statements.
The amendments are effective for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and
are not expected to have any impact on the consclidated financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation [Continued}

(b}  Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

New revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
{continued)

Amendmenis fo TAE 19: Pian Amendmeni, Curtailment or Seftlement

The amendments to 145 19 address the aecounting when a plan amendment, curtailmeant or
settlement occurs during a reporting pericd. The amendments specify that when a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is
required to;

+  Deftermine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability {asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan
asscts aftor that cvent.

+  Determine net interest for the remainder of the penod after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement using: the net defined benefit liability [(asset) reflecting the
benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate
used o remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

The amencdments also clarify that an entity first determines any past service cost, or a gain or
loss on setflement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling. This amount is
reconnised in profit or loss, An entity then determinas the effect of the asset ceiling after the
plan amendment, curtailment or setflement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts
inciuded in the net interest, is recognised in other comprenensive income.

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements cccurring on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporing pericd that beqing on or after January 1, 2019,
with early application permitted. These amendments are not expected to hawve an impact on
the financial statements. The directors and management have not yet assessed the impact of
the applicaticn of this standard on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments fo TAS 28: Long-fenm interesfs in associates and joint ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFR2 9 to long-term interests in an associate or
Joint venture to which the equity method is not applisd but that, in substance, form part of the
net investment in the asscciate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is
relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss model in IFR3 8 applies to such
long-term interests,

The amendments also clarified that, in applying IFES 9, an entity does not take account of
any lesses of the associate or joint venture, or any mpairmant lesses an the net investment,
recopnised as adjustments to the nct investment in the associate or joint venture that arisc
from applying IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective frcm January 1, 2018,
with early application permitted. Since the Group does not have such long-term interests in its
asseciate and joint venture, the amendments will not have an impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (Continued)

(k)  Adoption of now and reviscd International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued )

Hew revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
{continued}

Amendments to IFRS 9 - Prepaymeant Faaturas with Negative Compeansation

Linder IFR& 3, a debt instrument can be measured at amontised cost or at fair value through
olher comprehensive income, provided Lthal the conlraclual cash llows are ‘solely paymenls
of princizal and interest on the princigal amount outstanding” {the SPPI criterion) and the
instrument is held within the approprigte business model for that classification. The
amendments to IFRS 2 clarity that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless of
the event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of
which party pays or receives reasonzble compensation tor the early termination of the
contract.

The basis for conclusions to the amendments clarified that the early termination can result
from a contractusl term or from an event outside the control of the parties to the contract,
such as a change in law or regulation leading to the early termination of the contract.

The amendments must be applied retrospectively; earlier application is permitted. The
amendment provides specific transition provisions if it is only applied in 2019 rather than in
2018 with the remainder of IFRS 2. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on ar after January 1, 2018, The directors and management have not yet assessed
the: irmpact of the application of this standard on the Group's financial statemesnts.

IFRE 3 Busingss Combination - Definition of a Business - Ameéendments to IFRS 3

The |ASE issusd amendments to the definition of a8 business in IFRS 3 Business
Combinatiens to help entities determing whether an acquired set of activities and assets is 2
business or not. They clarfy the minimum reguirements for a business, remowve the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of regplacing any missing elements,
add guidanct to help entitics asscess whether an acquired process is substantive, narmow the
definitions of a business and of ocutputs, and introduce an optional fair value concentration
tast.

The amendmeants must be applied to transactions that are either business combinations or
asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after the baginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2020 with earlier application permitted. The
amcndmeonts arc not cxpected to have any impact on the consclidated financial statcmonts of
the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |AS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendmenls address Lhe confllicl belwesn IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 in dealing wilh the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an asscciate or joint venture, The
amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that
constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, betweesn an investor and its associate or jeint
venture, is recognised in full. Ay gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets
that do not constitute a2 business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelatec
investars” interests in the associate or joint venture. The |1ASEB has deferred the effective date
of lhese amendments indefinitely, bul an enlily thal early adopls Ihe amendments musl apply
them prospectively, The Group will apply these amendments when they become effective but
will nol have an impacl on the Group's financial slalemenls.
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HMOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR EMDED DECEMEBER 21, 2018
{Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

2.  Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (Continued)

(b} Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

New revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
{continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 186 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
wihether an Arrangernent confains & Lease, 31C-15 Operating Leases-incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets
out the princigles for the racognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessess to account for all leases under a single on-balance shaet model similar
to the accounting for finance leeses under 1AS 17. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of Tow-value” assets (e, personzl computers) and short-
term leases (e, leases with a lease term of 12 months or less).

At the commencement cate of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term {ie., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease iability and the depreciation expense
an the right-of-use asset,

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events (... a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine those payments). The lessee will generally
recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment ta the
right-of-use asset.

Lessar accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under
|AS 17. Lessars will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
|AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases; operating and finance leases.

IFRS 18 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosuras than under
|AS 17. IFRS 18 is elleclive lor annual periods beginning on or aller January 1, 2019, Early
application is permilted, bul nol baelore an enlily applies IFRS 15, A lessee can choose 10
apply the slandard using eilher a lull relrospeclive or a modilied relrospeclive approach. The
standard’s transition provisichs pemit certain reliefs.

The directors and management of the Group expect that a right of use asset and lease
abligation will be recagnised non the statement of financial position for each operating lease.
In addition, depreciation and interest expense will be recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income. There will also be increased disclosures as required by IFRS 16,
The directers and management have not yet completed the assessment of the impact of the
application of the standard on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 21, 2018
{Expressead in Jamaican Dollars)

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation (Continued)
(b Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Mew revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
(continued)

IFRS 17 Insurance Coniracls

In May 2017, the IASE issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {(IFRS 17), a comprehensive new
accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Onee effective, IFRS A7 will replace IFRS 4 Insurances Contracts
(IFRS 4} that was issued in 2005, IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (e, life,
non-life, direct insurance and re-insuranes}, regardless of the type of entities that issue them,
as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features. A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall chjective of IFRS 17 is to provide an
accounling model for insuranee conbracls thal is more wselul and consislent lor insurers. In
conlrasl Lo the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandlfalhering previous
local accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts,
covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the general modeal,
supplemented by:

« A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the wvariable fee
approach)

« A simplificd approach (the premiom allocation apgproach) mainly for shod-duration
contracts

IFRS 17 is effective tor reporting periods peginning on or after January 1, 2022, with
caomparative fiQures required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies
IFRE 8 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17, The Group doss not hawve
insurance contracts therefore the amendments are not expected to have an impact on its
financial statements.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Tha interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes whon tax treatmeonts involve
uncertainty that affects the application of |AS 12, The interpretation doss not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of 1AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specitically
addresses the following;

= Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

= The assumpticns an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

=  How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unussed
taaw crendits and thax rates

s How an entity considers changes in facts and cireumstanoes

An entity has to detenmine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
togeather with ane or maore other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts
the resclution of the uncertainty should be followed. The interpretation is effective for annual
reparting periods beginning on or after January 1, 20119, but certain transition reliefs are
available. The direclors and managemenl hawve nol yel assessed Lhe impacl of lhe applicalion
of this slandard on Lthe Group's linancial slalemenls.
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2 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {Continued)
(b}  Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (Sontinued)

New revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
jcontinued)

The Concepiual Framework for Financial Reporting

Effective immediately for the [ASE and the IFRS Interpretations Committee. For preparers
who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Frameswork, it is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020.

The revised Conceptual Framewark for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) is
not a standard and none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requirements
in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist the Board in
developing standards, to halp preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no
applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the
standarcs.

The IASE izsued lhe Conceplual Framework in March 2018, (L sels oul a comprehensive sel
ol concepls Tor inancial reporling, slandard selling, guidance for preparers in developing
cansistent accounting policies and assistance to others in their efforts 0 understand and
interpret the standards.,

The Conceptual Framewark includes some new concepts. provides updated definitions and
recognition criteria far assets and liabilities and clarifies some important concepts. 1t is
arranged in eight chapters, as follows:

Chapter 1 = The abjective of financial reporting

Chapter 2 - Qualitative characteristics of useful financial information
Chapter 3 = Financial statements and the reporting entity

Chaptear 4 - The elements of financial statements

Chaptear 5 - Recognition and derecognition

Chaptar § - Measurement

Chaptar 7 - Presentation anc disclosure

Chapter 8 - Concepts of capital anc capital maintenance

The changes to the Conceptual Framewark may affect the application of IFRES in situations
where no standard gpplies to a particular transaction or event.

The directors and management hawve not yet assessed the impact of the application of this
Framewaork on the Group's inancial slalemenls.

87



@\ Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market” \gpod @b Jam B <3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 31, 20138
{Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

2.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {(Continued)

(b)

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards {Continued)

New revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
{continued)

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle fissued In December 2017)
These improvements include:

«= |FRS 3 Busingss Combinations
The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains contrel of 8 business that is a joint
operation, it applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages,
including remeasuring previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint
operation at fair wvalue. In doing so, the acquirer remeasures its entire previously held
interest in the joint operation.

An enlily applies lhose amendments W business combinalions lor which [he acquisilion
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
Jdanuary 1, 2019, with early application permitted. These amendments are not expactad
to have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

+ |FRS 11 Joint Arrangements
A party that participates in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation might
obtain joint control of the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation
consbilules a business as delined in IFRS 3. The amendmeanls clarily thal the previously
held interests in that joint operation are not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments to transactions in which it obtains joint control on ar
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1,
2019, with early application permitted. These amendments are not expected to have an
impact cn the Group's financial statcments.

. A3 12 Income Taxes
The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences of dividends are linked more
directly to past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to
distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income tax consegquences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or cquity according to where the
entity criginally recognised those past transactions or events.

An enlily appligs those amendmenls [or annual reporling periods beginning on or aller
Jdanuary 1, 2019, with early applicaticn is permitted. When an entity first applies those
amendments, it applies them to the ncome tax consequenceas of dividends recognised on
or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period. The directors and management
have not yet assessead the impact of the application of this amendment on the Group's
financial statements.
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2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {(Continued}
(b} Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

New revised and amended standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
{cantinued)

Annual Improvements 20715-2017 Cycle (issued in December 2017) (confinued)

+  |AS 22 Bomowing Costs
The amendrents clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any bormowing
ariginally madc to dowvclop a gualifying assct whon substantially all of the activitics
necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An entity applies those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on or after the keginning
of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies those amendments. An
entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019, with 2arly application permitted. The directors and management have
not yet assessed the impact of the application of this amendment on the Group's financial
statements.

ey Basis of measurement and functional currency

The Group's financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
financial assets classified as fair valug through profit and loss and fair value threugh other
camprehensive incoma and freshold land and buildings that are measoured at revalued
amounts or fair values as set out in the accounting policies at Motes 3(h) and 3(d),
respectively. Histarical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for assets. Unless atherwise stated, the financial statements are presanted in
thousands of Jamaica dollars ($000). The Jamaican dollar is the functional and presentation
cumrency of the Group and Company.

{d} Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company
and theo cntitics controllcd by the Company (its subsidiarics). Gontrol is achicved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and cperating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehansive incoms from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of cisposal as appropriate. Total
comprehensive income of subsidianes is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-cantralling interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustmeants are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
lheir aceounting policies in ling wilh lhose used by olther mambers of the Group.

All intre-group transactions, balanccs, incomc and cxpenscs arc climinatcd in full on
consalidation,
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2 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation [Continued)

{(d) Basis of consalidation (Continued)

Business combinations are accounted for using the acguisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any nan-contralling interests in the acquiree. For
cach busincss combination, the Group cloots whether to measurc the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acguisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liakilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
ecaonomic circumstances and pertinent conditions 25 at the acguisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree,

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Itis then considered in the determination of goodwill.

Any contingent consideration to be transfarred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value
at the acguisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of IFRS 9 measured at fair value with changes in
[air value recoonised in prafil or less, IN the canlingenl censideration is nol wilhin Lthe scape of
IFRS &, it is measured at fair value at each reporting date and chanues in fair valug shall be
recognised in the profit and loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as eguity is not
re-measured and subsequent setflement is accounted for within equity,

{e]  Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to
maka judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the
reported amaunts of, and disclosures related to, assets, liabilities, contingent assets and
contngent liabilities at the reparting date and the income and expenses for the year then
ended. The cstimates and associated assumptions arc based on historical cxpericnce andfor
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  Actual
amounts could differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an chgoing basis. Revisions to
gecounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision only affects that pericd or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision
affects both cumrent and future pericds.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that hawve a signiticant ettect on
the financial statements and estimates with 3 significant risk of material adjustment in the next
financial vear are discussed below:
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2 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation [Continued)

(el  Accounting estimates and judgements {Continued)

L Alloweance Mor credil losses

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
nstruments not held at fair value through profit or loss, ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the ariginal effective interest rate, The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held, if any, or other credit cnhancements that arc integral to the
contractual terms.

ECLs arc rcoogniscd in two stages. For credit cxposures for which thore has not been a
significant increase in crecit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
asses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-
month ECL)}. For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, 8 loss allowance i3 required for credit losses
expected over the remaining lifs of the exposure, irrespactive of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in
caloulating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experence,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Group applies the general approach
for calculating the ECL considers changes to the borrower and credit risk related
variables such as changes in Lhe probabilily of defaull (PD) and loss given delaull (GD),
exposure amounts, collateral values, migration of default probakilities and internal credit
risk ratings and supportable forward, looking information, including macroeconomic
factors. It is the Group's policy to measure ECLs on such financial instruments at FWOCI
and amartised cost on a 12-month basis.

At year end the loss allowance provision recognised in respect of trade receivables of the
Group amounted to $37.84 million (2017 $15.26 million) and for the Company $7.75
million (2017 $8.78 million} (Mot 11).
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2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation {Continued)

e}  Accounting estimates and judgements {Continued)

. Fair value of inancial instruments

As described in NMote 29, management uses its judgment in selscting appropriates
valuation techiniques to determing fair valuas of financial assets. Valuation technigues
commenly used by market practitioners supported by appropriate assumptions are
applied by the Group. The financial assets of the Group at the end of the reporting
period stated at fair value determined in this manner amounted to $160.28 million {2017:
$215.54 million) and the Company $112.64 million {2017: $143.64 million) {Motc 8).

Hzd the fair value of these securities been 2% higher or lower the fair value reserve for
the Group would increasc/decrcase by $3.21 million (2017 34.37 million), Company
$2.52 million {2017: $2.87 million).

= Employes benafits

As disclosed in Note 7, the Group operates a defined bensfit pension plan. The
refirement benefit asset disclosed in the statement of financial position for the Group is
389.81 million (2017 $126.56 million) and Company $63.57 million (2017 $91.06
millian). The defined benefits plan, is subjact to estimates in respact of perindic costs
which costs are dependent on returns on assets, future discount rates, rates of salary
increzses and inflation rate in respect of the pensicn plan.

The estimated return on pension assets assumption is determined by considering long-
term historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term investment
refims. The Group estimates the appropriate discount rate annuzlly which rate is used o
determine the present value of estimated cash outflows expected to be required to settle
the pension and post-retirement benefit obligations, Actuaries are contracted in this
reqard.

To delermine the approgriale discounl rale in he gbsence of high gualily corporale
bends, the interest rate on government bonds that have maturities apgroximating the
related pension lighbilities was considersd.

Mote 7{i) gives details of sensitivity analysis in respect of the above.
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2. Statement of compliance and bhasis of preparation {Cantinuad)

(#) Accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

«  Fair value of land and buildings

Included in the statement ot financial position are land and buildings with a carrying value
of F388 million al lfair vale as delemnined by oanooxlernal valualor loss aoeomelalod
depreciation (Note 4).

The Group engaged an external wvaluation specialist to determine the appropriste
valuation techniques and inputs tar tair valus measuremeants,

» Residual value and expected useful life of propeity, plant and edquiprment
The residual value and the usetul life of each aseet are reviewed at least at each financial
yowar-cncd, Aand, i eagpectalions diffor frome provious nslimalos, The change s accooniod Tor
as a change in accounting estimate, 1he usetul lite of an asset is detined in terms ot the
pune s copeelead alilivy le Lhe: Groogs.

* TaHuis

Uncorlaintios oxist wilh rospoct o Lhe inlorprelstion of lax rogulalions ancd e amound
and timing ot future taxable income. The Group establishes provisions, based on
rrasnnable cslimales laking cogniqanco of possible dilfering inlorpeelations of  lax
regulations by the taxable entity and the relevant tax authority. Such difterences of
inlsrpretalion may anse on s wide varely of issues depending on the condilions
prevailing in the Group.

Deterred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probatde thal laxable prodil will be available arggains) which The osses can be alilized.
Significant management judgemeant is required to determine the amount ot deferred tax
aszols hal can be recognized, based upon lhe likely Uming and e level of Tulure
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. (Notes 18 and 24).

3. Significant accounting pelicies
ta}l  Forsign currancies

The financial statements are presentzed in JJamaican dollars, the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Croup operates (its functional currency).

I preyparing Lhe financial stalcmenls of thoe Group, Ensaclions o currencies olbor than the
Group's lunclional curreney, the Jamaican dollar, are recorded ol the rales of oxchange
pravailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost it a forelgn currency are
not restranslated.

Exchange difftronces on monetary ems, are recognised ino profit or loss in the poriod in
which they arfze, The2 gain or loss on the change in tair value is treated in line with the
rizcognilion of The gain on loss on change in Taie valoe of Theilem; e eanslstion differonoos
on items whose fair valuge gain or loss is recognized in G| or profit and loss are also
rocognicod in OCT er prafil or loss rospeclively.
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3 Bignificant aceounting pelicies
by Current vs. non-curent classification

Ther Gronp prosenls asscls and lisbililics o slatlemonl ol financial pesilion basod . on
currentinon-current classification. An asset is curmrent when it is:

Expacted fo be realised ar intended to be scld or consumed in the normal operating cyele
Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expocted to be realisod within twelve months after tho reporing poriod, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted trom being exchanged or used to settle a
limbailily Tear el lessasl Pweezhee: mcnibs Allor the reporling prericd.

All othor assels are classiiod as non-currcnl,
A liabilily is currenl when;

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

ILis held primsrly Tor the purpose of lrading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There s no uncondiional night o defer he scelllement ol te liakilily Tor al leas) wehee
manths atter the reporting period.

The: Group classifics all othor liabilities as non curont.

Dislearend Lax assels dnd habalilios @o classiiod as oon-oomeenl assels socd labahlies.
fpn FTH r 1 el % %
fey Fair value messurcment

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transter a liability in
an arderly tfransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or ransfer
the liability takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
s i the shsence of & principal markel, in the mosl advanlageous markel for the assel or
izabailiLy

The: principal or the maost sdvantagoons markoet must be accassible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
parlicipants would use when pricing the assel or liabilily, assuming thal markel parlicipants
act in their economic best interest.

A Tair value measurcmenl of & non-nancial ssscl ks inlo accounl @ markel parbicipant's
abilily Ly gencrale ceonomie benelils by osing The assel in ils highost and boes)l oseoon by
solling il Lo anolhcer mesrkel parlicipant bal woold use the assolin ils highes and Bes) oso.

The: Group's Board of Directors determinges the policios and procodures for recliming fair
walue measurement, such as property, plant and cquipment (specifically lEand and buildings).
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3. Significant accounting policies [Continued)
{cy  Fair value measurement (Continued)

Extornal valuers are involved for valuation ot signiticant asscts, such as property, plant and
cjuipment (spocificaly land and boildings). Involvoment of cxiermal valaees is decided opon
annually. Seleclion crileriz inchudse markel knowledge, repulalion, independence and whelher
professional standards are mainfained. At each reporing date, the Group analyses the
movements in the valucs of asscts and liabilitics which are requircd 10 bo re-moasured or re-
ausessed as per lhe Group's accounling policies.

Thiz Group, in comunclion wilh the oxlemal valuers, also compares cach ol he changos in
the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external scurces to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

The Group uses valualion Llechmiguoes bal are appropriate in e cireurnstancoes and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observakle
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assels and labiliies Tor which lair valug s measured or disclosed n Lhe insncial
slalemenls are calagorised wilhin the lair valus hisrarchy, described as follows, based on Lhea
lovwesl lewal inpul thal is signiflicant o the Tair valus measursment as & whole:

o Level 1 — CQuolad (unadjusled) markel prices in aclive markels Tor idenlical assels or
lizabaililisss

o Level 2 — Valualion lechniques Tor which he lowessl leval inpul Lhal is significant o ha
[air veslue measumament is direcly or indireclly obsenvable

o Level 3 — Valualion lechniques Tor which he lowessl leval inpul thal is signilicant Lo the
[air vadlue msasuramanl is unobservable,

For ha purpose of Tair value disclosures, the Group bas delarmined classes of assels and
lissbaililios on the Basis of he nature, characleristics and risks of he assel or labilily and the
el af the Tair value hicrarchy as cxplained above,

For assots and liabilitics that aro recognised in tho financial statemaonts on & roeuming basis,
lhe Group delerminas whelher ansfers have ococurred balwesn Levels in Lhe hisrarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuremaent as & whole:) at the ond of cach roporting poriod.
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3. Significant accounting pelisies (Continued)
id)  Property and equipment

Land and buildings held tor use in the supply ot goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being
ther fair valua ar the datoe of revaluation, ess any subsoquaent accumulated doeproeciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are pertformed with sufticient
regularity such that the carrying amounts do not difter materially trom those that would be
delerminaed using lair velues al the end of each reporling period.

Any rovaluation inercase arising on tha rovalation of such land and buildings is rocognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in
profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
deerease proviously cxpensod. A doereaso incarrying amounl ansging on he rovalealion of
such land and buildings is recodgnised in profit or loss o the estent that iF oxeoods fhe
halance, it any. held in properties revaluation resenve relating to a previous revaluation ot that
auscl, Doprociation on rovalucd  buildings is recognisod in profil or loss, Additionally,
accumulalod doeprocialion as al he rovaloalion dalo s oliminslod agains! Lhoe gross canmying
amount of the asset and the net amaount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus
remaining in property revaluation reserve is transterred directly o revenue reserve.

Furnilure: and Nxlures, officoe couipmoenl, compolor bardwesare @od melor webiclos beld for ose
in the supply of somviees, of for administrative purposes, are statod in the statemont of
financial position at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Proparties in lhe course of consliuclion Tor supply of goods and services ar adminisirative
purposes are camied at cost, less any recognised impainment loss. Cost includes protessional
tees, and tor qualitying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property and
cquiprmicnl whoen complelod and ready for intendod osc,

Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other propety assets, commeanceas when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Frochold land and copilal work-in-progress ane nol doprecialed,

Depreciation is recognised so as o wite off the cost of property, plant and equipment {ofher
thean Mreeshiold Bnd, land improvements and work-in-progress) less residual valuss, over Lhair
vseful livess, nsing the: siraighl-line melbed.

Thax cslirnalod uselul lvess, residusl valoos @nc dopeociation iethods e roviewod @l the one
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on A
prospective basis.

An itom of property, plant and cqguipmeont is dorecognised upon disposal or when no fumrne
economic benefits are expected to arise trom the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an itern of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales procesds and the carrying amount of the
A=zl and is recognisod inopeolil or loss,
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3. Significant accounting pelicies [Continued)
el Inlengible assels
(i} Intangible assets acquircd soparatoly

[nlarnnible assels wilh lnile usa2iol lves hal are acouired separalely are camied al cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation s
recognised an & straight-line basis avor their estimatod uscful lives, The ostimatod
uselul lile and amorlizalion method are reviewed al the end ol each reporling period,
with thee eftect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospeactive basis.
Inlangible asscls wilh indelinile usclul ives thal are acquired separalely are camiod al
cost less accumulated impairment losses.

(it Dorecognilion ol inlangible assels

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits
are: expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
inlangible assel, measured as lhe difference bebwveen the nel disposal proceeds and he
carrying amount ot the asset are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
clerenoennisoe.

iy Impaimrment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting pericd, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determing whether there is any indication that those assets have
sullcred an impairmoent loss, [T any such indicalion cxists, the recoverable ameounl of the
asset is estimated in order fo determine the extent of the impairment lass {if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
ther recoverable amount of the cash-goncrating unit to which tho asset belongs.

When a reascnable and consistent basis of allocation can be identitied, corporate assets are
alsn allncated to individual cash-genarating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
amallest group of cash-generating unils Tor which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identitied.

Inlangible assels with indelinile uselul lives and inlangible assels nol yvel available Tor use are
tested tor impairment at least annually and wheneaver there is an indication that the asset may
be impaircd.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

3. Significant accounting pelicies [Continued)
ify  Impaiment of tangible and intangible assets (Continued)

Rroovorablee amonint is the higher of fair waliun less eosts o sell and valie in osc. In
assessing value in use, the estimaled Tulore cash Mows are discounled o their present valoe
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the fime value of
money and the isks specific 10 the assct for which tho estimates of future cash flows have
nol been adjusled.

1 hex recoverable amounl of an asscl (or cash-gencrating unil) is ostimaled o be loss than ils
carrying amount, the cammying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverabls amount. An impaimrment loss 5 recognised as an expenss immeadiately in profit
and loss,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-
genorating unit) is incroased to the rovised estimate ot its recoverable amount, but so that the
incressed camying amounl does nol exceed the carmyng amounl hal would have been
determined had no impairment Inss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
pric yesars. A reversal of an impairmaent loss is roencgnisod immediatedy inprofit or inss.

i) Employee benefit costs
Pension obifgations

The Group oporales & doelined bonelil ponsion plan, The cost of providing  benchls s
determined using the Projected Unit Gredit Method with actuarial valuations being carried out
at the end of each reporting period.

Eemeasuremenls, comprising of acluanal gains and losses, the elfecl of he assel ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benetit liability and the return on
plan assots, are rocognisod  immodiately ino the statcment of financial position with A
corresponding debil o credil 1o relsined earnings throoagh e stalemment of profil or loss and
other comprehansive income in the perind in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
roeclassificd to profit or loss in subsoguent perods,

Past service costs are recognised in protit or loss an the eadier ot

» The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Mol inlerest s caleulaled by applying the discount rale o the nel delined bonefil Tability or
a=set. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
CERPCNSeS in consolidated statcment of profit or loss and othor comprahensive incomie:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and loszes on
curtailments and non routine settlomaonts
«  Melinleras| axpense or income
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3

Significant accounting pelicies (Continued)

th)

MNnancial assets and liabilities

Financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, government securties purchased
under resale agreements, investment securities, due from related parties and receivables.
Financial habililies comprse payables, conlract hiathililies and doe lo relaled parnlies.

(i) Recognition

The Group initially recognises financial instruments on the date at which the Group
pecomeas g party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, e the date that they
drc originglod.

{ii} Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights w receive the contractual cash flows on
the financial asset in a transacticn in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
cramorship of the insncial assel are ansfomed. Aoy inleresl in ansfomrod  insneal
asacls thal is crealed or relained by the Group s recognised ag o osoparalo assel or
iability.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
dimchargoed, cancellod or have coopired.

| ha (Group entars info transactions wharaby it franstars Assets it retains aither all ora
parfion of ey risks and rewsands of the emsfomroed assels. 0 all or subsiantially ol sk
and rewards are retained, than the transtamad assats are not derecognised, Transtars
of assets with retention of all ar substantially all risks and rewards include, for example,
repurchase transactions.

(il Mea=zurement

AL initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVYPL), transaction
cosls thal are direclly allibulsable o the acguisilion of he Tinancial assel. Triansaclion
cisls ol linancial asscls carriod &l FYPL are expensed in profil o loss.

Financial azsels wilh ombedded derivalives are considercd  in Their enlirely when
datarmining whethar thair cash flows ara solaly paymant of principal and intarast.

Debt instruments

From January 1, 2018 the initial recognilion and  subscguent messoremoent ol deks
instrumenls depoends on the Group's business model for managing the assel and The
cash fiow charackoristics ot tho assaet. Thorn are three moasurcment catogorios inko
which the group classities its debt instruments;

« Amortised cost - Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
lhose cash Mows represent solely paymenls of principal @nd inleresL sre moessaed
Al damaorlisod cosl. Inleros) income from hoso leancial asscls s includod in linanoo
incovme: using the oftective intorest rmatc mothod. Any gain or loss  arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gainsflossas) togathaer with forgign exchange gains and losses, Impairmant losses
are presented as a separate line item in the statement of protit or oss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

3. Significant accounting pelicies [Continued)
(R} Financial assets and liabilities (continued})
(iil}  Measurement (Continued)

Debt insfrumeants (Continted)

«  Fair Value through other comprehensive Income (FYWOC!) - Assels thal are held (or
collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
asscls’ vash Mows oposenl solcly paymenls of principal oand  inleiosl, e
measured at FVOC!, Movements in the carrying amount are taken through GCl,
axcept for the recognition of impaiment gains or losses, interest income and
toreign exchange gains and lessaes which are recognised in profit or loss. When
e financial asscl s derccognised, the cumulalive gain or loss  provioosly
recognized in OC| is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in
othar gainsflosses) Intorest incoma from thesoe tinancial assets s includoed in
Ninanee incorme using he ellfeclive inleres) rale melhod, Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gainsflosses) and impairment expenses are
nrosonted as soparate line item in the statomont of protit or loss.

& Fair value through profit and loss (FVIFL) - Assets that co not meet the criteria tor
amortiscd] cosr or FYOC! are measurod ar FYPL D Again or loss one A debt
invoestmaent that is subscguently measurcd at FYPL is recognised in profit ar loss
and presented nel wilthin olher gainsf{losses) in the period in which il arises.

Prioe Lo January 1, 2018, on inilial recognilion, linancial asscls and liabidilics are
measured at fair value plus or minus as applicable, in the case of a financial asset or
iability not at tair value through protit or Ioss, transaction costs that are directly
allpibulable o he scquisilion o ssue of he inancial asscl or Tinancial liakilily.

The measurement of financial assets subscquent o inftial recognition depoends Upon
hair classilicalion as sal oul in Mol 3hiv) balow, namely: leans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method; investments in equity
instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose tair
valle cannet e reliably determined arc measurod at cosr

Financial liakilities are measured at amorised cost atter initial recognition, using the
cfTetlive mlercsl el melhod, wilh inleest cxpense ecogniscd ane an clToctive yicld
basis except where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 21, 2018
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3. Significant accounting pelicies (Continued)
{h}  Financial assets and liabilities {Continuoed)
(v} Classificatian

From January 1, 2018, lhe group classilies ils financial assals in e [ollowing
measuremcnl caleoonos:

] theses I bey mcAasurcd subsooquenlly al Taie valoe {cither theoagh OCH or Theoogh
prcafil ear loessd; s
* those to be measuraed at amorisoed cost.

The classification depends on the entin’s business model for managing the financial
Assels and the contmclual lerms of he cash ows,

For imvestmenls in cguily instrumenls hal are nol beld for ading, tis will depend on
whilhor the group has made an imevocatde electon al the Ume of inital recognition Lo
Account Tow The couily investmenl &l Taie valoo Theoagh other comprechensive incomee
(FVOCI).

The group reclassifies debt investments when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Price Lo January 1, 2018, the Group classified ils financial assels inle the Tollowing
calagorieeg: loans and recaivables; and available-lor-sale, Managemenl detarminsd Lhe
classificalion of s rvesiments alinilial recognilion.

{1} Losns and recoivablos

Laans and othor rococivablos aro non doerivative financial asscts with fiked or
determinable paymeants that are not quated in an actve market.  Loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents
anc long-term receivable) are measured at amortised cost using the eftective
interest method less any impairment.

Inleresl income is recopnised by applyving e cllfoetve inlerosl rale, oxcepl for
shorl-lerm rewnivablos whoen The recognilion ol inleeoshwoold Be immalcorial.

(2} Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale  investments  are  non-derivative  investments  that  are
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the other three
categories of tinancial assets. They are intended to be held for an incefinite
period of time, and may be sold in response to needs tor liguidity or chanoes in
interest rates, exchange rates or market prices. Available-for-sale investments
are measured at fair value, except tor any unquoted equity =ecurities whose fair
value cannot be relishly measured, which are carried at cost. Interest income iz
recognised in profil or loss using e elfeclive inlerest meathod, Other unrealised
gaing  and  losses anising rom changes in [&ir value of available-lfor-sale
investmonls are recopnizcd noolher comprehensive income, On disposal or
irmprirnenl ol Ihesc iecsimoenls, the onrealiend gains or loessos inchadod in Gaie
value reserve are transferred to profit or loss.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014
{Expressed in Jamaican Dallars)

3 Significant accounting policies [Continued)

by Financial assets and liabilities {Continued)

(v Identification and measuremant of impairmeant

From Januwary 1, 2018, lhe Groop sssesses on d lomward Iooking basis the expeoled
credit logzes aszociated with its debt instruments carried at amartised cost and FYWOCI.
I he: impairmoent methodology applicd deponds on whothor thero has booen a signiticant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach parmitted by IFRS 8,
which requires expectad lifetime [osses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
recaivables. Ses Nole 290d) for furlher delsils.

Prior to January 1, 20018, at each tinancial yaar end, the (Group assassad whethat thara
was objoctive cvidenco that financial asscts not carricd at fair valuc through profit or
loss are impaired. Tinancial assets are impaired whan  cobjective  evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has oocured after the initial recognition of the asset,
and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset that can be
eslimaled relighly.

Cihjective avidence that tinancial assets ars impairmed can includae default or
delingquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will
enler bankrupley, the disgppearance of an aolive markel [or g securily, or olher
observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment
status of hormowars or issuars in the Group, or cconomic conditions that corralate with
defaultz in the Group. In addition, for an investment in an equity =ecurity, a significant
or prelongsd decling in its fair valuae below its cost is ohjective avidance of impairmant.

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and receivables are at a specific
assel level and colleclively. All individually significanl loans and receivables are
assessed for specific impairment. All individually significant loans and receivables
found not ko be specifically impaired are then celleclively assessced for any impairmeant
that has been incurred but not vet identified. Loans and receivables that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed Tor impairment by grouping together
loans and receivables with similar risk characteristics.

In assassing colloctive impairment, managoment makes judgomonts as to oumront
economic and credit conditions and their effect on default rates, loss rates and the
axpactad timing of future mcovaries, ansuring that assumptions ramain appropriata.

Impairmeant losses on assets carred at amorised cost are measured as the differance
belwean Lhe carrving amounl of Lthe lindancial gssel and Lhe present valoe of eslimaled
future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Lozses are
rocoghnisad in profit or loss and rotloctod inoan allowance account against loans and
receivables,

IT in a subsegquenl period, e amounl of he impairment loss decreases and Lhe
decrease can be related objectively to an event occcurring after the impairment was
recognisced, the proviously rccogniscd impainment loss is reverscd. Any subsoquont
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, to the
axtant that the carrying value ot the asset doas not excead its amorized cost at the
reversal date,
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3. Significant accounting pelicies {Continued}

ihy  Financial assets and habilities (Continued)

(v] ldentification and measurement of impairment (continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities are recognised by transferring the
cumulative loss that has been recognised directly in other comprehensive income in
equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost net of any principal
repayment and amortisation, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss.

If. in a subsaquent periad, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale deht security
increases and the increase can be ohjectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed, with
the amount of the reversal recognised in profit of loss. Howewver, any subsedquent
recovery in the fair value of an impaired availablc-for-sale equity scourity is recogniscd
in other compraehansive incame.

)] Repurchase and reverse repurchase agresmenls

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase the asset at a fixed prce on a future date
frepurchase agreements) and securitiss purchased under agreements to resell the asseat at a
fixed price on a future date (reverse repurchase agreements) are treated as collateralised
financing transactions. In the case of reverse repurchase agreements, the underlying asset is
net recagnized in the Group's financial statements; in the case of repurchase agreements the
underlying collateral is not derecegnized from the Group's financial statements but is
segregated as  pledged assets. The difference  hetween the salefpurchase and
repurchaselresale price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements
uging the effactive intarast method.

(i Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is stated at cost in the separate financial statements of the
Company.

(k)]  Taxatien
Income tax expense represents the sum of tax current and deferred tax.
{i} Current tax:

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit
as reported in the consclidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehansive
income because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other
yoars and foms that are never taxakle or deductible, The Group's hability for currcnt
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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3. Significant accounting policies [Continued)
(k) Taxation (Continuad}
iy MNoforrod tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liahilities in the consalidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
buses used in lhe compulalion ol laxable profils. Delerred lax liabiliies are generally
recognised for all taxable temparary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences o the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits wil ba available against which those deductible tempaorary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from goodwill er from the initial recogniticn {other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferrad tax liabilities are recognised for taxable tempoerary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is prehable that the temporary difference will not
reversea in lhe loresesable (ulure.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
invostmonts and intorests arc only recognised o the oxtont that it is probable that thors
will be sufficient taxable profits against which o utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carmying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewsad at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer prebable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset 1o be recoveraed.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in Lhe period in which the liabilily is sellled or lhe assel realised, based on lax
rates (and tax laws) that have bean enactsd or substantively anacted by the and ot tha
reparting period. The measuremeant of defermed tax liahilities and assets reflects the tax
conscquences that would fellow from the manncr in which the Group cxpocts, at the
and of the reporting peried, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
(iiiy  Current and deferraed tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in ather comprehensive income or directly in equity in which

case the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprahensive income
or directly in equity respactively.

Where current tax or defarred tax arises from the initial accounting far a business
combination, the tax effoct is included in the Accounting for the business combination.

{1 Related party transacticns and balances
Morelaled parly is a person or enlily Lhal is relaled o the enlily thal is prepanng ils fingneial

statements (referred to in 1AS 24 Related Pany Disclasures as the "reporting entity™, that is,
the campany).
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3.

Significant accounting pelicies {Continued)

{13

{m)

Felated party transactions and balances (Continuad)

(@)

(b)

()

A porson or a close member of that persen's family is rolated to the company if that
person:

(i) has contral or joint control aver the company:

(i) has significant influence over the company; ar

(iil] iz & member al lhe key managemenl personngl ol he company o of 2 parenl of
the company.

An cntity is related to the company if any of the fellowing conditions applics:

] The entity and the company are members of the same group {which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(il Dne entity is an associate or joint venture ot the other entity {ar an associate ar
jJoinl venlure of 2 member ol 8 group of which the olher enlily is @ mermber).

(il Both entities ara joint ventures of the same third party.

(iwv)  One enlily is a joinl venlure of g lhird enlily and Lhe olher enlily is an associale of
the third entity.

(vl The ontity is a post-omployment benefit plan cstablishod for tho bonefit of
employees of either the company oF an entity related to the reporting entity.

(wil  The entity is controlled, or jointly contralled by a person identified in {a).

(vii) & person identified in (a}i} has significant influence over the entity ar is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity {or of a parent of the entity).

A relaled parly lransaclion is a lansfer of resources, services o obligalions belween
related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Revenue recognition

(1}

(i)

Cess hcome

Cess income which is based on a percentage of the volume of business done through
brokers on the Stock Exchange and derived from levies on investors, is accounted for
on the accruals basis and is recognized at a point in time. There are no expactad
significanl revenue reversals associaled wilh Lhis revenue slream.

Foo income

Foo incomo dorived from annual listing foos chargod to listod companics is accounted
for on the accruals basis and is recognized over time. Fee income alsa includes initial
listing tees paid hy entities wishing to be listed on the Stock Lxchange. 1hese are
accounted tar when they bacomes due. | he annual listing fee is paid by entity listed on
the stock exchange which gives them the privilege of their shares being traded on the
axchanges to provide them with capital.

Fees incomes of the subsidiaries include;

hWembership tees

| hese are annual fees charged to the brokers and institutional inwvestors who
participate in the Jamaica Central Gecurities Depository (JCSDY), and are acocounted
far on the accrual basis and is recognired ovear time.
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3. Significant accounting policies {Continued)
(m) Revenue recognilion {Conlinoed)
(i Fee income (continued)

Account maintananca fess

These are monlhly lees charged W he brokers and inslilational inveslors who
participatz in the JCSD, and arc accountcd tor on the accrual basiz and arc
recognized owvear time.

User fees

These include charges per transaction for deposite, withdrawals and delivery orders
{tradcs), and arc accounted for on the accrual basis and arc recognized at a point
time.

Trustee service fea

These nclude service [ees charged Tor lhe provision of lruslee services, company
management, custodianship and related services and are accounted for on the
accrual basis. | nusteo sonvices and company managoemont are roccogniscd over time.
Fetail repurchase fees are at a point in time. There are no expected significant
revenue reversals associated with this revenus stream.

(i) E-campus incoeme

This represents revenue generated from JSE offering of post graduate certificate and
diploma coursas, to profassionals and is accountad tar on the accrual hasis. |he
recognilion pallern for E campus income includes income recognised @la poinl in lme
and also aver time,

(i) Membears/daalars license fee

lhese arc toces lovied on mombers/dealers annually. Additionally, an initial toc
determined on the basis of a kid is payvable by new dealers subject to approval by the
Board of Directors. The recognition pattern for this income stream is over time.

v Olher operaling income:

This includes income related te other services and events of the group such as
website charges and conferences and is accounted for on the accrual basis.

i) Investment income

Inleresl ncome ram & linancial assel s recogmsed when il s probable Lhal Lhe
gconomic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of the income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis and is recegnised in the
statement of comprehensive income, by reference to the principal cutstanding and at
tha aeffactive intarast rate applicable, which is tha rate that axactly discounts astimatad
fulure cash recsipls hrough the expecled life of the indncidl assel o thEl assel's nel
carrying amaount an initial recognition,

in} Contract liakilities:

& contract liability is the abligation to transtor goads or services o a customaer for which the
Croup has received consideration {or an amaount of consideration is dueg) from the customer.
If a2 customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract ligbility is recognisaed when the payment is made or the payment is dues
(whichawvaer is aarlier). Gontract liabilities are recognised As ravenus when the Group parforms
under lhe conlract.
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4. Property and equipment

The Group
Freehold  Freehold  Furniture Office  Computer Moter  Work-in-
land  buildings &fixtures equipment hardware  vehicles  progress Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 £'000 $:000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost
January 1. 2017 80000 115,89 13,363 0,108 48 762 3878 12,707 335514
Transfers - 12,707 - - - (12,707 -
Additions - 20,705 4478 12 di1 47500 1,070 76,214
Disposals - (2 {,387) 2,125 - {8,737
Revaluation 15,000 10,692 - - - 25 B2
December 31, 2017 92000 160,000 17570 fif 208 82,137 3478 1,070 428 663
Transfers - 1,070 265 438 - (1,070) 108
Additions 31,000 57 55k 2502 9134 1576 - 2545 129 21
Dieposdls - - Kiy {1281] (455) - - (2122
Revaluation 2,500 40,975 - - - 43,775
December 31, 2018 128800 250600 19,954 74 4959 &8 258 3878 25454 fi00.243
Depreciation
January 1. 2017 - 1407 0783 3a,7d8 092 2536 - 78,446
Charge for the vear - 3,125 T3l Bag2 7151 fil - 20.RO7
Eliminated on disposals - {271} {§,281] 2,045) - - {B677]
Revaluation adjustment - id,532) . - - 14532
December 31, 2017 - - 10,245 36,204 36,018 3371 - 86,843
Charge for year [Mote 23) - 4,003 1124 11,040 12475 a7 - 26,930
Eliminated on dsposals - - (353) {1,278 (1&0] - - {1,768
Revaluaticn - 4,303 - - - (4003]
December 31, 2018 - - 11018 45873 48,3 3475 - 109021
Carrying amounts
December 31, 2015 128,800 2568 600 0,935 20 526 39904 - 2545 491 227
December 31, 2017 95000 160,000 7325 29 538 48119 iy 1,070 2820

107



@\ Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market” \gpod @b Jam B <3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

4 Property and equipment {Continued)

The Company
Freehold  Freehold  Furniture Office Computer Moter  Work-in-
land  buildings  &fixtures equipment hardware  wehicles  progress Total

§'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $000 §'000 $000 $'000
Cost
January 1, 2017 8000 115,596 9487 4411 29,061 3678 12,707 264 833
Transfers - 270 - : - 12.707) :
Addibons - 20,705 3152 10043 19.077 107 54047
Disposal - - 2 63 2125 - 8.757)
Revaluaticn 13000 104692 - - - 25,592
Cecermbar 31, 2017 93,000 160,000 1368 47 L6012 3678 1,070 360,921
Transfers - 1070 298 434 - i1.070) 708
Additons IO 57.hah 2,230 3108 239 - 25,454 121,143
Cisposal - - kL] {48} i - - 11,008]
Revaluaticn R0 L0475 - - - L3775
Cecember 31. 2018 128800 289500 12501 B06a0 LB4YT 3678 25,454 531,140
Dapraciation
January 1. 2017 - 1407 7160 #5141 15 545 2 636 - 54 883
Charge far year - 3125 474 8451 39 T3h - 14728
Eliminatec on ¢isposals - - T T R - - 18,877
Revaluation adj ustrent - 4 - : : i4,532)
Decembar 31. 2017 - - 7364 252 20441 3372 - 56,408
Charge for year 4,003 811 1756 8,403 308 - 19.478
Eliminated on disposals - - 138 1] B44) 2 - - 1993}
Revaluaticn adjustment - 14003 - - - o 003)
December 31, 2018 - - TR RMI N4 3678 - 70,591
Carrying amounts
Cecember 31, 2018 128500 259500 BATT  1AME M7 - 25454 480,250
Decamber 31, 2017 95,200 180,000 3004 42 il 25.571 S8 1070 09513
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NOTES TQ THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR. ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
{(Expressed in Jamaican Degllars)

4. Property and equipment (Continued)

The Group's policy is to record its land and building at fair value. Consequently freehold land and
buildings are included at valuation hased on fair market value {See Note 3{d)) as expressed by extemal
professional valuators, Easton Douglas Consultants Limited on December 2018,

The fair value was determined hased on the cost approach that reflects the prices of properties
comparable in quality and location.

Had the [and and buildings been measured an a historical cost basis. their carrying amount would have
been as follows:
2013 2017
%000 $°000

Freshaold land 356,997 4,997
Freghold buildings 137,382 78,738

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation of property and equipment.

Buildings - 40 years
Furniture and fixtures - 10 years
Office equipment - b years
Computer hardware - b yaars
Muotor vahicles - b yaars

Mo depreciation is provided on freghald land, land improvements and work-in-progress,

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve represents the fair value gains and losses arising on the revaluation of
land and buildings that have been recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Group and the

Company
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Balance at January 1 143,637 115,488
Met gain arising on revaluation of land and buildings 47,778 30,224
Deferred tax adjustments on buildings (14,993} {5,0759)
Balance at December 31 176,422 143,637

The Company made a deposit for a new property during 2018 totaling $24.95 million and is recorded in
work=-in-progress in property and equipment. The title was transferred in January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

a.

Intanglble assets

The Group The Company
Computer Computer
Software Seftware
Computer  Development Computer Development
Software Praject Total Software Prajects Tatal
%000 %000 000 %000 %000 %000
Cost
January 1, 2017 51,844 37369 89,318 28,818 34,984 3,804
Transfers 25 502 (25,502 - 23119 (23,119) -
Additions 18,7943 9,852 29,615 17,796 9,852 27 B15
Transfer to subsidiany - - - - (11,B67) (11,867}
Disposals (15,199} - {15,193} (15,199} - (15,193}
Write-off (5.088) - (5.088) (5.044) - (3.0443
Decemnber 31, 2017 70,8947 21,712 97.676 21,430 9,852 61,242
Translers 4,582 (5,298 {roa) 4,582 {5,298) {FOa}
Additions 3,731 7,292 11,050 2,996 1,480 4 486
Transfer to subsidiary {4,554} (4 554)
December 31, 2018 84 300 23,720 108,020 59.078 1,490 &0 568
Amaortisation
January 1, 2017 A7 802 - 37,602 23,218 - 23,218
Charge for the year 16,780 - 16,780 11,191 - 11,191
Disposals (15,199} - {15,194} (15,199) - {15,194)
Write-off (1. 758} (1. 758} (1.099) - (1.099}
Diecember 31, 2017 37 424 - 37424 18,109 - 18,109
Charge for the vear 21,434 21,434 14 988 14,9659
December 31, 2018 28,854 - 20,858 33,078 - 33,078
Carrylng amaunts
December 31, 2018 25 442 23.720 49162 26,000 1,480 27 490
December 31, 2017 38 533 21,719 60,252 33,381 9,852 43 233

Amortisation of the computer software is calculated based on an estimated useful life of 3 - 5 years.
Amortisation is nat calculated on computer software in development.

Cruring 2017, the Group and the Caompany wrots off amounts, totaling 54.33 million and $1.95 million,
respectively, carried as computer software no longer being used. During 2018, computsr softwars
amounting to $4.55 million and (2017: $11.87 million} was also transferred at cost to a subsidiary.
Investment in subsidiary

2018 2017
£ 000 57000

Shares at cost in Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited 61,000 61,000
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NCQTES TQ THE GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2018
{Expressed in Jamaican Deollars)

7. Employee benefits

The Group eperates a defined benefit pension plan far its employees, The plan is open 19 all permansnt
employvees and i administered by Victoria Mutual Pensions Management Limited. The plan is funded
by employee contributions of &% of pensionable salary, with an option for additional voluntary
contributions of up to & 4% of pensionable salary. The companies in the Group contribute to the plan at
rates determined periodically by external actuarial valuations (currently 6.6% of pensionable salary) to
meet the obligations of the plan.

Pension benefits are determinad on the basis of 2% of final annual pensionable salary times
pensionable years of service.

The trustees administer an irrevocable tfrust for providing pensions and other banefits to employees of
The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited and Jamaica Central Securities Depository Limited (the
employers). The benafits are provided in accordance with the provisions of the rules of The Jamaica
Stock Exchange Superannuation Pension Plan {formerly Jamaica Stock Exchange Pension Scheme)
and funding as recommended by the actuaries to meet past and future liakilitizs of the Plan.

Contributions are received from The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited and Jamaica Central Securities
Depository  Limited on behalf of the employees who are eligible for membership. Management
determines the level of contribution reguired to the Plan on the recommendation of the Trustees, The
Trustees maks and approve changes by the Investment Manager, Custodian/Trustes, Actuary, Flan
Administrator and Investment Consultant; monitor and review performance of the Investment Manager
at least guarterly; review the Plan's petrformance on a quarterly basis and approve any deviation from
investment policy; review the actuarial valuation, changes in methods and assumptions and their impact
upon the Plan: and revizw investment policies and principles at least annually.

Performance targets are set to achieve appropriate investment asset miv and diversification, rate of
return above inflation and rate of return above a benchmark portfolio constructed on specified market
indices and Government instruments. The primary objective of the Plan is to maximize the benefit paid
to membsars at retirement through optimisation of returns on investments within constraint of risk
axposure in the asset mix strategy. The asset mix of the Plan consists of long-term asset mix sirategy
with average equity content providing that the eguity companent is well diversified. The Plan is exposed
to interest rate risk, inflation and changes in life expectancy for pensionars. Note 7{g} details the plan's
exposure in respect of various financial assets.

The most recent actuarial valuation was camied cut as at December 31, 2018, by Duggan Consulting
Limited, a gualified actuary. The present value cf the defined benefit obligation and the related current
service costz and past service costs have heen measured using the projected unit credit method.

(a) Principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations:

Financlal Assumptlons

2018 2017
Discount rate ¥.0% B.0%
Expected rate of future salary increases 4.0% 6.0%
Future pension increases 0.0% 0.0%
Administrative expenseas 1.5% 1.8%

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligation as at December 31, 2018 is 18.2
years (2017: 16.1 years)

Mortality
American 1984 Group Annuitant Mortality {SAMS4) table with 5 year mortality improvement.

111



@\ Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market” \gpod @b Jam B <3
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars}
7. Employee benefits {Continued)
() Amaunt included in the statemeant of financial position in respact of the plan:
The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
000 $000 $000 000
Fairvalue of plan assets 525,156 455,035 ar., 70y 34 577
Proscnt valuc of defincd boncfit
abligations (435 344) {238474) (308,137) 243 520)
Met assat in the statemeant of
financial position 89,812 126,561 63,570 21,057

{cy Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in respect of the plan:

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'a00 $'a00 £'000 $°000
ltzms in profit or loss
Current service costs 13,885 13,129 10,635 3,671
Inleresl cosls 29 220 25 47T 20,490 17 633
Return on plan assets {38,401} {36,335) {27.032) (250,257)
Met expanse for yaar
recognised in profil or loss 4 B4 2,271 4,083 1,047
ltems in Other Comprehensive
Income {OCl):
Re-measurements loss on
abligation for OC| 38 1682 31,151 34,528 31,588
Re-measurements loss (gain} on
gssets far OCI 8,240 (16,721} (3,446) (24.428)
Total re-measurements far OCI 44 402 14,430 31,082 7158
49 216 16,701 35,175 8205

() Mowvaement in the net asset recagnised in the statement af financial positian:

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Met azset at start of year 126,561 132,455 91,057 92 570
Met {loss)income from
profit or loss and QCI (49, 216) (16,7013 (35.175) 18 205)
Contributions by Campany 12467 10,807 TEE8 6,692

Met asset at end of year 49,812 126,561 63,570

21.057
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7.

Employes benefits (Continued)

{e)

i

Changas on the prescent value of the defincd bencfit obligations:

Cpening defined benefit obligations
Service cost

Interast cost

Meambers' contributions

Eenefits paid/Deferred benefits (net)
Re-measurement loss

Closing defined bensfit abligations

Changes in tair value of plan assets:

Qpening fair value of plan assets
Members' contributions
Employer's conlribulions
Interest income on plan assets
Benefits paid/Deferred benefits (net)
Re-measurement gain on asset

for OCI

Closing fair valuc of plan asscts

The Group The Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
$°000 $'000 $'000 5000
338,474 262 999 243 520 183,804
23,4349 21314 18,459 13,741
29 220 25477 20,480 17,633
7.B5E 6,062 5,008 4,298
193 (9.429) {11,868 {7.,542)
38,162 31,151 24,5258 31,556
435.344 338,474 308,137 243,520
The Group The Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
%000 £'000 $'000 $'000D
465,025 385,454 334,377 276,374
17,300 15,147 10.830 9,368
12467 10,807 7.688 6,692
36.4M 36,333 27032 23,237
183 (B.429) (11.866) (7.542)
{8.240) 16,721 3.446 24,428
525,156 465,035 371,707 234 577

113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

2013

7.

Employee benefits {Continued)

(q)

The fair value of plan assets is analysed as follows:

Tha Group Tha Company
2018 201T 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 5000
Corporate bonds 155,388 49 605 112,114 35,6491
Equity inwvestments 230,884 170,466 163,458 122 644
Farcign currcncy bonds - 75,371 - b4 227
Govemment of Jamaica
secunties 45,859 70,913 34,582 51.01%
Real estate - 27.000 - 12 428
Reourchase agraements 3,214 14,221 2276 10,232
Unit trust 7415 5,688 52458 4092
Certificate of deposit 33526 - 23730 -
YW Delerred Shares 16,450 - 11,843 -
Others 26 208 51,768 18,616 37 246
Fair value of plan assets 525,156 465,035 371,707 334 577
The: histary aof experiznce adjustments is as fallows:
The Group

Present value ot detined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Surplus in the plan

Experience adjustments on plan liakilitizs
Expcricnce adjustments on plan asscts

Presanl value of defin2d banelil obligalion

Fair value of plan 3ssets

Surplus in the plan

Re-measurement loss on obligation for OC|

Re-measurement gaindgloss) on abligation for OC|
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Defined Benefit
Peansion Flan

2018 2017

§'000 $'000
(435,344) (338.474)
525,156 465035
BO,812 126,561
36,162 31,151
8.240 (16,721

The Company

Defined Benefit
Pension Flan

2018 2017

5'000 $'000
(308,137) (243,520)
371,707 334 577
63,570 91,057
34,528 31,586
(3,446) (24,428)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 41, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

T Empleyes banefits {Continued)
{1y Sensitivity analyses

1. Discount rate

X018
Group Company
1% decrease in 1% increase in 1% decrease in 1% increase in
Discount rate Disgount rate Disgount rate Discount rate
Assumption ASSUMmptlon ASSUMptlon Assumption
$000 $000 §°000 $7000
Defined benefit cbligation 470,345 {404 907} 331,326 (287 G697}
2017
Group Company
1% decrease In - 1% Increase |n 1% decrease In - 1% Increase In
Dlscount rate Dlseount rate Dlseount rate Discount rate
Assumptlon Assumptlon Assumptlon Assumptlon
3000 $'000 000 £'000
Defined henefit chligation 381,937 {300 919) 279673 (217 802
2. Salary Assumption
2018
Group Company
1% decrease in 1% increase in 1% decrease in 1% increase in
Salary Salary Salary Salary
Assumption Assumption Assumption Assumption
000 $'000 £'000 £'000
Defined benet chligation (422 453} 448 303 1293 750) 317,055
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

7. Empleyee benefits (Continued)
(i Sensitivity analyses (Continuad)

2. Salary Assumpton (Continued)

2017
Group Company
1% decrease in 1% increase in 1% decreasein 1% increase in
Salary SBalary Salary Salary
Assum ption Assumption Assumption Assumption
000 §000 $'o00 000
Defined bensfit obligation (318,956) 360,479 [230,123) 255,590
3. Actuaral logscs on defincd benefit obligation arising from:
Group Company
2018 207 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 5’000 $'000
Finanscial assumptions {B.267) (20.166) {6,802) {13,366)
Experiencs adjusiments 127.893) (10,983 [27.726) {18,220)
Total actuarial losses [ 368.162) (31.151] [34.548] {31,588)

The Group and the Company expect to make contributions of $18.70 million and $9.230 million,
respectively, (2017: $15.70 million and $7.35 millian, respectively) to the defined benefit plan during the
naxt financial year.

The plan assels do nol include any of the Group’s own linancial inslrumenls, nar any praperly accupied
by or alher assels used by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

g Investment in securities

{a) MNon-currcnt:

The Group The Company
2018 2007 2018 2007
$°000 5000 $°000 $'000
Invesiment in securities at FvOC! {2017 available-
for-salel:
Mational Commercial Bank: Fixecd Rats (FR)
4.5% Mote 2020 - 42 216 21,1048
Fixed ratas notes 20118 5.5%
(2016: 2019, 8.5%) - o Ta7 q.7ay
Wariable Rates Motes 2 0% (2020 — 2023
9.23% {2017 2020-2023 6.11%-6.24%) 18,358 18 486 4 415 4 447
Government of Belize 5% guaranteed mortgags
notes 2038 (nocminal value US$53 600) - 3,832 - 3632
GO LIS 8% Global Bond 2034 (narminal
walue US5540,000) 92.022 o7.,575 92022 97,575
GO USF 8% Global Bond 2038 (nominal
value USE180,000) 31.475 33,332 - -
141,865 205,040 98 437 136,550

Included in the investment balances above is interest recaivable in the amount of $2.23 million for
the Group and $1.64 million for the Company (2017: $2.51 million for the Group and $2.60 million

for the Company).
() Current:
The Graup The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
000 000 000 $'000
Investment in securities at FVOCT (2017 available-fior-
sale]’
=0J FR &.5% Benchmark Investments 2018 - 4,245 - -
0. FR 8.5% Benchmark Investments 201% R - 8,767 -
0.7evy 1,215 b.7e7 -
Investment in secirities at FWYPI {2017 availabla-for-
sdle]:
[nvestment im Unit Trust B,GE5 8261 i F.oe2
158,422 13,498 16,202 7,082

Included in the investment balances above is interest recaivable in the amount of $0.37 million far
the Group and Company (2017: 30.05 million).
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5. Investment in securities {Continued)
{c} Movcmentin investment in scouritics:
The Group The Company
201& 2017 2015 2017
£'000 %'000 £'000 %'000
The mavement for the year in debt
instrument /{2017: available-
far-salz financial assets is as follows:
Balance at January 1 218,545 261,774 143 641 175,616
Addilions - 40,000 - 20.000
Foreign exchange loss {5,84E6) (3,399) {1,643) (2.243)
Mowvcment in financial asscts at FVYOGCI {B&2) - (875) -
Fair value gainslosses through profit &
loss {1,443 {1,543
Mavement in fair value of debt
instrument{2017: availahle for sale)
financial assets {5,886) 9,905 {6,941) 6,828
Disposal of investments (dd 2004 (59733 (20 000 (96 560%
Balancc at Docomber 31 160,278 218,545 112,639 143,641
9. Loang-term receivablas
These represent loans granted to employees. The laans are repayakle by monthly installments and are
for a period of 5§ years. These loans carry an interest rate of 10% per annum. The currant portion of
these loans, due within twelve months from the end of the reporting period, amounted to $7.24 million
{2017 38.4% million) for the Group and $4.234 million (2017, 36,20 milion) for the Company included in
other receivables (Note 11).
10. Related party transactions/balances

During the vear, the Group and the Company had the following transactions with related parties

in the nomnal course of business.

Subsidiary

Jamaica Central Securities
Depasitory Limited
Rental income
Professional fees

Related party
JSE Compensation Fund
Administrative fee

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
2,183 1,968
- - 1,058 TE9
30,915 28.389 3095 28,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

10. Related party transactions/balances [Continued)

ik Amaount duc fromf{to) rclated partics

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Jamaica Central Securiti=s
Depository Limited - - (79,584, 12 475
- - (79,584) 19475

Amaunt owed o ralated party:

JCED Trustes Sarvices Limited - - - (10,844
JSE Compensation Fund 2 684 (75h) 2 684 {755)
2684 (755} 2684 {11,599

{c) Dividend reecived during the year

During the year, dividend of $158 million (2017, $102 million} was received from the Company's
subsidiary (Mote 20).

{d1  Compensaton of key management personnel

The remuneration of management during the year ware as follows:

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
2000 000 000 %000
Shart-term benefits 66, 502 46 329 343,324 27128
Fost employment benefits 3,393 2,734 1,630 1,635
62,595 49 113 34 854 28,763
{81 Loans to related parties
The Group The Company
2018 207 2018 2017
$'000 $000 $°000 £°000

Laans to key managemeant personnel 2,707 2,248 2180 2,033
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

11. Trade and other receivables

The Group The Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000

Cess receivable 89,651 30227 86 690 26,448
Fees receivable 83338 &8 814 - -
E-campus 3,763 T.720 3,765 7.720
Registrar servics feg 25093 18,085 - -
Other 31,608 35,631 26,791 29,504
255,451 160,477 119,246 63,672

Lass: Loss allowance {Note 29(d)) (37 .838) {15,961) {7.7449) (8. 770)
217,615 144 516 111,487 54,897

Prepayments 20,158 25917 17,320 5,793
247 773 170,433 128,817 60,680

The avcrage credit poriod on scrvices is 30 days. Mo intorcst is charged on the trade and other
receivables in accordance with the Group’s policy.

12. Government securities purchased under resale agreemant

The Group entered inte repurchase agreements collaterised by the Government of Jamaica securities.
These agreements may result in credit exposure in the event that the counterparties of these
transactions are unable to fultill their contractual obligations. Included in this balance is foreign currency
denaminated amount of US50.283 milion for the Group and USE0.09 milion far the Company
respectively (2017 US30.17 million far the Group and UZ30.09 million for the Company respectively)
and interest receivable of $0.034 million for the Group and 30.014 million for the Company {2017:
30.001 millian far the Group and $0.001 million for the Company). The fair value of collateral pursuant
to repurchase agreements is $214 .38 million for the Group and $38.92 million for the Company (2017
$1686.90 million for the Group and $38.04 million for the Company).

13. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpese of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash
an hand and in banks,

{a)  Cash and cash equivalents at the reporting date as shown in the statement of cash flows can be
reconciled to the related items in the statement of inancial position as follaws:

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'o00 £'a00 £'000 $£'000
Cash on hand and in banks 240,943 143,164 21,678 10,293

120



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

M ‘Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market”

2013

14. Bhare capital

Aulhorised;

2,400,000 000 ordinary shares of no par value (2017 2,4C00,000,000]
100,000,000 preference shares of no par valus (2017 100,000,000}

Issucd capital:

71,250,000 ordinary stocks of no par value (2017 701,250,000

Mil preferance shares of no par value

[ssued capital:
At January 1 and December 31 - ordinary stocks

15, Fair value reserve

The reserve represents the fair value adjustment relating to investmeant in securities (Mote 8).

2018
$'000

238146

2017
$'00D

238,148

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
Balance at January 1 17,487 10,883 12,554 g.0o2
Adoption adjustment re IFRS 2 (Note 32) {278) - (622) -
Met gainf(loss) arising on revaluation of
FVOC| (2017 available-tor-sale tinancial
assets) {7.962) 11,070 (4,485) 7.993
Met gain reclassitied to profit on sale
ot investment (642) {1,165) (B42) {1,185
Deferred tax adjustments on FYQC| (2017
available-for-sale) financial assets (Note 18) 2,765 {3,301) 1,704 (2,2768)
Met impairment investments {305} - [253) -
{8,144 6,804 (3.671) 4,552
Balance at December 31 11,065 17,487 £.261 12,554

The fair value reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on the revaluation of FVOCI
{2017 available-for-sale) financial assets that have been recognised in other comprehensive income,
net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss wihen those assets have been disposed of or are determined

to be impaired.

121



@\ Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market” \gpod @b Jam B <3

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

16. Revenue reserve — Non Distributable

In order to provide custody scrvices to its clicnts, JGED Trustcs Scrvices Limited (the “subsidiary"} is
reguired by the Financial Services Commission to have a minimum of $50 million as Non-Distributable
Capital. Conseguently during the year ended December 31, 2015, in order to mest this requirement, the
subsidiary received approval from the Board of Directors to transfer $48.37 million fram Revenue
Reserves to Revenue Reserves — Mon-Distributable.

17.  Revanua résarve

Reflected in the financial statements of the:

2018 2017
&'o00 £'a00
Parent company 322 852 249 5E2
Subeidiaries 328 515 251,581
651,387 501,143
18. Deferred tax
The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
§'000 $'oon §'000 §'000
Deferred tax assets 2879 1,773 2,024 1,151
Deferred tax liabilities (57.037) (82,280} (45,184) (B3,098)
Mel posilion al he end of he year (54,158) (80,507 (43,160} (BT.947)
The movermnent in the net daferred tax position was as follows:
The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $000 $000 £°000
At January 1 {B0,507) (76,B875) (67,947) {58,215)
Adjustment re adoption ot IFRS 3 594 - 605 -
Credited/{Charged) to income for the
year (Mote 24) 23,082 (56) 27,1058 {4,767}
Charged to equity {192) {265) {4.632) {2,689}
Credited/{Charged) to fair value
reserva for the yaar (Mote 15) 2,765 {3,301} 1,709 (2,276}
At December 31 {54,158) (80,507 (43,160} {E7,947)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

18.

Deferred tax (Continued)

The following arc the deforred tax asscts and deferred tax liabilitics recognised by the Group during the

year:

Defarrad tax assets

At January 1, 2017
Charged to income far the year

At December 31, 2017
Cradited to income for the year

At December 31, 2018

At January 1, 2017
Charged to income for the year

At December 31, 2017
Credited to income for the year

At December 31, 2018

The Group
Accrued Total
Vacation

£'000 $°000
2,501 2.5M

(728) (728
1,773 1,773
1,108 1,106
2879 2,879

The Company

Accrued
Vacation Total
%000 £'000
1,618 13813
(667} (567
1,151 1,151
873 873
2,024 2,024
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

18.

Deferred tax {(Continued)

Jdanuary 1, 2017

CreditediiCnarged) ta income
for tha year

Credited{Cnrarged] ta eguity
for tha year

Chargec to fair value ressve
iMote 15}

AL Decomber 31, 2017

Adaptian re adjustment IFRS §

Credited?{ Caarged) to income
for the vear

Credited{ Crarged) to equity
for tha year

Credited ta fair valus reserve
(Mate 15}

Cecember 31. 2018

Jdanuary 1, 7017
Chargec to income
for tha yaar
Creditad/{Cnarged) ta equity
for the vear
Chargec to fair value resarve
iMate 15}

Al December 31, 2047

&doptian re adjustment of

IFRS 9

Creditzd{Crarged) ta incams
for the year

Credited? Caarged) bo eguity
for the vear

Credited to fair value -eserve
(Mate 15}

December 34, 2018

@\ Providing A Fair, Efficient and Transparent Stock Market” \gpod @b Jam B <3
The Group
Capital Unrealizsad
Allswanes galns In - Retlrement Property
In excess af Interast Investment Benefit Revaluation
Depreciation receivable in securities Agset Reserve Total
$000 5'000 000 $000 $'000 000
(5,273 (1,831} [6.379) [(14.183) [21.743) (79376}
3,195 304 - {2,848 - B52
- - - 44810 15.075) Y
- - (3.301) - - (3,301}
(2.073) (1522} (9,630) [42.138) [28.817) (52,280
- - o4 - - B4
23 988 334 - 12.551) - 21,978
- - - 14,801 [14,593) 18T}
- - 2,785 - - 2,785
21.91% [253] [5.221] [£3.938] [41.810] [S7.037)
The Company
Capltal Unraallsad
Allegwance galns In Retirament Property
in excess af Interest imvestment Benefit Revaluation
Depreciatian receivable in securities Asset Surplus Total
$000 s'aod 000 3000 $'000 5'000
[1.4&1) {1,006 (4 8957] (a0 BET) (1742 003N
[2,185) (3 - 1,883 - 4, 100)
2,386 (5 ,075) 12.689)
- [2.276] - - 12 278)
[5,678) §1,038) [7.213) {30,353 (26,817) 1BS,008)
- €05 - - 605
27,051 350 - {1,188 - 26,252
- - 10,367 [14.253] 4,632)
- 1,708 - - 1,708
23405 (BEE) [4,850) {21,181 (41,8109 s 184
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Expressed inJamaican Dollars)

19. Payables and accruals

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
5000 000 $'000 000
Payables and accruals 253 540 224 936 80,697 95,299

Mo imterest is charged on the payables balance. The Group has financial risk management policies to
ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.

20. Other operating income

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
2000 $°000 5000 000
Regional conference 19,406 20,792 19,406 20,792
Administrative fee 30,914 29,406 30,914 29,406
Other 22,606 27682 180,934 127,148
72,926 77,890 231,254 177,348

Included in other income of the Company is an amount of 3158 million {2017: $102 million) representing
dividend income received from its subsidiary during the year.

21. Staff costs

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
§'000 §'000 §'000 $'000
Salaries and other employee benefits 323,107 264,548 174,312 148,112
Statutory contributions 23,144 22,668 12,731 12,648
Charge on pension plan (Mot 7{ch) 4,814 2,271 4,083 1.047
353,065 25D 485 196,136 181,805
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2013

22,

23,

Investment income

{a)

{b)

Investiment income includes;

Interest income

Foreign exchange (loss)igain

Gain an sale of available-for-sale
investments

Met impainment loss on investments

reversed/recognized)

Fair value loss through profit and loss

Investmant income carmcd, analyscd
by category of financial asset is as
follows:

Receivables st amortised cost {2017

Lzans and receivables)
Debt Instruments at FVOCI (2017,
Availahle-for-sale)

Other losses:

Disposal of property equipment

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is stated after taking aceount of the fallowing:

Income:

[rterest

Expenses:

Directors' fees

Management

Audit feas

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amartisation of intangible assets

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'0Q0

16,174 21,119 8,973 10,732
3,766 {3.91%) 2,205 {3,883)
- 1119 - 1.163

32 - (298) -
(B899} - (999) -
19,083 16,319 9,879 §,014
7.761 4 565 2,307 652
11,332 11,754 74972 7,362
18,093 16,319 9,879 §,014

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017

§'000 $000 $'000 $000
145 &0 15 &0
The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 5'000 $'000
16,174 21,118 BE75 10,732
12,8628 12,432 10,030 9,960
23,784 14,826 21624 13,344

4,646 4,428 2,801 2,668
28,950 20,607 19478 14,728
21,434 18,780 14,985 11,191
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24. Taxation
Recogniscd in profit or loss
i} The echarge for the year represents
The Group The Company
2018 2017 2013 2017
000 $'000 $'000 000
Current tax 202 521 117,318 70,108 19,417
Deferred tax (Mote 18) (23,082} 66 (27,105) 4 767
178,438 117,384 43,005 24,164

H

The chargs for the year is reconciled to the profit as per the statement of comprehsnsive income

as follows:

Profit befare tax

Tawx at the domestic income tax
rate of 3314%

Tax effect of items that are not
deductible in determining taxable
prafits

Effect of income not taxable

Oither

The Group The Company

2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
592,502 338,052 399,180 151,848
197,501 112,684 119,720 0,815
18,851 8197 B30 B74
- - 123,000 (34,048)
(386,813) (3,497) 1244071 6,840
179,439 117,384 43,003 24,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

25.  Profit of the group for the year

Reflectad in the financial statements of tha:

The Group
2018 2017
$'000 $'00D
Parent company 318,157 127 664
Subsidiaries 255,806 195,142
Less Dividend paid to parent company (159,000) 1102,138)
413,063 220,668

26. Earnings per stock unit

The basic earnings per stack units is calculated by dividing the profit by the weighted average number
of ordinary stock unit.

The Group
2018 207
Profit {3°000) 413,063 220 668
Weighted average number of ordinary stock units 701,250,000 701,250,000
Basic eamings per stock unit $0.59 $0.31

27. Ssgmant reporting
The Group's operations are organized into four main business segments as follows:

(a) Exchange operations = The operation and regulation of the Stock Exchange.

(b  JCSD services — Services in connecton with transferring and holding of securities, shares,
stocks, bonds, debentures and registrar services.

¢y  Investments = Income derved from investing activities of the Group.

(dl  Trustee, custodianship, company management and other activities.

128



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)
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27.

Segment reporting (Coentinued)

The Group's operations arc locatcd solcly in Jamaica.

2018
Exchange JESD Investment Trustees
oparations Services other Sarvices Eliminations Group
$'000 $'000 000 $'000 £'000 3000
Over ime 155,215 7 TER - 125 356 - 312,336
Faint in time G78.570 380,537 158.944 264,734 [255,492) 1,097,605
Revenue - external Ba7. 7L 418,296 18.944 290,110 [255,343) 1,409,544
Segment result’
Profit before
taxation 350,160 223132 15,944 243 130 (251,944, 082,502
| axation 179, 489
Profil for e year 413,063
Other imfarmatizn
Cepreciation ard
amort sation 34447 9237 - 5,700 - o0, 384
Aespts
Segment assats BT 415 85,975 - 275141 (149,707 1,511,620
| iahilitizs
Sagment laailites 228,161 187 4402 - 44,347 (8v.07h) 352,885
Capital axaanditure 122452 6,032 - 833 - 128,927
2017
Exchange JC3D  Investment Trustees
operations Services other Services Eliminations Graup
$°000 $'000 £'000 $'000 £'000 £'000
Over time 84 148 135150 - 95,084 - 192,382
Faintin time 458 480 3449 824 16,3149 196,704 (2052421 818,087
Revenue — ext=rnal h42 623 362,975 16,2189 291,789 (205,242] 1,007 469
Segment resylt’ 143,634 212812 16,2149 169, 564 (2042771 338,052
Profit bofore
taxation
Taxation (117,354]
Profit for the year 220,668
Cther information
Depreciation ancd
amartisation 25814 7.0Aq - 4 380 - 37 387
Assets
Segmeant assets 518,744 364,332 - 230,440 (165,538] 1,254 978
Liabilities
Segmant lakilities 174,845 140,874 - 76,306 (958071 306196
Capital expenditura 54,047 11,662 - 10,505 - VE, 214

2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

28.

29.

Commitmeants
Capital commitments:

Capital commitments which were authorized and contracted for as at December 31, 2018, amountad to
285,20 million for the Group and Company in relation to 2 website development project and trading
platform {2017: $2.15 million for the Group and Company — in relation to a website development
project).

Financial instruments
{a] Capital risk management;

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company comprising issued capital, reseress, and retained samings.

The Group's objectives when managing its capital structure, which is a broader concept than the
equity on the face of the statement of financial position are:

il Ta safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a gaing concern 50 that it can continue to
providc returns for stockholders and boncfits for other stakcholders; and
iy To maintain a strong capital basc to support the busincss dovolopment.

The Groun's overall strategy remains unchanged fram 2017,

The subsidiary is subject to externally imposed capital requirements [capital in excess of §50
million}. The subsidiary has complied with this requirement (Note 1),

{b]  Financial risk management objactives

The Group’s Investment Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board of Directors,
through the Audit Committee, uniform investment decisions, policies and procedures for the
operations of the Group. The specific duties of the Investment Management Committee are to
receive and review data on current market conditions and economic outlook; review various risk
reports submitted including fair value, credit risk, liguidity risk, market risk, and review monthly
repart an portfolios and establish quarterly investment portfolio strategies. The Group does not
enter into or trade financial investments, including derivative financial instruments for speculative
puUrposes.

{c) Marketrisk

The Group's investment activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and credit risk {See Motes 2B(¢) and (d}). The Group
manages its risk through extensive reszarch and moniters the risk exposures on the local and
internatianal markets,

There has been no change to the manner in which the Group manages and measures this risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

29.  Financial instruments (Continued)
{c} Market risk (Continucd)
Faoreign currency risk management
The Group undertakes certain investment transactions denominated in currencies other than the
Jamaican dollar. Exchange rate exposures are managed within appraved policy parametars and

maintaining a manageahle balance in the types of investments.

The following balances held in United Stares dollars are included in these financial statemeants:

The Group The Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Investment in securities 129,932 123,888 B8 457 101,207
Government securifies purchased

under resale agreement 25,565 20,794 11,282 10,826

Cash and cash eguivalents 146 904 103,514 76 509 2.B30

312,40 358,31 188,338 114,763

Sensitivity analysis

The Groun's investment portfolio is exposed to the United States dollar. The Group's sensitivity to
a 2% incregse or 4% decrease in the Jamaican dollar against the United States dollar is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting forgign currency risk internally to the key managsment
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity of the 2% (2017: 29%) increase or 4% (2017 4% ) decrease in the Jamaican dollar
against the United States dallar exposure walld be a decrease in profit of the Group by 15625
million (2017: 3517 milliond million or J312.50 million (2016: J$10.33 million) increase; Company
JEIT3 million {2017 J$2.30 million) decrease or J37.45 million (2017 J54.22 million) increase.
The Group's sensitivity to foreign currency has not changed significantly during the curmrent year.

The analysis is done on the same basis as 2017 and assumes that all other variables, in
particular intzrest rate, remain constant.

Interest rate risk management

The Group's exposura 1o interast rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in
the liquidity risk management section of this note. Interest rate sensitivity analysis has baen
detzrmined based on the exposure to interest rates for the Group's investmeant in securities at the
end of reporting period as these are substantially the interest sensitive instrument impacting
financial results. For floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities, the analysis assumes
the amount outstanding at year end was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 {2017 100) basis
paints increase or 100 (2017; 100) basis points decrease for local currency and 100 {2017 100)
basis points increase or 50 (2017: 50) basis points decrease tor United States curmency
represents management’s assassmeant af tha reasonable possible change in inferest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

29 Financial instruments {Continued)
{c)  Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)
MNet effect on profit if market interest rates had been 100 or 100 basis points higher or lower for

investment denominated in local currency and 100 or 50 basis points higher or lower for
investments denaminated in Linited States currency and all ather variables were held constant is

as follows:
The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $£'000
Effect on profit increase 100
{2017 100) basis points {J§) 48 1,821 410 602
Effect on profit decrease 100
{2017 100) basis points {JE) (348) (1,821) (410} (602)
Effect on profit increase 100
{2017: 100} basis points {US55) 1,208 1,370 200 843
Effect on profit decrease 100
(2017 50) hasis points {LIS3) {1,209 (585} (800} (472)

The Group's and the Company's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the cumrent year
as the Group had an increasze in the number of variable rate financial instrumants.

(dy  Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group is guided by the investment policies and procedures of the
Stack Exchange. In relation to bank accounts and invesiment securities, the Group, as a policy,
deals only with credit worthy counterparties, to minimise credit risk exposures. In addition, limits
are assigned to various counterparties by the Group.

Trade receivables consist of broker members of the Group and accordingly mitigates against
credit risk in relation to such receivables. In the case of other receivables, ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of those receivables,

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk,
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29.  Financial instruments {Continued)

{dy Credit risk management (Continued}

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 207
§'000 5'000 §'000 5000
Financial sssats
Debt investment {2017 availsble-for-

salefinancial assets 160,273 218,544 112,838 143,541
Long-tarm receivables 1E BE3 11,1585 10,375 B 926
Trade and sther receivablas 217,815 144, 516 111,497 &4 897
Due from related parties 2,684 - 2,684 19475

Govemmert securiies purchased under
rega e agresments 214,390 16E,889 38,216 28042
Cash and bank balances 240,843 143 164 81,676 10,233
851,73 B4, 260 357 780 273274

Impairment of financial assets

The group has three types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss model:
= ftrade receivables

= debtinvestments carried at amortised ¢ost, and

s debt investments carried at FWVOCI.

Whilz cash and cash sguivalents, due fram related parties and long-term receivables are also
subject 1o the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment [0ss was immaterial,

Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRE 9 simplified appreach to measuring expected credit losses which
uses alifetime expectad lass allowance for all rade receivables,

The expected credit loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over the period of 38
months before December 31, 2018 or January 1, 2018 respectively and the comresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-loaking information on the macrascanamic factars affecting the akility of the
custemers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified Jamaicas GDF and the
unemployment rate to be the most relevant factors and accordingly adjusts the historical loss
rates based on the expecied changes in these factors.
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29,

Financial instruments [Continued})

(d}

Credit risk management (Continued)

On this basis, the loss allowance as at Deccmber 31, 2018 and January 1, 2018 {on adoption of
IFES 9} was determined as follows for trade receivables:

December 31, 2018

Current

30 - 60 days pastdue

61 - 80 days past due

81 — 180 days past due
Moare than 180 days past due
Total

Loss allowance (Note 11)

January 1, 2018

Current

30 - 6D days past due

61 - 80 days past due

81 — 180 days past duc
More than 180 days past due
Taotal

Lass allowance

The Group The Company
Avera ge ﬁideStEd Auerage AﬂjUStEﬂ
Expected Gross Expected Gross
Cradit Carrying Credit Carrying
Loss Amaount Loss Amaunt
Rate $'000 Rate %'000
0.04 103,974 0.05 33,629
0.03 27.568 D.04 12,737
0.0%9 11,138 014 1,564
0.14 12,842 0.39 728
1.00 30,059 1.00 5,083
185,381 23,541
37,838 7,749

The Group The Company
Average  Adjusted Average Adjusted
Expected Gross Expected Gross
Credit  Carrying Credit Carrying
Loss Amount Loss Amount
Rate $'00Q Rate $'000
0.06 93 4649 0.04 35,5356
0.05 19,632 0.04 4 233
012 7.203 012 1.049
0.22 11,548 0.30 a6z
1.05 28,020 1.08 13,373
159 872 54 973
I4TFT 16,569
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29 Financial instruments {Continued)

{d) Credit risk management (Continued}

The dlosing loss allowances for frade receivables as at December 31, 2018 regoncile to the
apening loss allowance as follows:

The Group The Company
2018 2018
$'000 $'000
Dacember 31— calculated under 1AS 29 15,861 B775
Amounts restated through opening retained
earnings 18,216 ¥,7893
Opening loss allowance as at January 1, 2018 —
calculated under IFRS 8 34177 16,5658
Increasef{Decrease) in loan loss allowance
recognised in income statement 15,594 (3,452}
Receivables writien off during the year as
uncollectible (11,840) (2,337}
At December 31 [Note 11) 37,834 7,748

On the adoption of IFRS 9, the Group recognised additional impairment on the Group's and
Company’s trade receivables at amortised cost of $18.22 million and $7.79 million, respeactivaly.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented a5 net impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same

line itern,
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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29 Financial instruments {Continued)
{d}  Crcdit risk management {Continued)
Debt Investments

The following table summarises the credit exposure of the group and company o businesses and
gavernment by sectors in respect of debt investments:

The Group The Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Government of Jamaica 151,623 167,078 106,204 136,559
Corporate 223,045 218,356 45,351 45124
374 668 385,434 151,558 181,683

All of the entity's debt investments at amortised cost and FYOOC] are considered to have low credit
risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the period was therefore limited t© 12 months
expacted lossas. The Group recognises the expected credit losses on these dehbt instruments in
the net impairment losses in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income,
Management consider low credit risk’ for listed bonds to be an investment grade credit rating with
at least one major rating egency. Cther instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

{e) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash resources, banking facilities, and by
continuously manitoring forecasts and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group's and the Company's contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial assets and financial liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based
an undiseountad contractual maturities of financial assets including interast that will be eamed an
those except where the Group and the Company anticipates that the cash flows will oceur in a
dilferenl pariod, and in the case of linancial liabilities, based on the earliest dale on which lhe
Group and the Company can be required Lo pay.
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29, Finaneial instruments {Continuad)

{e) Liguidity risk management {continued)

The Group
Weighted
Average Less
effective than Tt 3 3 months 1te 5 Ower
Interestrate  1month months to 1 year years & years Total
% $"000 5000 5'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2018
Financial assets
Man-intcrest bearing 83995 276,238 - - - 360233
nterest bezring 505 TE A B3 L] 10 3H - 92 AT
Vanable interest rate
Instruments 2.0 67 858 44 513 54, 261 45,563 - 213196
—ixed interest rate
Instrumenrits 418 27 648 8,631 24,709 a7 442  Z20BO0OS 324635
256,302 37845 04,285 114,385 200,005 930,340
Financial liabilities
Men-interest bearing 231533 20,488 - - - 252021
The Group
Weighted
Average Less
effective than Tt 3 3 months 1te 5 Ower
Interestrate  1month months to 1 year years § years Total
% 000 5000 5000 $'aan 5000 $'000
2017
Financial assets
Mon-interest bearing 104 930 175,860 - - - 280,749
nterest berring A7 115021 73543 B ABD a Rdf - ARAATH
Vanable interest rate
Instrumenrts L 28 43 BB3 62,746 38,066 - 144 733
—ixed interest rate
Inatruments 538 26 604 4791 17,640 0581+ Z4B 816 383764
246 573 247 EVB 88,560 143528 242816 975,745
Financial liabilities
Men-interest bearing 80 697 12,406 - - - 93,103
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29.  Financial instruments (Continued)

{e) Liguidity risk management {Continued)

The Company
Waelghted
Average Less
effective than 1103 4 menths 1to & Ower
Interest rate 1 month  months te 1 year years §years Total
o $7 000 £'000 £°000 £'000 5000 £000
2018
Financial as=zet=
Man-interest bearing 11,462 127 952 - - - 138414
IMerest bearing .05 TE.800 1K 0,223 10,390 - 92,876
Varnable interest rate
instrumants 1.9¢ 1 - B4 4 461 - 4 548
Fized interest rate
instrumants £ 38 27.648 L6811 22504 25217 174734 254784
115911 132,926 E7.581 40068 174734 4481600
Financial liabilities
Mon-interest bearing 55231 12406 - - - TRE3T
The Company
Weighted
Average Less
effective than 1103 3 months 1to & Ower
Interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years o years Total
% $'000 £'000 £'000 $'000 51000 £'000
2017
Financial assets
Man-interest bearing 14.745 70,244 - - - 09988
Interest bearing GG £, 76D 314 S, 56584 6,926 - 16,700
‘Yanable intarest rate
instrumants 5213 - - 285 4502 - A,057
Fized intarest rate
instrumants 1] 2B,604 £ 701 16,610 58155 1BOTAET 204 028
44 204 i, 250 22,4060 B9.863 B8 B JOE
Finandlal llabllitles
Men-interest bearing 75425 11,580 - - - 37,024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
{Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

29,  Financial instruments {Continued)
{f1 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assat or paid o transfer a liability in an
ordery transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The following methods and assumptions have been used ta measure the Group's financial
instruments that are camied at fair value:

(i Financial assets classified as debt instrument at FVOCI are measured at fair value using
interpolated yields derived from gquoted prices of similar instruments or broker gquates from
market makers.

(il The camying amount of liquid assets and other assets maturing within one year is assumed
to approximate their fair value. This assumption is applied to liguid assets and the other
short=term elements of all other finanaal assets and financal Liabihbes.

Mo significant unobservable inputs were applied in the waluation of the Group's financial
instruments classified as FWVOC| and amortised cost.

(g} Fair value measurement recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value s observable.

+ |Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted} in active
markets far identical assets or liahilities,

+ Level 2 fair value measuraments are those derivaed from inputs other than quoated prices
included within Level 1 that are ochservable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie. as
prices) ar indirectly {i.e. derived from prices); and

= |evel 3 fair value measuraments are those derived from wvaluation technigues that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based an observable market data (unabservable
inputs). There were no Level 3 fair valus investmeants.

Ths Group
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 £000 £'000 &£'000
Financial instruments at fair value through
ather comprehensive income
Dabt sacurities - 160,278 - 160,278
The Group
2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 £'000 $£'000 %£'000
Available-for-sale financial instruments
Dahbt securities - 218,545 - 218545
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

29.  Financial instruments {Continued)
{g) Fair value measurement recognised in the statement of financial position {Sontinued)

The Company

2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Financial instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Deabt securities - 112,639 - 112,634
The Company
2017 _
Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
$'000 $'000 £'000 $'000
Avwailable-for-sale financial instruments
Deabt securities - 143847 - 143,641

30. Dividends

Curing the year ended December 31, 2018, two dividend payments wera declared by the Board of
Directors.

= On April 20, 2018 a dividend of $0.14 per ardinary share was paid to sharsholders, The total
dividend paid was $85.01 million. (2017: On May 31, 2017 a dividend of $0.04 per ordinary
share was paid to shareholders. The total dividend paid was $25 million )

s On August 20, 2018 a dividend of $0.16 per ordinary share was paid to shareholders. The total
dividend paid was $115.01 millien. (2017 On December 11, 2017 a dividend of $0.11 per
ordinary share was paid to shareholders. The total dividend paid was $77.14 million.}

31. Compensation fund

The Jamaica Stock Exchange Limited Compensation Fund {"the Fund"} was created by contributions of
the Exchange’'s member-dealars for the purpose of compensating investors who may have suffered
pecuniary loss as a result of a defaleation or fraudulent misuse of securities or document of titlle to
securities. The Exchange fulfils its obligations under Sections 27 through 325 of the Securities Act by its
administration of the Fund.

Section 27{2} of the Securities Act stipulates that “The assets of the Compensation Fund are the
property of the recogrised stock exchange but shall be —

(a) HKept separate from all other property; and
(p)  Held in trust for the purposes specified in this part.”
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

31. Cempensation fund

Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the Fund are segregated from those of the Exchange and
separate audited financial statements are preduced for the Fund.

(a) Compensatien fund financial position

(i Compensation fund receipts
These are contributions by mermber dealers of the Stock Exchange, based on a percentage
of the wvolume of business done by them through the Exchange, for maintaining the
Cantingency Reserve Fund. However, during the year there were no contributions by the
member dealers as the Board was of the view that the reserve was adequate for the
specific purpose.

(il Contingency reserve
This fund is created out of surpluses for the purpose of providing some protection to the
investing public should they suffer pecuniary loss as a result of defaleation or fraudulent
misuse of securities or documents of titles © securities. Provisions in respect of the fund
are in accordance with Sections 27 to 33 of The Securities Act.

At December 31, 2018, the fund had otal assets of 5858.33 million (2017 5791.33 million)
and net equity of $822.23 million {(2D17: §764.26 million).

32. Changes in Accounting Policies
{a) IFRS 156 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company performed an assessment of IFRS 15 and no materal impact has been noted
based on the five step model applied to all contracts with customers. Instances of wvariable
consideration have been noted for some revenue streams. Howewer, there was no significant
revenue reversal associated with these instances of variable consideration. VWithin the company,
there are instances of contract liabilities and unsatisfied performance obligations as noted below:

{i) Adoption of IFR5 16

Reconciliation of Contract Liabilities

The Group The Company

2018 2018

‘QDG ‘D00

Additions during the year 332,784 171,821
Amount recognized as revenue (312,336) (159.213)

Ending Balance 20,448 12, 406
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NODTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2018
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32, Changes in Accounting Policies
{a) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

Reconciliation of Contract Liahilities {Caontinued)

The Group The Company
2018 2018
000D $000
Revenue recognized that was included in the
contract liability balance
Feg income 308,338 126,718
E-campus 2122 2,122
ther operating income 375 375
312,336 158 215
The Group
Balance Balance
as reported as reported
under |AS 18 under IFRS 15
2018 Adjustment 2018
$°000 $'000 $'000
Contract Liakilities - 20,448 20448
The Company
Balance Balance
as reported as reported
under |AS 18 under IFRS 15
201G Adjustment 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000
Contract liahilities - 12,406 12 406

Disaggregation of revenue

Tho Group denves rovenue from the transfor of goods and scnvices over time and at a point in
time in tha following major service lines:

The Group The Company

2018 2018

%000 £°000

Cess fes 434,711 432 870
Fee income 208,148 158, 5498
E-campus income 12,063 15,063
Other opearating fee 72,0926 231,254
1,390,848 837,785
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MOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

3Z2.  Changes in Accounting Policies
{a) IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
Reconciliation of Contract Liabilities {Continued}

Timing of Revenue Recognition:

The Group The Company

2018 2013

$'000 $°000

At a point in time 1,078,512 678,570
Over time 312,336 152,215
1,390,848 837,785

Unsatisfioed performance ebligation
The tollowing table shows unsatistied performance obligations resulting from 143 contracts tor
the Group, 82 foar the Company.

The Group The Company
2018 2018
000 $000
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
143 conlracls Lthal are parlially or Iully unsalisfied as al
December 31 40 534 20317

* As permilled under the ransilonal provisions in IFRS 15, he lransaclion price allocaled Lo
(partially’ unsatisfied performance obligations as of December 31, 2017 is not disclosed.

Management expects that 100% of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as
of December 31, 2018 will be recognised &8s revenue during the next reporting period ($40.8
millian for the Group and $20.3 million for the Company). The Group/Company amount disclosed
above does not include variable consiceration which is constrained.
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(Expressed in Jamaican Dollars)

32. Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

{b) IFRS 3 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of |AS 38 that relate to the recognifion, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecegnition of financial instruments
and impairment of financial assets.

The adoption of IFRS 2 Financial Instruments from January 1, 2018 resulted in changes in
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The
new accounting policies are set out in Note 2{2} anc 29(d) above. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in IFRS 9 (T.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative figures have not been
restated.

The total impact on the Group's retained earmings as at January 1, 2018 is as follows:

The Group The Company

2018 2018

$'o00 $'000
Closing retained earnings December 31 - 145 39 501,143 249 562
Roclassify investments from available-for-salc to FYPL 2071 1,814
Increase in provision for trade receivables (18,216} (7,793)
Increase in provision for debt investments at amortised cost (448}, (36)
Increasa in provision for debt investments at FVOCI {6,623) {6,107}
Adjustment to retained earnings from adoption of IFRS 9 on
January 1, 2018 (23,214} {12,122}
Opening retained earnings January 1, 2018 477 929 237 440

{1 Classification and measurement
Under IFRS 9, debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss, amortised cost, or fair value through CCl. The classification is based on two criteria; the
Group’s business madel for managing the assets; and whether the instruments’ contractual
cash flows represent ‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount
outstanding.

The assessment of the Group's business maodel was made as of the date of initial application,
January 1, 2018. The assessment of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are
solely comprised of principal and interest was made based on the facts and circumstances as
at the initial recognition of the assets.

The impacl of the classilication and measuremenl requirements of IFRS 9 are noled above,
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32, Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {continued)

{c)

(i} Classification and measurement

The Group 2018

Amortlsed
{Available cost
for-sale (Receivables
Financial assets —January 1, FVPL FYOCGI 2017} 2017)
2018 Motes %'000 $'000 $£'000 $'000
Closing balance at
December 31, 2017 — 1AS 32 - - 2103545 166,049
Reclassity Investmmenis from
available-for-sale to FVFL (a) 9,251 - (9,261) -
Reclassify listed and unlisted
debt securities from available-for-
sale to FWOCI 23] 205 2094 {205,284
Opening balance
January 1, 2018 IFRS 9 9,251 209 204 - 166,880
The impact of these changas an the Group's equity is as follows;
Effect on Effect on
Effect on FYOCl Retained
AFS Reserve eamings
Opening balance - IAS 39 Motes £000 £'000 5000
Redassify investments from availakle-for-
sale to FWPL [£=] {9.251) {1.381) 2,071
Redassify listed and unlisted detxt
securities from available-for-sale to FYOC| () (209,224 1,103 (5.523)
Opening balance - IFRS 3 [218.545) {278) i4,552)
The Company 2013
Amaortized
Available cost
for sale [Receivables
FYPL FYOCI (2017) 201T)
Financial assets — January 1, 2018 Motes 000 §000 $000 $'000
Closing balance at December 31,
2017 - IAS 29 - - 143,641 38,042
Reclasgsify investments from available-
for-zale to FWVTL =) 7os2 - {7.082) -
Reclassify listed and unlisted debst
securities from availakle-for-sale to
FV QG (b - 136,559 [136.259) -
Opening balance January 1, 2018 -
IFRS 9 7,082 136,550 - 28,042
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2013
(Expressed in .Jamaican Dollars)

32. Changes in Accounting Policies {continued)
(b} IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {continued}
(i} Classification and measurement

The impact of these changes on the Group's equity is as follows:

The Company 2018
Effect on Effect on
Effect on FVYDCI Retained
AFS Reserve earnings
Opening balance - 1AS 39 Notes $'000 $'000 §'000

Reclassify investmants from available-

for-sale to FVPL {a) {7.082) {1,209) 1.814
Reclassify listed and unlisted debt

securities from available-for-sale to

FVOC () (136,558) 58T (5,107)

Opening balance — IFRS 9 (143,641} (622) (4,293)

{a) Reclassity investments trom available-for-sale to FVPL
Certain investments were reclassified from available-far-sale o financial assets at FVPL
($2.25 million as at January 1, 2018 for the Group and $7.08 million for the Company). They
dao not meet the IFRS 2 criteria for classdfication at amortised cost, because their cash flows
do not represent solely payments of principal and interest. Related fair value gains of $2.07
millicn for Ihe Group and $1.81 million for the Company were lranslerred rom Lhe available-
for-sale financial assets reserve to retained eamings on 1 January 2018,

{b) Available-for-sale debt instruments classified as FVOCI

Listed and unlisted bonds were reclassified from awvailable for sale to FWOCI as the group's
business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling of these
assets, The contractual cash flows of these investments are solely principal and interest, As a
result, listed and unlistcd bonds with a fair valuc of $208.29 million and $136.58 million for
the Group and Company respectively were reclassified from available-for-sale financial
assets to financial assets at FWOC| and fair value gains of $1.10 million and $0.59 million for
the Group and Company respectively weare reclassifisd from the available-for-sale financial
assets reserve to the FVOCI reserve on January 1, 2018,

The Group and Company also recognized full impairment on the Government of Belize Bond
on January 1, 2018 Interest is recognized upon receipt. The total principal impairment
recognized to revenue resenve on January 1, 2018 was §5.50 million and net effect on FVOCI
reserves s $71.52 million during the year amounting to a total of $7.02 million).
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TALKING SIMPLY ABOUT SHARES

isted companies pay both initial listing fees and

annual fees. In return, their SHARES are bought and

sold on the JSE based on rules set by the Jamaica
Stock Exchange and approved by the Financial Services
Commission (FSC).

WHAT IS ASHARE?

A Share is a unit of ownership interest in a company. When
you buy or receive shares in a company, you become a part
owner of that company. This is known as having equity in
that company. The more shares you have in relation to the
total number of shares issued by the company, the more of
the company you own. For example, if a company issued
10,000 shares and you own 100 shares, then you are 1.0%
owner. People who own shares in a company are referred to
collectively as “shareholders” or “stockholders.”

ARETHERE DIFFERENT TYPES OF SHARES?
Yes, there aretwo basickinds of shares:

A. Ordinary Shares- Also known as “common stock”. As
part of the percentage ownership described earlier
the ordinary shareholder or common stockholder
usually has four basic rights in proportion to the
number of shares owned:

i.  The right to receive dividends if and when these
are declared by the Board of Directors. It is
possible that the shareholders may not receive
any dividends if the company performs poorly.

ii. Therighttovote at meetings of the shareholders.

iii. The right to claim a portion of the company's
undivided assets, if the company is liquidated.

iv.  Theright to subscribe to additional stock or share
offerings before they are made available to the
general public. This is known as pre-emptive
right.

A company may also be authorized to issue more than one
class of common stock or shares, some of which may not
have voting rights. (Not all companies have this provision)

B. Preference Shares - Also called 'preferred shares or
stocks.” The holders of these shares have certain rights
and privileges over ordinary shareholders. There are
different classes of preferred shares, which confer
different rights. The most common types give the
preferred shareholder:

i.  Therightto receive dividends at a fixed rate prior
to payment of dividends to ordinary
shareholders.

ii.  Thefirst right of payment should the company go
bankrupt or be dissolved.

iii.  Ordinarily novotingrights.

WHAT ARE THE BENEFITS OF OWNING SHARES?
There are three main benefits of share ownership

1.  Theshareholder benefits from the growthin the value
of his or her shares over time. That is, over time the
shares can be worth more than was paid for them.
Thisis known as 'Price Appreciation'.

2.  The shareholder can receive income through
dividends declared from time to time and paid by the
company's directors.

3. Theshareholder gets the opportunity to participate in
the continuing development of the companies in
which they invest. The involvement of shareholders
helpsthe companies and strengthens the economy.

(Cont’d on next page)
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TALKING SIMPLY ABOUT SHARES

WHAT IS A DIVIDEND AND HOW IS IT DETERMINED?

A dividend is a proportionate distribution of earnings
(profits) of a company to its shareholders. With common
(ordinary) shares or stocks, the rate of the dividend varies
with the company's performance and the amount of cash
on hand. With common shares the Board of Directors of the
company decides the amount of the dividend to be paid out.
They may also decide to hold back some of the profits to
expand the company's operation. With preferred stocks or
shares, the rate can be fixed or variable.

Dividends can be paid quarterly, half yearly or once per year.

WHY DO COMPANIES ISSUE SHARES?

The main reason companies issue shares is to raise capital or
money. A company may need start-up capital, to repay
debts or to expand. A company may also want to widen its
ownership base. When you buy shares you enable the
company to carry on business using your money.

The number of shares which a company is authorized to
issueis setoutinits Articles of Incorporation and can only be
increased with the consent of shareholders in a General
Meeting.

WHY DO PEOPLE BUY SHARES?

People buy shares for different reasons. However, the
principal reason is to get the best returns on their
investments, whether over the long or short term. The
hope is someday the stock you bought will be worth more
than the amount you paid for them and that people will
offer you more money to buy them from you. It is wise to
regard shares as long-term investments.

WHAT ARE THE RISKS INVOLVED?

Every investment has an element of risk and buying and
selling shares is not an exception. Anyone who buys shares
should be aware that, although the value of each share can
go up, especially over the long term, the value can also go
down. It depends among other things, on the performance
of the company, the value that investors in general place on
owning that company's shares and on general economic
conditions within the country.

WHAT ARE SOME OF THE THINGS | SHOULD DO
BEFORE AND AFTER | BUY SHARES?

No one can guarantee success in the market. However, the
possibility of success can be improved if, before investing in
shares, youshould:-

a. Collect and study as much information as possible
about the company in which you intend to invest.

b. Seek professional investment advice from a broker
orother qualified persons.

c. Learn how to read and understand the basic
financial statements and reports which the
companies listed on the Stock Exchange are
required to publish.

d. Develop the habit of reading and understanding
financial publications.

e. After buying shares, monitor and track your
investments by maintaining a daily record of
advances or declines in the stock value.

WHERE CAN | BUY SHARES

Contact a stock broker (JSE Member/Dealer). This is a
person whose business it is to buy and sell shares at one of
the brokerage firms authorized by the Financial Services
Commission and the Jamaica Stock Exchange to operate in
Jamaica.

You can visit or telephone the broker, informing him/her
which shares and how many you wish to purchase. Your
broker is your link with the market. He or she will buy or sell
according to your orders.

(Cont’d on next page)
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TALKING SIMPLY ABOUT SHARES

HOW DO | BUY OR SELL SHARES?

Contact your broker and advise him or her to buy or sell
shares on your behalf. Give him or her clear instructions,
whether orally orin writing.

The buying/selling process begins when you place the order
with your stockbroker (member/dealer) for a specified
number of shares in a company. There are three types of
orders thatyou can place:

a. Amarketorder-asks your broker to buy or sell stocks
atthe market price.

b. Alimitorder- sets the price at which you want stocks
to be boughtorsold.

c. Astop order- gives an approximate buying or selling
price of stock. When the approximate price is
reached the stock order becomes a market order.

HOW DO | PAY?

You will receive a contract note that states the company
whose stock you have bought or sold, the price paid or
received, the commission and other fees and the settlement
date. You should pay your bill by the settlement date.

HOW MUCH DO | HAVE TO EARN TO BUY SHARES?

A person from any income level, who has some amount of
surplus funds available no matter how small, may decide to
investin the stock market.

A principal rule is never to invest any money you will need to
pay your bills and other immediate living expenses. You will
need to keep the money you need for your living expenses in
amore liquid orimmediately available manner.

WHAT IS A BONUS ISSUE?

This is the process whereby money from a company's
reserves is converted into share capital, which is then
distributed to shareholders in proportion to their existing
holdings.

A bonus issue is also known as a script or capitalization
issue.

WHAT IS A STOCK SPLIT?

This is the division of the existing shares of a company into
larger number of shares, without changing the
capitalization of the company. Each new stock will now be
worth less depending on the ratio of the split. For example,
if a stock with a market value of $10.00 splits for 4 to 1, each
new stock will be worth one fourth of the previous price,
that is $2.50. Each shareholder would get four shares for
every one they owned previously. And, if the company had,
let's say one million shares outstanding before the split, it
would now have four million shares outstanding and worth
the same dollaramount of the one million shares.

Usually, the rationale for stock split is that the lower priced
stock might make the company more attractive to investors.

WHAT IS THE RECORD DATE?

It is the date by which a shareholder must be officially
recorded on the company's share register in order to be
entitled toadividend, bonus, right or other distribution.

(Cont’d on next page)
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TALKING SIMPLY ABOUT SHARES

WHAT IS A BOND?

Abond is an interest bearing government or corporate debt security. It is
a loan from the purchaser to the issuer which obligates the issuer to pay
the bondholder a fixed interest at specific intervals and to repay the
principal upon maturity. A bond issued by a company has no corporate
ownership privileges asin the case of shares.
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JSE GCORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Elite Diagnostic Limited were listed on February 16, 2018.

JMMB Group Limited 5.00% FR USD Cr Preference
Shares were listed on April 19, 2018

JMMB Group Limited 5.75% FR USD CR Preference
Shares were listed on April 19, 2018

JMMB Group Limited 7.00% VR JMD CR Preference
Shares were listed on April 19, 2018

JMMB Group Limited 7.25% VR JMD CR Preference
Shares were listed on April 19, 2018

Derrimon Trading Company Ltd. 9% Fixed and Variable Rate Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares were listed on April 20,2018

CAC 2000 Limited 9.50% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares were listed on May 11, 2018
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JSE GORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Listings 2018

Sygnus Credit Investments Limited listed 2 classes of ordinary shares on June 18, 2018 and the securities were cross listed on respective JAS / US$
Main Market.

Mayberry Jamaican Equities Limited were listed on July 31, 2018. Indies Pharma Jamaica Limited were listed on August 15, 2018.

Everything Fresh Limited were listed on June 22, 2018.
Stanley Motta Limited were listed on August 22, 2018.

Scenes from

Investor Forum
2018

Hanover (May 30, 2018)

Savanna-la-mar
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JSE GORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Scenes from Investor Forum 2018

Ocho Rios

Montego Bay
(July 2018)

Junction
(November 20, 2018)

Savanna-la-mar

50" Anniversary Logo Launch

In-House Talent: As a prelude to its 50" Anniversary celebration, the Jamaica Stock Exchange (JSE) launched a logo and tagline
competition, and unveiled the selections and winners (all staff members), at a Bell Ringing Ceremony held at its head office at 40 Harbour
Street, on September 21, 2018.

Miss Kaydene Commock, JSE e-Campus, won the logo prize; while Ms. Charlene Steer, Marketing and Communications and Miss

Charlene Myers - JCSD Trustee Services Limited were declared joint winners for the tagline, “50 Years Strong: Cultivating Economic
Growth, Celebrating Our Past and Embracing Our Future”.

Ms. Charlene Steer (L), Charlene Myers (2" left) and Kaydene Commock (3“right) ~ The JSE's 50" Anniversary logo and tagline unveiled to the public for the first time by
posed with symbolic cheque (prize money), supported by Mrs Marlene Street  the talented winners of the said competition: (L-R) Ms. Charlene Steer, Charlene
Forrest, JSE's Managing Director (3“ left); Neville Ellis, Manager — Marketing & ~ Myers and Kaydene Commock. Overseeing the unveiling is Neville Ellis, Manager —
Communications and Mrs Kadyll McNaught-Hermitt (right), Chair of the 50" Marketing & Communications.

Anniversary Logo Subcommittee and Manager of the JSE's Depository Services

Unit.

Mrs Kadyll McNaught-Hermitt (right), Chair of the 50" Anniversary Logo
A delighted Mrs Marlene Street Forrest, JSE's Managing Director (centre), and members ~ Subcommittee and Manager of the JSE's Depository Services Unit poses
of the JSE's Board of Directors and management flank the 50" Anniversary logo and  with the winners of the JSE's Logo and Tagline Competition: Ms. Charlene
tagline. Steer, Charlene Myers and Kaydene Commaock.
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JSE GORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

JCSD 20™ & JCSD TRUSTEE SERVICES 10™ Anniversary Mingle Pictures

The business community came out to celebrate with JCSD & JCSD Trustee The board members and the business community were held to rap attention
Services. by the MC.

The JCSD & JCSD Trustee Services 20" & 10" Anniversary Celebration

brought the media and the business community together.
The former General Manager Mr. Robin Levy of JCSD & JCSD Trustee
Services and the present General Manager Miss Andrea Kelly, both cut the
cake to mark the 20" & 10" Anniversary Celebrations.

The Ambassadors also came outfor the Celebration.  1he Silver Bird band gave an excellent performance.
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JSE GORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS

Market Research

Winner of the Jamaica Stock Exchange’s Market Research Ms. Nicole Adamson (centre) Manager Research & Stockbroking at Victoria Mutual
Competition 2016/2017 coveted ‘Top Financial Analyst Award’, Wealth Management is flanked by the 1st and 3rd place winners in the Jamaica Stock
Mr. Leovaughni Dillon, Equity Trader Analyst at Victoria Mutual Exchange’s Market Research Competition 2016/2017. Right, is the Competition’s Top
Wealth Management. Analyst, Mr. Leovaughni Dillon, Equity Trader Analyst and 3rd Place Winner, Mr. Daren
McGregor, Structured Products Specialist; both from VM Wealth Management.

A delighted and supportive team from Victoria Mutual Wealth Management joined the platform with their team
members who won in the Jamaica Stock Exchange’s Market Research Competition 2016/2017: Left to right:
Akanke Scott; Kerice Gray, Nicole Adamson; Winner Mr. Leovaughni Dillon; Denise Marshall-Miller; 3rd Place
Winner Daren McGregor and Candace Smith.
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Jamaica Stock Exchange
YEARLY TRADING SUMMARY MAIN MARKET (1992-2018)
YEAR-END YEAR-END
CAPTAL | orLiSTeD | TRADED | TravEp || 1| CALIA | ¥eE | "eross |comemen| of No. KT AP
YEAR JA$(000) COMPANIES (000) JA$(000) INDEX COMPOSITE SELECT LISTED INDEX TRANS. BROKERS JA$(000)

1992 76,974,281 48 395,606 4,687,337 | 25,745.88 49,791 9
1993 41,879,310 48 567,454 8,346,770 | 13,099.68 55,519 9
1994 58,018,064 50 741,754 5,155,463 | 16,676.74 43,144 10
1995 50,755,753 51 3,565,607 11,560,485 | 14,266.99 42,600 10
1996 66,116,257 50 560,528 4,629,395 | 16,615.99 23,189 8
1997 79,619,594 49 905,387 4,594,108 | 19,846.66 18,623 8
1998 79,038,726 47 604,545 2,064,243 | 20,593.33 13,748 8+
1999 104,041,538 44 520,531 2,218,714 | 21,892.58 9,256 6
2000 160,135,746 44 694,897 3,441,081 | 28,893.24 | 26,894.76 883.67 21,066 6
2001 222,006,166 42 2,845,199 5,948,358 | 33,835.59 | 32,508.99 1,015.26 20,979 10
2002 292,297,900 40 1,604,591 7,636,877 | 45,396.21 | 46,142.81 1,450.34 26,999 10
2003 512,884,380 41 4,290,433 24,237,330 | 67,586.72 | 55,629.64 1,697.87 35,954 10
2004 879,297,296 40 5,194,558 35,994,853 | 112,655.51| 116,218.38 3,176.62 86,875 11
2005 839,852,762 41 2,498,028 40,746,681 | 104,510.38 | 104,941.62 2,859.62 75,001 11
2006 822,862,351 44 5,639,412 37,040,992 | 100,678.00 | 107,213.42 2,942.88 41,921 11
2007 876,690,610 44 2,433,488 29,047,425 | 107,968.00 | 106,782.82 2,928.98 38,621 11
2008 | 597,277,036 45 2,953,011 67,026,871 | 80,152.03| 73,994.96 1,984.74 30,323 11
2009 544,882,559 44 1,764,894 12,189,895 | 83,321.96| 70,995.77 1,896.05 962.92 16,099 11
2010 564,720,705 43 3,571,199 20,828,652 | 85,220.82| 80,793.80 2,192.19 863.01 18,359 11
2011 619,444,770 40 1,819,302 20,993,976 | 95,297.20| 102,178.79 2,874.01 794.55 97,134.00 23,319 11
2012 590,637,443 36 2,581,249 61,109,565 | 92,101.22| 91,161.60 2,489.67 873.93 93,503.79 19,515 11 612,739,023
2013 | 492,179,964 36 1,833,463 15,978,243 | 80,633.55| 81,850.04 2,176.17 740.28 82,934.95 18,284 I 519,571,097
2014 | 296,836,862 36 2,121,337 12,807,536 | 76,353.39| 84,084.94 2,220.27 585.90 78,223.45 16,073 12 322,933,971
2015 | 615,559,573 36 4,116,651 64,647,786 | 150,692.13| 167,363.25 4,979.74 499.06 158,269.14 21,767 12 683,506,273
2016 | 697,446,825 35 3,393,477 48,449,577 | 192,276.64| 201,139.49 6,403.77 2,096.06 | 204,960.10 30,698 12 800,864,403
2017 | 1,048,739,994 36 2,590,384 36,689,806 | 288,382.00| 316,516.07 8,516.42 N/A 294,986.58 43431 13 1,163,535
2018 | 1,383,834,940 39 5,450,190 75,469,542 | 379,790.83 | 416,842.70 9,725.59 N/A 384,556.50 60,896 13 1,523,611

+ Six (6) active Brokers 3.64% 19,838,146.00

* The All Jamaican Composite started on the May 1, 2000 at 31,931.32 points
* JSE Select started on the June 1, 2000 at 1,000 points
* JSE Cross Listed Index started on March 2, 2009 at 1,000 points

* JSE Combined Listed Index started on April 1, 2011 at 86,897.43 points
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Jamaica Stock Exchange
YEARLY TRADING SUMMARY JUNIOR MARKET (2010-2018)
YEAR-END
MARKET NO. OF YEAR-END
CAPITAL LISTED VOLUME VALUE NO. OF NO. JSE JNR
YEAR JA$(Million) COMPANIES TRADED TRADED TRANS. BROKERS | MARKET INDEX
2010 8,466.81 8 50,331,871 206,559,980 1,192 11 379.92
2011 23,595.00 12 306,220,533 1,247,948,069 7,883 Il 748.86
2012 22,101.58 16 569,866,235 5,185,299,007 5,047 11 647.78
2013 27,391.13 21 477,733,468 1,385,965,574 7,157 I 757.86
2014 26,097.11 26 592,044,500 2,002,910,571 4,374 12 687.96
2015 67,946.70 23 1,295,714,331 7,429,758,488 7,754 12 1,791.05
2016 103,417.58 29 675,102,747 5,067,316,049 15,537 12 2,593.71
2017 114,795.27 34 1,347,735,367 6,863,734,530 22,230 13 2,732.13
2018 139,776.81 36 1,415,717,406 5,848,812,746 26,845 13 3,246.81
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Jamaica Stock Exchange
STOCK MARKET DATA - MAIN MARKET
YEAR-END TOTAL ORDINARY BLOCK
ISSUED VOLUME VOLUME VOLUME Average Average
SHARES TRADED TRADED TRADED Daily Daily
YEAR (000) (000) (000) (000) Volume Value

1995 11,356,118 3,565,607 463,050 3,102,557

1996 12,007,219 560,528 322,575 237,954

1997 17,274,915 905,387 470,322 435,065

1998 19,324,078 604,545 371,783 232,762

1999 23,041,396 520,531 440,744 79,787 2,203,718 7,555,098
2000 28,501,260 694,897 599,834 95,063 3,014,241 16,296,328
2001 33,189,889 2,845,199 714,718 2,130,481 2,870,353 13,839,283
2002 35,769,494 1,604,591 1,434,820 169,771 5,716,412 27,466,744
2003 41,877,268 4,290,433 2,765,449 4,524,984 11,017,724 56,933,666
2004 42,280,569 5,194,557 3,240,964 1,953,593 12,759,705 114,056,429
2005 46,193,644 2,498,028 1,908,000 590,027 7,751,431 105,013,441
2006 49,234,751 5,639,412 2,917,899 2,721,512 11,671,598 78,135,584
2007 47,162,791 2,433,487 2,254,376 179,110 9,017,507 103,776,801
2008 47,491,439 2,953,011 2,295,768 657,243 9,183,074 97,517,814
2009 47,163,202 1,764,894 1,662,158 102,735 6,569,796 45,511,377
2010 47,647,441 3,571,199 2,641,538 929,661 10,482,293 68,838,178
2011 47,386,693 1,819,302 1,550,142 269,159 6,151,358 71,829,756
2012 46,038,017 2,581,249 1,431,282 1,149,967 5,725,128 73,180,378
2013 47,577,008 1,833,463 1,386,439 447,023 5,523,663 56,604,418
2014 45,828,363 2,121,337 2,117,762 3,575 8,437,299 50,984,279
2015 47,271,409 4,116,651 1,881,261 2,235,390 7,435,813 80,745,725
2016 49,769,588 3,393,477 1,809,980 1,583,496 7,211,077 101,721,227
2017 60,305,841 2,590,384 2,519,048 71,335 10,076,194 142,891,526
2018 46,455,381 5,450,190 3,212,056 2,238,134 12,797,039 261,013,516
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered Office: The Jamaica Stock Exchange,
Jamaica Central Securities Depository &
JCSD Trustee Services
40 Harbour Street
PO. Box 1084
Kingston.
Telephone: (876) 967-3271-2

Fax: (876) 967-3277

Bankers National Commercial Bank
Cnr. Duke & Barry Streets
Kingston.
Attorneys-at-law Livingston, Alexander & Levy
72 Harbour Street, Kingston
Auditors Ernst & Young
8 Olivier Road
Kingston 8
Website Address www.jamstockex.com
E -Mail Address communications@jamstockex.com
Facebook https://www.facebook.com/jamaicastockexchange
Instagram https://instagram.com/jssexchange
Twitter https://twitter.com/jssexchange

Jamaica Social Stock Exchange: jsse@jamstockex.com
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BROKERAGES & CONTACT INFORMATION

BARITA INVESTMENTS LTD.

15 St. Lucia Way

Kingston 5

Phone: 876-926-2681/876-926-6673
Fax: 876-929-8432

E-mail: barita@cwjamaica.com
Website: www.barita.com

SCOTIA INVESTMENTS

JAMAICA LTD.

7 Holborn Road

Kingston 10

Phone: 876-960-6699/876-960-6700-2
Fax: 876-960-6705/876-968-7607

E-mail: investmentinfo@scotiabank.com
Website: www.scotiainvestmentsjm.com

JMMB SECURITIES LTD.

6 Haughton Terrace

Kingston 5

Phone: 876-920-5039/876-920-4720
Fax: 876-960-8106

E-mail: info@jmmb.com

Website: www.jmmb.com

GK CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
58 Hope Road

Kingston

Phone: 876-932-3290

Fax: 876-927-9273

E-mail: GKCapitalgkco.com
Website: www.gk-capital.com

MAYBERRY INVESTMENTS LTD.
1 72 Oxford Road

Kingston 5

Phone: 929-1908

Fax: 876-929-1501/ 876-920-2103
E-mail: sales@mayberry.com
Website: www.mayberryinv.com

SAGICOR INVESTMENTS LTD.

85 Hope Road,

Kingston 5

Phone: 876-929-5583-4

Fax: 876-926-4385

E-mail: infoja@sagicor.com

Website: www.sagicorjamaica.com/
personal/investments

JN FUND MANAGERS LTD.
2 Belmont Road, Kingston 5,
Phone: 876-929-2289

Fax: 876-926-4375

Website: www.jnfunds.com

M/VL STOCKBROKERS LTD.

19 Holborn Road

Kingston 5

Phone: 876-960-1570/876-926-4319
Fax: 876-960-1571

E-maill: info@mvl.com.jm

NCB CAPITAL MARKETS LTD.

32 Trafalgar Road, 3" floor,

Kingston 10

Phone: 876-960-7108

Fax: 876-920-4313

Toll Free: 1-88-4-WEALTH

E-mail: info@ncbcapitalmarkets.com
Website: www.ncbcapitalmarkets.com

STOCKS AND SECURITIES LTD.
33 % Hope Road

Kingston 10

Phone: 876-929-3400

Fax: 876-929-4825

E-mail: info@sslinvest.com
Website: www.sslinvest.com

VICTORIA MUTUAL WEALTH
MANAGEMENT LTD.

53 Knutsford Boulevard

Kingston 5

Phone: 876-960-5000-3

Fax: 876-960-4972

E-mail: spalmer@vmbs.com
Website: www.vmwealth.vmbs.com

PROVEN WEALTH LTD.

26 Belmont Road

Kingston 5

Phone: 876-908-3800

Fax: 876-754-3802

E-mail: info@weareproven.com
Website: www.weareproven.co

CREDIT UNION FUND
MANAGEMENT COMPANY
10 Ruthven Road

Kingston 10

Tel: 876-926-7767

E-mail: info@cufmco.com
Website: www.cufmco.com
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NOTES
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